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December 16, 2019

Honorahle Mayor, Honorable Members of the Governing Council and Citizens of East Point,
Georgia:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of East Point, Georgia, for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019, is herein submitted as required by state government, statutorily requires
that all general-purpose local governments annually issue a financial report covering its financial
position and activity, in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and
that this report be audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants.

The City is also required to submit an annual single audit in conformity with the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Components of the
single audit, including the schedule of financial assistance, the independent auditor’s reports on
internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and a schedule of findings
and questioned costs are included in a separately issued single audit report, if applicable.

The auditor’s opinion is intended to provide reasonable assurance that all financial statements
will be free from material misstatement. To the best of management’s knowledge and belief,
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner that presents
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and component units
of the City of East Point. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the
completeness and fairness of presentation, including all disclosures, resides with the City.

The financial reporting entity for the City of East Point includes all funds of the primary
government, the City of East Point, as well as all of its component units. Component units are
separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable and are included
as part of the primary government’s reporting. The East Point Building Authority is reported as
a blended unit in the governmental funds of the primary government. Non-blended component
units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements. To
differentiate their financial position and results of operations from those of the primary
government, the East Point Business and Industrial Development Authority and the Keep East
Point Beautiful are reported as discretely presented component units.

In addition to the Letter of Transmittal, a narrative in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), is included and contains an introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements. The Letter of Transmittal is a complement to the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A follows the report of the independent auditor.



Annual Audit

State statutes reguire an annual audit be performed by independent certified public
accountants. The firm of Banks, Finley, White & Co. was selected by the City to perform these
auditing services. In addition to meeting requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was
also designed to meet the reguirements of the federal Single Audit Act of 1996, as amended,
and the related U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133. Generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards set forth in the General Accounting Office’s Government
Auditing Standards were used by the auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditor’s
report on the basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this report. The
auditor’'s reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations can
be found in a separately issued single audit report and internal control report. The City does
meet the requirements of a Single Audit.

Form of Government

The Charter of the City of East Point establishes a Council-Manager form of government. Under
this form, legislative policymaking is vested in the elected governing council, consisting of a
mayor and an eight member council. Four members of the eight members are elected from
districts while four members are elected at large for four year terms. All members are elected
on a non-partisan basis. The mayor is elected at large for a four-year term. The City Council
establishes policy by passing ordinances and resolutions including adopting an annual budget
as proposed by the City Manager. The Council appoints the City Manager, City Clerk and City
Attorney. The Council also appoinis both a Budget Committee and a Finance Committee. The
City Manager serves as the Chief Executive Officer responsible for executing the policies of the
governing council and for the supervision of the day-to-day operations of the City.

Profile of the City of East Point

Located southwest of Atlanta, the City is included in the Atlanta, Georgia Metropolitan area.
East Point has immediate access to the interstate system (I-75, -85, 1-285), heavy rail, MARTA
{transit and bus routes) and is less than a 10-minute drive to Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta
International Airport. The City’s population as of 2010 census was 35,471, The City’s popuiation
as 0f 2019 is 37,151, There are 18,537 housing units, 79.5 percent or 14,737 units of which are
occupied. The average household size is 2.49. The median home value as of 2019 is $156,415
with a median household income of $43,405. Median gross rent was $957 as of 2017. East
Point’s unemployment rate was 4.3 percent. Those numbers are improving as the City tackles
some of the unmet retail demand. The City has a current vacant retail space of 13,100 sguare
feet within the East Point primary market area. The vacancy rate for retail space has decreased
1.4 percent over the past year. East Point had a net draw of $117,424,377 in retail sales in 2017,
meaning that East Point establishments took in over $117 million in retail sales more than is
accounted for by people living in East Point, according to an ESRI estimate. As of 2018, there
are 1,363 husinesses in the City with over 15,776 employees. The Scheduled Air Transportation
industry is the largest employer based on number of employees in the City.

With Fulton County being the largest county in the State of Georgia, the City of East Point is
the second largest city in South Fulton County. Neighborhoods are continually being
revitalized as is downtown East Point, which is geared toward mixed-use development. New
businesses are being developed and existing businesses are relocating to the City. The City
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Council and Fulton County Board of Commissioners adopted the £ast Point Corridors Tax
Allocation District in 2006 which includes Main Street, redevelopment nodes along Cleveland

Avenue and redevelopment nodes along Washington Road.

While the City owns and operates four utility enterprises with revenues in excess of
$74,000,000 {electricity, water and sanitary sewer, storm water and sanitation), the primary
general governments revenue streams are property taxes and sales taxes. This is a good
revenue mix as property taxes are classified as “inelastic” and sales taxes are classified as
“elastic.” Sales tax revenue is highly sensitive to fluctuations in the economy. However, as
with other local governments, the current economic growth has affected the City’s 2019

general government revenue streams.

Budgetary Controls

The City adopts an annual budget as a basis for the budgetary accounting system designed to
ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget. Monthly
budgetary reporting is a significant part of budgetary controls as supported by a formal system
of amendments and transfers. Activities of the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, and certain
Special Revenue Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. Project length financial
plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Program.,

For additional oversight, the City established Budget and Finance Committees. The Committees
are composed of three elected officials and one citizen representative. The citizen
representative is approved by majority vote of Mayor and Council. The Budget Commitiee is
charged with monitoring revenues and expenditures and recommending capital improvements.
The Finance Committee is charged with reviewing proposed debt financing and participating in
the selection of the outside auditing firm.

Internal controls

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. This
structure is designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or
misuse. Management must ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
regarding: {1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use of disposition; and
(2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the evaluation of costs and

benefits requires estimates and judgment by management.

As a recipient of federal, state, and county financial assistance, the City is also responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to federal assistance programs as mandated by the Single
Audit Act. Asa part of the City’s single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adeguacy of the internal control system, including that portion related to federal financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine adherence to applicable laws and regulations. The

iii



auditor's report is a separate document on compliance with federal programs and is not included
in this report.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018. In order to be awarded a certificate of Achievement, the City published an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal

requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Programs requirements and we are
submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility the FY 2019 Certificate of Achievement.

Acknowledgements
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BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council,
of the City of East Point, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of East Point, Georgia (the “City™), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the East Point Employees Retirement Pension Plan, blended component
units of the city, which, in the aggregate, represent 100% of the assets in that position of the pension trust
funds, within the fiduciary funds. Those financials were audited by a other auditor whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such pension trust
funds, is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of East Point, Georgia, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis (pages 4 through 14), pension system supplementary information (page 73
through 74), other postemployment benefits supplementary information (page 75), and schedule of
budgeted and actual revenues and expenditures of the general operating fund (page 76) be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City East Point, Georgia’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Rep orting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 13,
2019, on owur consideration of the City of East Point, Georgia’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of East Point, Georgia’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of East Point, Georgia’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

" /
Atlanta, Georgia M ? A) %{/& § 4
December 13, 2019 / '



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) City of East Point, Georgia
As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for City of East Point (the City), provides
interested parties and the general public with a narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the City
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Management prepared this discussion that should be read in conjunction
with the basic financial statements, notes and supplementary information found in this report. This information taken
collectively is designed to provide readers with an understanding of the City’s finances.

FISCAL YEAR 2019 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $147,948,292 (total net position) as of June 30, 2019,

. Total net positions are comprised of the following:

(1) Capital assets, net investments in capital assets, of $118,922.404 includes property and

equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduction for outstanding debt related to the

purchase or construction of capital assets.

(2) Restricted net position is $46,542 856; restrictions inciude debt covenants, grantors, laws,
or regulations.

(3) Unrestricted net position is $(17,516,968).

. The City’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $51,053,175 at June 30, 2019.
This compares to the prior year ending fund balance of $54,286,919 showing an decrease of
$(3,233,744) during the current year. Unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 523,284,129
at June 30, 2019, a $5,530,417 increase from the prior year amount at June 30, 2018 .

. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
323,284,129 or 82.04% of total General Fund expenditures. An increase of approximately 22% when
compared to the June 30, 2018.

. The effects of the economy affect the City's 2019 revenue streams, particularly as it relates the
assessment of property taxes.

. In the City’s business-type activities, revenues decreased by ${1,693,248} or (2)%. Expenses increased
by §7,221,788 or 10%.

. Although revenue decreased and expenditures increased, the City improved its financial position for
2019.

The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the “financial analysis” section of this
document.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Management Discussion and Analysis document introduces the City’s basic financial statements. The basic
financial statements include; (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes
to the basic financial statements. The City also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic
financial statements. Comparative data is presented to allow comparison to the prior fiscal year.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The City’s CAFR includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term and
short-term information about the City's overall financial status. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective
similar to that found in the private sector with its basis in accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of
activities between funds,
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The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Position. This is the government-wide
statement of position presenting information that includes all of the City’s assets and deferred cutflows of resources
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City as a whole is
improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the City would extend to other nonfinancial factors
such as diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of City infrastructure, in addition to the financial
information provided in this report.

The second government-wide statement is the Stafement of Activities, which reports how the City’s net position
changed during the current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenditures are included regardless of when
received or paid.

An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the City's distinct
activities or functions on revenues provided by the City's taxpayers.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the City principally supported by
taxes from business-type activities intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges. Governmental activities include general government, judicial, community development, public safety,
public works, parks, recreation and culture, planning and community development and health and welfare, Business-
type activities include the water and sewer system, the electric system, storm water, and solid waste activities.

The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 15-18 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The City uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations.
Within the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the City’s most significant funds rather than
the City as a whole, Major funds are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for nonmajor funds is provided in the form of combining statements in a later
section of this report,

The City has three kinds of funds:

Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different with fund
statements providing a distinctive view of the City’s governmental funds. These statements report short-term fiscal
accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources and balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental programs and the
commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may
provide insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund operating statement provide a reconciliation to assist in understanding the
differences between these two perspectives.

Individual fund information for nonmajor governmental funds is found in combining statements in a later section of
this report.

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the City
charges customers a fee. The City’s proprietary funds are classified as four enterprise funds and a single internal
service fund.  The enterprise fund essentially encompass the same function reported as business-type activities in
the government-wide statements. The internal service fund is reported as part of the business-type activities at the
government-wide financial reporting level.
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The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 25 - 28 of this report.

Fiduciary funds (i.e., the agency funds) is reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements, but are excluded from
the government-wide reporting. Fiduciary fund financial statements report resources that are not available to fund
City programs. The City’s pension plan (a pension trust fund) and collections of municipal court fees (an agency
fund) are reported as fiduciary funds. The fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on pages 29 & 30 of this
report. Discretely presented component units are reported on pages 31 and 32.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements begin on page 33 of this
report.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the City's Single Employer Pension Plan. The required supplementary
information can be found on pages 73 - 75 of this report.

Supplementary Information

As discussed, the City reports major funds in the basic financial statements. Comparative information for major

funds and combining and individual statements and schedules for nonmajor funds, including budgetary comparison
schedules, are presented in a supplementary information section of this report beginning on page 77.

(This page continued on the subsequent page)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY

The City’s net position at fiscal year-end are $147,948,292. The following table provides a summary of the City’s

net position:

Assels:

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Other
Capital
Total Assets

Deferred outflow of resources

Total Assels and deferred outflow
of resources

Liabilities:
Current liabilities

Long termn liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred inflow of resources

Total Liabilities and deferred
inflow of resources

Net Position:

Net investment in capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Summary of Changes in Net Position

City of East Point, Georgia

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 201 2618 2019 2018
$ 62,548,252 § 61,763,23F § 53,558,026 § 53,927,554 S§116,106,278 § 115,690,783
- - 3,360,842 3,300,321 3,360,842 3,300,321
67.026.805 75,120,708 83.937.006 82.342.673 180963811 161.463.381
159.575.057 140.883.939 140,855,874 139.570.548  300.430.931 280.454 487
7,578,107 - 2.945.163 - 10,523.270 -
167,153,164 140,883,939 143,801,037 139.570.548  310.954.201 280.454,487
9,968,750 6,008,316 31,860,464 25,189,975 41,829,214 31,198,291
64.206.961 61,529.262 53.420.393 55,118,884  117.636.354 116,648,146
74.175.711 67.537.578 85,289.857 80.308.859 159465 568 147840437
1.218.438 4.634.793 2,321,903 3,592 844 3,540,341 8227 637
75,394,149 72,172,371 87.611,760 §3.901.703 163,005,909 156,074,074
74,555,596 59,892,384 44,366,808 317,781,643 118,922,404 97,674,027
25,395,084 35,262,469 21,147,172 - 46,542,856 35,262,469
(8.192 265) {26.443.284) (9.324,703) 17.851.303 {17.516.968) (8,591.981)
§_91.759.0[5 §_68.71 i& SM SWM 5147!948!292 $, [24!344.515

(This page is continued on the subsequent page)



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) City of East Point, Georgia
(=i s~ e s S s e s — s e e s s

As of and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

-

The following chart reports the City’s total net position balances from fiscal year 2010 - 2019.

Total Net Position Balance from FY 2010-2019

140.000.000
120.000.000
100,000,000
80.000.000
60.000.000
40,000,000
20.000.000 J

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Year Net Position

2019 $ 147,948,292
2018 $ 124344515
2017 $ 110,993,467
2016 $ 81,542,726
2015 8 66,547,968
2014 3 86,530,340
2013 $ 72,285,225
2012 $ 61,802,399
2011 b 59,109,210
2010 A 54,442,139
2009 $ 41,229,134

Current assets increased the governmental and decreased slightly in business-type activities for fiscal year June 30,
2019.

The City reported positive balances in net position for both governmental and business-type activities. During 2019,
net position increased $21,892,627 for governmental activities and increased $556,331 for business-type activities. .

Capital assets represents approximately 61% of total assets for governmental activities. The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to its citizens. Business-type capital assets make up approximately 60% of total assets.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its customers. Combining governmental activities with
business type activities, the City has invested approximately 60% of its total assets in capital assets, as presented in
the government-wide statement of net position.

(This page is continued on the subsequent page)
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The following table provides a summary of the City’s changes in net position at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

Summary of Changes in Net Pasition

Governmental Activities Business-tvpe Activitics Total
2619 2018 2019 201 2019 2018
Revenues:
Program:
Charges for services & lines  § 5,826,153 3 5,642,956 § 73,948,039 $ 74,440,125 § 79,774,192 5 380,083,081
Operating grants 1,312,247 975,002 - - 1,312,247 975,002
General:
Property taxes 18,839,742 15,010,940 - - 18,839,742 15,010,940
Sales taxes 17,684,997 16,781,777 - - 17,684,997 16,781,777
Other taxes 9,253,614 8,782,399 - - 9,253,614 8,782,399
Othier 1.255.920 1.281.316 756,595 1.957.757 2.012.515 3.239.073
Total Revenucs 54.172.673 48.474.390 74.704.634 76.397.882 128.877.307 124.872.272
Program Expenses:
General government 2,750,524 4,645,152 - - 2,750,524.00  4,645,152.00
Judicial 766,034 654,373 - - 766,034 654,373
Public Safety 22,197,980 17,512,229 - - 22,197,980 17,512,229
Public Works 2,990,478 2,729,349 - - 2,990,478 2,729,349
Culture d Recreation 1,694,297 1,626,585 - - 1,694,297 1,626,585
Planning & Community
Development 3,479,316 2,456,809 - - 3,479,316 2,456,809
Interest 1,134,299 889,389 - - 1,134,299 889,389
Water & Sewer - - 23,090,973 17,711,785 23,090,973 17,711,785
Electrical System - - 41,331,862 40,188,953 41,331,862 40,188,953
Stormwater - - 1,228,700 1,406,073 1,228,700 1,400,073
Solid Waste Management - - 5.763 886 4 886 823 5.763.886 4.886.832
Total Expenses 35.012.928 30,513.886 71.415.42¢ 64.193.633 106,428 349 94.707.519
Revenues Over Expenses 19,159,745 17,960,504 3,289,213 12,204,249 22,448,958 30,164,753
Transfers in and (out) 2,732 882 5.436.898 (2,732.882) (5.436.898) - -
Changes in Net Position 21,892,627 23,397,402 556,331 6,767,351 22,448,958 30,164,753
Net Position-Beginning of
Year ! 69,866,388 45,314,167 55.632.946 48.865,595 125.499.334 94.179.762
Net Position-End of Year b3 91.759.015 $68.711.569 § 56.189.277 $55.632.946 $147.948292 5124.344.515

Note 1: Adjustment to prior year ending Net position in the amount of $1,154,819

e
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Governmental Activity Revenues

The City is heavily reliant on both property taxes and sales taxes to support governmental operations. Property taxes
provided 35% of the City’s total governmental activities revenues as compared to 31% in fiscal year 2018; Sales and
Use Taxes provided 33% of the City’s total revenues compared to 35% in the fiscal year 2018 .

Note that program revenues covered 13% of governmental operating cost as compared to 14% in fiscal year 2013.
General revenues funded 134% of the governmental activities, primarily from property and sales taxes. As a result,
the economy and the success of local businesses have a major impact on the City’s revenue streams.

Governmental Activity Expenses

General Government expenses increased approximately $4,499,042 from prior year, primarily due to increases in
public safety personnel, equipment capital cost and public works infrastructure,

The following table presents the cost of each of the City’s programs, including the net costs (i.e., total cost less
revenues generated by the activities). The net costs illustrate the financial burden that was placed on the City’s
taxpayers by each of these functions

Government Activities

Total Net
Cost of Service Pereentage of Service Percentage

2019 2018 Change 2019 2018 Change
General Governiment $ 2,750,524 S 4,645,152 (40.8)% S 2517482 5 10,712,693 {76.5)%
Judicial 766,034 654,373 17.1 % (543,818) (853,870) {36.3)%
Public Safety 22,197,980 17,512,229 26.8 % 19,921,863 13,028,463 529 %
Public Works 2,990,478 2,729,349 9.6 % 1,857,144 (1,287,166) (244.3)%
Culture and Recreation 1,694,297 1,626,585 42 % 1,625,298 1,552,949 4.7 %
Economic and Community

Development 3,479,316 2,456,809 41.6 % 1,362,260 (146,530) (1,029.1%

Interest and fiscal charges 1,134,299 889,389 275 % 1,134,299 889,389 27.5 %
Total $ 35.0!2!928 3 30,513 886 147 % $ 27874528 S 23.895028 16.6 %

Business-Type Activities

Overall Analysis — Total operating revenues decreased by 3$(476,190) or (1)%. Operating expenses increased by
$6,791,470 or 11%. In total, the operating income decreased by $(7,285,233). The factors contributing to these
results include:

Increase in cost allocation 3 2,184,190
Increase in sanitary sewer cost $ 1,029,435
Increase in depreciation expenses 3 1,073,783

After all cost allocations, the change in net position for each utility was as follows:

Water and Sewage h) (3,083,615
Electrical System 3 3,609,447
Storm Water 5 1,403,413
Solid Waste 5 (1,372,914)
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The following includes an analysis of the fiscal year 2019 financial activities for each utility.

Water and Sewerage Fund — Operating revenue decreased by $(1,508,317) and operating expenses increased by
$4,994,276 from fiscal year 2018. In total, the change in net position is negative, $(3,083,615). While overall the net
position decreased, revenues and operating cost both increased. The primary cause of these changes were the
increases in sanitary sewer costs, material and supplies cost, cost allocation and depreciation expense. At year-end,
net position totaled $17,684,237, a decrease from June 30, 2018,

Electric Fund — Operating revenue increased by $100,157 and operating expenses decreased $(1,138,466). The
increase in revenue was the result of increase in power consumption due to large customers relocating. The
wholesale cost of electricity, which declined by approximately $0.5 million from fiscal year 2018 is a main factor
resulting in decreased\operational expenses. The find also recognized $0.2 million of their bond reserve from
MEAG compared to $1.6 million in the prior year. At year-end, the net position totaled $35,367,579 an increase of
$3,609,447 million from June 30, 2018.

Storm Water Fund — The Storm Water fund earned its initial revenues from the enactment of Stormwater
Ordinance 018-12 approved December, 2012. Storm Water revenues are collected by placing Storm Water Utility
Fees on property tax bills. The City re-evaluated properties, which attributed to the increase of $795,171 in operating
revenues. Operating expenses decreased by $(171,468). At year-end, net position totaled $5,703,629 up by
$1,403,413 from the June 30, 2018 total of $4,300,216.

Solid Waste Fund — Operating revenue increased by $119,226 and operating expenses increased by $830,196. The
major cause of the rise in the current year operating expenses is the increase in purchase services and cost allocation
expenses. At year-end, net position totaled $(2,566,168) an increase of $1,372,914 from June 30, 2018.

FUND ANALYSIS
Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds are reported in the Fund Statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of spendable
resources focus. This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with
upcoming financing requirements. Governmental funds reported ending fund balances of $51,053,175 compared to
a balance of $54,286,919 at June 30, 2018, Of this year-end total, $23,284,129 is unassigned indicating availability
for continuing City service delivery requirements,

Legally restricted fund balances include $25,395,684 set aside for debt service, capital projects and public safety
purposes. The total ending fund balances of governmental funds show an decrease of $(3,233,744) over fiscal year
2018.

Major Governmental Fund

General Fund - The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service
delivery. The ending unassigned fund balance represents an equivalent of 40% of annual expenditures.

Total General Fund's Property and Local Option Sales taxes decreased by $(4,732,022) or 9% from 2018, 2019 tax
revenues were $28,986,879 compared to $26,043,772 for fiscal year 2013.

In fiscal year 2019, the general fund recognized 32,773,153 more in total revepues than from the prior year. The
fiscal year 2019 general fund expenditures increased by $1,772,938 when compared to 2018 expenditures. The net
change in fund balance was an increase of $6,633,041 from fiscal year 2018,
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. Public safety expenditures increased by $3,289,767 due to increased personnel, supplies and vehicles
purchased.
. General government cost decreased due to cost allocation.

City Hall Fund - In fiscal year 2019, the City Hall fund balance decreased by $7,006,361 due to the increase in
capital outlay expenditures of $6,352,267 and debt service expenditures of $654,094.

T-SPLOST Fund - In fiscal year 2019, the T-SPLOST fund balance increased $2,662,891 this is attributed to total
revenues of $6,262,262 and total expenditures of $3,599,371. Compared to prior year's total revenues of $5,995,946
and the related total expenditures of $2,251,564. The total fund balance for fiscal year 2019 is $7,780,561 compared
t0 $5,117,670 in fiscal year 2018.

The most significant changes from fiscal year 2019 are described below:

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting both short-term and
long-term information about financial status. The business-type activities analysis above discusses the City’s
enterprise funds.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The original overall revenue budget for fiscal vear 2019 was amended. Total revenues were $34,643,887, $193,127
more than budgeted amounts, The major revenue streams in the original budget are property and sales taxes, there
were no significant changes between budgeted amount versus actual. Property values increased and the economy
showed a slight improvement, thus property and sales taxes increased. In total, the City realized approximately 101%
of the projected revenue budget,

The actual expenditures were $28,382,389 or approximately &88.8% below the budget. The main factors include the
following:

. Public Safety — Fire was $615,339 less than budget and Police was $706,212 less than budget.

. Economics and Community development was $125,255 less than budgeted.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business-type

activities as of June 30, 2019, was $74,555,596 and $44,366,808 respectively. See Note 3-E for additional
information about changes in capital assets during the fiscal year and outstanding at the end of the year.
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The following table provides a summary of capital asset activity:

Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 018
Non-depreciable Assets:
Land § 7,093,826 § 7,093,826 § - $ - $ 7,093,826 S 7,093,826
Construction in progress 8.969.737 10,684,176 6.250.236 3.040,254 15.219.973 13.724.430
Total Non-depreciable 16.063.563 17,778.002 6.250,236 3.040.254 22.313.799 20.818.256
Non-Current/Depreciable Assets:
Investment & Beferred Charges
Building and Improvements 41,680,009 22,152,936 146,094,123 144,766,797 187,774,132 166,919,733
Machinery,equipment,
Furniture and vehicles 41,369,292 38,408,289 26,650,523 24,545,127 68,019,815 62,953 416
Infrastructure 70.904.776 70.105.335 - - 70,904,776 70.105.335
Total Net depreciable assets 153,954,077 130,666,560 172,744,646 169,311,924 326,698,723 - 299,978,484
Less accumulated depreciation 72.990.835 69.323.855 95.057.876 90.045.405 168.048.711 156.369.260
Book value-depreciable assets 80.963.242 61,342,705 77.686.770 79.266.519 158.650,012 140.609.224
Percentage depreciated 474 % 53.1 % 550 % 332 % 514 % 33.1 %

Long-term Debt

During fiscal year 2019, the City retired $2,810,072 or 10% of outstanding debt for governmental activities and

$4,970,319 or 11% of outstanding debt for business-type activities.
The following table reports long-term debt balances at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

Qutstanding Borrowing

Governmental Activities Business Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 019

Building Authority Bonds  § 602,268 § 678,271 § 36,275000 3 40,975,000 § 36,877,268

§ 41,653,271

Tax Allocation Bonds 10,170,000 12,810,000 - - 10,170,000 12,810,000
Fulton County Schools 180,000 300,000 - - 180,000 300,000
Capital Leases 30477 59,243 1.841,512 2,255,027 1.871.989 2.314.270
Total 10,982,745 13.847.514 38,116,512 43,230,027 49.099.257 57,077,541

The Tax Allocation Bonds will be paid off in period ending in 2026, The business-type activities Building Authority

Bonds will be retired in the period ending in 2035.
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See Note 3-H for additional information about the City’s long-term debt.
A SUMMARY OF THE ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE CITY

The City is inciuded in the Atlanta, Georgia Metropolitan area, with close proximity to Hartsfield-Jackson
International airport. The City has an estimated 2010 population per the Census of 33,712. In addition, the City has
with 13,333 housing units with an average household size of 2.50. Median house value is $107,000 and median
household income is $38,759. Unemployment is estimated at 8.8% and is declining.

The City of East Point is the third largest city in Fulton County, which is most urbanized county in the state of
Georgia. Neighborhoods are continually being revitalized as is downtown East Point, which is geared toward mixed-
use development. New businesses are being developed and existing businesses are relocating to the City. The City has
created the Corridors Tax Anticipation District to encourage improvements to downtown.

The primary revenue streams for the City are property and sales taxes. This is a good revenue mix as property taxes
are as “inelastic” revenues, slow to adjust when there is a change in the economy. Sales taxes are “elastic”, and
adjust quickly to changes in the economy and is highly sensitive to fluctuations in the economy. The current
economy has definitely affected the City’s 2019 revenue streams, and no-frills operational budget. Departments
engaged in belt tightening measures and only funded critical capital projects. The City is constantly monitoring the
economic conditions and positioning itself to make the necessary adjustments as the economy fluctates.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances, comply with finance-related
laws and regulations, and demonstrate the City’s commitment to public accountability. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or request for additional information should be addressed to the Finance
Director, 2757 East Point Street, East Point, Georgia 30344,



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Assets and Deferred Qutflow of Resources

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents {Note 3A)
Restricted:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts, net

Liens

Property taxes, net

Sales taxes
Intergovernmental
Comyponeat units
Internal balances
[nventory
Prepaid items

Total Current Assets:

Non-current Asscts
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 3A)
Capital assels
Nondepreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Capital assets held for resale
Depreciable, net

Total Non-current Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Difference in pension investinent eamings

Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Quiflows of Resources

Statement of Net Position

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

June 30, 2019
Primary Government
Government Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

18,763,696 3 27,297,399 § 46,061,095 46,887

28,363,202 17,786,330 46,149,532 -
1,409,688 7,330,567 8,740,255 280,000
- 1,056,971 1,056,971 -
4,399,154 - 4,399,154 -

473,261 - 473,261 -
4,227,248 - 4,227,248 -

175,528 - 175,528 -
2,363,113 (2,363,113) - -
1,431,431 1,530,804 2,962,325 -

941,931 918,978 1.860.509 52.500

62,548,252 53.558.026 116.106.278 379.387
- 3,360,842 3,360,842 -
7,093,826 - 7,053,826 -
8,969,737 6,250,236 15,219,973 -

80.963.242 77,686,770 158.650.012 428 000

97.026.805 87,207 848 184.324.653 428 000
7,578,107 2,945,163 10,523,270 -
7.578.107 2.945.163 10.523.270 -

167.153.164 143.801.037 310.954 201 807.387
Continued



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019
Primary Government
Government Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total LUnits
Liabititics and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Current Liabilitics
Accounts payable 1,830,079 % 19,425,355 § 21,255,434 % 1,551
Contracts Retainage payable - 92,173 92,173 -
Accrued expenses 1,062,993 928,389 1,991,382 -
Accrued interest payable 632,677 - 632,677 -
Deposits payable 313,280 - 313,280 -
Due to primary government - - - 175,528
Unearned revenue 158,820 715,404 874,224 -
Capital lease obligation payable 30,477 1,051,759 1,082,236 -
Worker's compensation payable 90,000 - 90,000 -
Bonds payable 2,792,429 4,885,000 7,677,429 -
Compensated absences payable 120,000 346,530 466,530 -
Claims payable - 467,000 467,000 -
Other liability - utility credits payable 120.600 - 120,060 -
Total Current Liabilities 7.150.755 27911.610 35.062,365 177,079
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Customer deposits - 3,265,570 3,265,570 49.459
Accrued Interest Payable - 683,284 683,284 -
Capital projects 1,920,788 - 1,920,788 -
Tourism 591,799 - 591,799 -
Public safety 305408 - 305.408 -
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 2.817.995 3.948. 854 6.766.849 49459
Total Current Liabilities and Payable frem restricted assets ©,968.750 31.860.464 41.829.214 226,538
Long-Term Liabilities {(Note 3-H) (net of current portion)
Compensated absences payable 1,248,166 - 1,248,166 -
Worker's compensation payable 23,346 - 23,346 -
Other post employment benefits payable 21,252,505 9,269,093 30,521,598 -
Net pension liability 19,813,005 7,655,442 27.468,447 -
Capital lease obligation payable - 789,753 789,753 -
Bonds payable 21,809,939 35,715,105 57,525,044 -
Other liability - utility credits payable 60,000 - 60,000 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities 64,206,961 53429 393 117.636.354 -
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1.218.438 2.321.903 3.540.341 -
Total Liahilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 75.394.149 87.611.760 163.005.909 226.538
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets (Note 3L) 74,555,596 44,366,808 118,922,404 -
Restricted for:
Public safety 7,776,053 - 7,776,053 -
Debt service 2,131,945 - 2,131,945 -
Capital projects 15,033,004 21,147,172 36,180,176 -
Tourism 454,682 - 454,682 -
Unrestricted (8.192.265) (9,324.703) (17.516,968) 580.849
Total Net Pasition 91.759.015 § 56,189.277 § 147,948,292 3 580.849

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Function/Program
Primary Government
Government Activities

General government

Judicial

Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation

Economic and community development
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Water and Sewer
Electric System
Storm Water
Solid Waste

Total Business-type Activities
Total Primary Government
Component Units
East Point Business & Industrial Development Authority

Keep East Point Beautiful

Total - Component Units

Program Revenues

Charges for

Services Operating Grants

Expenses and Fines and Conftribution
3 2,750,524 % 233,042 § -
766,034 1,309,852 -

22,197,980 2,097,204 178,913

2,990,478 - 1,133,334
1,694,297 68,999 -
3,479,316 2,117,056 -
1.134.299 - -

35.012.928 5.826,153 1,312,247
23,090,973 19,853,157 -
41,331,862 47,071,797 -
1,228,700 2,632,113 -
5,763.886 4,390,972 -
71,415.421 73.948.039 -

$ 106428349 § 79,774,192 § 1,312,247

33,885 - 207,756

68.812 - 66,064

$ 102,697 $ - Y 273,820

Continued

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



General Revenues

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position

Primarv Government

Property taxes levied for general government purposes
Property taxes levied for debt services

Transportation and Local option sales taxes

Franchise taxes

Insurance premium taxes

Alcoholic beverage taxes

Hotel/motel taxes

Unrestricted invesiment earnings

Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues
Transfers in (out)
Total General Revenue and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year as adjusted (See Note 1)

Net Position, End of Year

Governmental Business type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
§ (2,517482) § - $ (2,517,482) $ -
543,818 - 543,818 -
(19,921,863) - (19,921,863) -
(1,857,144) - (1,857,144) -
(1,625,298) - (1,625,298) -
(1,362,260) - (1,362,260) -
{1.134.299} - (1,134.299) -
{27.874.528) - (27.874.528) -
- (3,237,816) (3,237.816) -
- 5,739,935 5,739,935 -
- 1,403,413 1,403,413 -
- (1.372.914) {1.372.914) -
- 2.532.618 2.532.618 -
(27.874.528) 2,532,618  (25.341.910) -

- - - 173,871

- - - (2,748)

- - - 171,123
15,121,874 - 15,121,874 -
3,717,868 - 3,717,868 -
17,684,997 - 17,684,997 -
883,412 - 883,412 -
2,417,023 - 2,417,023 -
702,745 - 702,745 -
5,250,434 - 5,250,434 -
275,024 562,552 837,576 -
980.896 194.043 1.174.939 -
47.034.273 756.395 47.790.868 -
2.732.882 (2.732.882) - -
49.767.155 (1.976.287) _47.790.868 -

21,892,627 556,331 22,448,958 171,123

69.866.388 55.632.946 125.499.334 409.726

B 51759015 % 56,189.277 $147948292 § 580.849

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Receivables:
Accounts, net
Property taxes, net
Intergovernmiental
Compenent units
Interfund

[nventory

Prepaid items

Total Asscts

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and
Fund Balances

Liabilitics
Accounts payable
Accrued expenditures payable
Interfund payable
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred
Inflow of Resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred

Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Government Funds

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019

Nonmajor Total
Capital Governmental Governmental

General Projects T-SPLOST City Hall Funds Funds
$18,413,255 § - h - 5 - i3 350441 § 18,763,696
- 148,550 7,505,729 3,164,475 17,544,449 28,363,203
1,409,688 - - - 473,261 1,882,949
4,380,780 - - - 18,375 4,399,155
948,284 - 523,790 - 2,755,174 4,227,248
175,528 - - - - 175,528
7,442,756 3,335,021 - - 1,819,198 12,596,975
1,431,431 - - - - 1,431,431
941,931 - - - - 041,931
$35.143.653 §__ 3483571 $__ 8.029,519 5_3,164475 §5_22.960,898 5_ 72,782,116
§ 1,829,588 S 765,661 § 248,958 § 664,103 § 1,139273 § 4,647,583
1,058,609 - - - 4,872 1,063,481
1,107,549 2,717,910 - 2,085,668 4,322,734 10,233,861
313,280 - - - - 313,280
- - - - 85.507 85,507
4.309.026 3.483.571 248.958 2.749.971 5,552,386 16,343,712
5.177.136 - - - 208.093 5385220
9.486.162 3.483.571 248.958 2.749.771 5.760.479 21.728.941
2,373,362 - - - - 2,373,362
- - 7,780,561 414,704 17,200,419 25,395,684
23284129 - - - - 23.284.129
25657491 - 7.780.561 414.704 17.200.419 51,053,175
$35,143.653 $_ 3483571 $_ 8029519 $ 3164475 $ 22.9602893 $_72782.116

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Government Funds
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 51,053,175

Amount reported for governmental activities in the statement
to net position are difference because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

Cost of capital assets $ 170,017,640
Less accumulated depreciation {72.990.833) 97,026,805

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Property taxes 5,311,915
Deferred outflow results from pension plan and OPEB 7,578,107
Deferred inflow results from pension plan and OPEB (1,218,438)

Accrued interest not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the governmental fund balance sheets but are reported on the
government-wide statement of net position (632,677)

Liabilities not due and payable the current period and therefore are not
reported in the governmental fund balance sheets but are reported
on the government-wide statement of net position.

Bonds payable (24,602,368)
Capital leases payable (30,477)
Workers' compensation payable (113,346)
Other post employment benefits payable (21,252,505)
Compensated absences payable (1,368,166)
Other liability-utility credits (180,000)
Pension liability (19.813.005) {67.359.867)
Net Position of Government Activities $,_91.759.015

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Government Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovemimenial
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earniags
Miscellancous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Economic and community developmens
Capital Outlay
Debt Service;
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures
(Deficiency) of Revenues {Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of capital lease
Transfers in
Transfer out
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Issuance of bonds
Amount paid 1o paying agent on refunded bond
Issuance costs paid to agent
Total Other Financing Sources {(Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Nonmajor Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
General Projects T-SPLOST City Hall Funds Funds
328,986,879 3 - 3 - s - 5 8968302 § 37,955,181
- - 6,257416 - 1,312,247 7,569,663
2,424,573 - - - - 2,424,573
1,121,498 - - - 543,091 1,664,589
1,310,169 - - - 441,187 1,751,356
2,756 - 4,846 125214 144,966 271,782
798.012 - - - 77,058 875,070
34.643.887 - 6,262,262 125214 11486851 52,518,214
1,129,912 - - - 1,922,280 3,052,192
830,449 - - - - 830,449
21,319,288 - - - 1,718,147 23,037,435
1,703,098 - - - - 1,703,098
1,348,377 - - - 183,014 1,531,391
1,932,132 - - - 1,732,211 3,664,343
- 7,704,205 3,599,371 9,525,382 45,377 20,874,335
76,003 - - 30,000 2,640,000 2,746,003
43.130 - - 624.094 467.075 1,134,299
28.382.389 7.704.205 3.599.371 10,179.476 8.708.104 58.573.545
6,261,498 (7.704.205) 2.662.891 10.054.262) 2.778.747 (6.055.331)
1,966,158 6,965,769 - “ 2,994,093 11,926,020
(1,683,320) - - - (7,509,818) (9,193,138}
88,705 - - - - 88,705
371.543 6.965.769 - - {4.515.725) 2.821.587
6,633,041 (738,436) 2,662,891 10,054,262) {1,736,978) (3,233,744)
19.024 450 738.436 5.117.670 10468 966 18,937,397 54.286919
$25.657.491 § - $.7.780.561 $_ 414704 $ 17200419 $ 58053175
S et e

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Government Funds
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balaaces to the Government-wide Statement of Activitics

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 3 (3,233,744}

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures on the governmental fund type operating
statement, However, in the statement of activities the cost of those asset is allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capitalized capital
outlay exceeded depreciation expense in the current period

Deprecation expense 5 (3,666,980)
Capital outlay 21,573,078 17,906,098

Property taxes reporied in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues at the fund financial reporting level.

Deferred @ 6/30/2019 5,311,915

Deferred @ 6/30/2018 (3.746.163) 1,565,752
Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities the statement of net position 2,746,003
Repayment of capital lease is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities the statement of net position 28,766
Repayment of other liability principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces log-term liabilities the statement of net position 120,000

Accrued interest payable and expenses recorded in the government wide bui not
recorded at fund level
Liability @ 6/30/2019 $ (632,677)
Liability @ 6/30/2018 483,397 (149,280)

Workers compensation payable reporied in the statement of activities, do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures of governmental funds

Liability @ 6/30/2019 b (113,346)
Liability @ 6/30/2018 202.E15 88,769

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Change in net pension liability 5 3,637,262
Change in OPEB obligation (835.653) 2,801,609

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities, do not require the use of cument
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Liability @ 6/30/2019 3 {1,368,166)
Liability @ 6/30/2018 1,386,820 18,654
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 5 21.892.627

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Accounis
Accrued Revenues
Liens
Interfund
[nventory
Prepaid items

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Non depreciable:
Construction in progress
Depreciable, net
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Difference in pension investment earnings

Total Deferred Qutflow of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resource

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Proprictary Funds
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Business-type Activities

Business-type

Enterprise Funds Agtivities
Major Funds Internal
Water & Electric Non-Major Service
Sewerage System System Funds Total Fund
$ 5,200,286 § 16,441,462 % 4,802,465 $ 26,444,213 § 853,186
50,384 17,735,946 - 17,786,330 -
1,782,375 3,524,355 1,045,430 6,352,160 -
265,113 621,514 91,780 978,407 -
1,056,971 - - 1,056,971 -
1,027,470 1,445,781 192,677 2,665,928 -
271,992 1,193,191 7,009 1,472,192 58,702
293.710 195.132 430,136 918.978 -
9,948,301 41.157.381 6.369.497 57.675.179 911888
3,360,842 - - 3,360,842 -
4,118,864 2,131,372 - 6,250,236 -
64.124 611 7.067.837 6.004.899 77.197.347 489.423
71,604,317 9.199.209 6,004,899 86.808.425 489.423
81.552 618 50,356,590 12,574,396 144.483.604 1401311
1,320,464 1,052,419 572,280 2,945,163 -
1.320.464 1.052.419 572280 2.945.163 -
5 82,873,082 § 51409009 § 13,146,676 §_ 147428767 § 1.401.311
Continued
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Liabilities and Deferred inflow of Resources
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Contracts retainage payable
Accrued expenses
Uneamed Revenue
Interfund payable
Compensated absences payable
Revenue bonds payable
Capital leases payable
Claims payable

Totaj Current Liabilitics
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Accrued interest payable

Customer deposits

Total Current Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities (net of Current Portion)
Other post employment benefits payable

Net pension liability

Capital leases payable
Revenue bonds payable

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Total Liabifities and Deferred Inflow of Resources
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricled

Total Net Position

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Business-type Activities-
Enterprise Fund

Business-type

Major Funds Activities
Water & Internal
Sewerage Electric Non-Major Service
Svstem System Funds Total Fund
$ 12,833,926 § 3,043,678 $ 2,544,191 % 18421795 § 1,003,560

- - 92,173 92,173 -

582,123 183,756 25,130 791,009 137,380

- - 715,404 715,404 -

58,707 3,588,267 1,121,696 4,768,670 260,371
126,610 152,387 67,533 346,530 -
4,885,000 - - 4,885,000 -
74,494 388,637 588,628 1,051,759 -
- - 467.060 467000 -

18.560.860 7.356.725 5.621,755 31,539.340 1401311
683,284 - - 683,284 -
850.439 2.415.131 - 3.265.570 -
1,533,723 2.415.131 - 3948 854 -

20,094,583 9,771,856 5,621,755 35,488,194 1,401,311
4,079,145 3,107,966 2,081,982 9,269,093 -
3,428.179 2,804,626 £,422,637 7,655,442 -

- 84,629 705,124 789,753 -
35.715.105 - - 35,715,105 -
43,222 429 5,997,221 4,209,743 53,429,393 -

1.871.833 272,353 177,717 2.321.903 -
65,188,845 16,041,430 10,009,215 91,239,490 1,401,311
30,929,718 8,725,943 4,711,147 44,366,808 489,423

3,411,226 17,735,946 - 21,147,172 -

(16.656.707) 3,905.690 (1,573.686) (5,324.703) (489.423)
h 175684.237 35367579 § 3137461 $_56.1 89% $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Operating Revenues
Charges for services, net
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal services
Purchased services
Cost allocations
Materials and supplies
Wholesale electric
Sanitary sewers
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income {Loss)

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Process from the liquidation of bond reserve
Amortization of bond issuance
Interest expense
Investment eamnings

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before and Transfers in (Out)
Transfer Out

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Proprictary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Business-type Activitics

Enterprise Fund

Business-type

Major Funds Activities
Water & Internal
Sewerage Eleetric Non-Major Service
System System Funds Total Fund
$ 19,853,157 47,071,797 § 7,023,085 § 73,948,039 § 4,731,654

- 15.896 - 15.896 -

19.853.157 47.087.693 7.023.085 73.963.935 4.731.654
3,687,994 2,972,765 1,707,153 8,367,912 1,460,321
2,039,117 1,122,188 1,890,745 5,052,050 2,510,726
5,955,734 5,878,727 2,734,758 14,509,219 -
1,276,097 767,711 113,640 2,157,508 712,061

- 29,900,837 - 29,900,837 -

4,436,709 - - 4,436,709 -
3.863.775 647.174 452976 4.963.925 48.546

21.250.426 41.289.462 6,899.272 69.448.160 4.731.654

(1.406,269) 5.798231 123.813 4,515,775 -
- 178,147 - 178,147 -
(1,831,547) (42,400) (93,314) (1,967,261 -
154,201 408.351 - 562.552 -
{1,677.346) 544 098 {93.314) {1.226,562) -

(3,083,615) 6,342,329 30,499 3,289,213 -

- {2.732.882) - (2,732 882) -
(3,083,615} 3,609,447 30,499 556,331 -
20,767 852 31.758.132 3.106,962 55.632.946 -

$ 17.684.237 § 35.367.579 § 3137461 5 56189277 % -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Proprictary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows

June 30, 2019

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received {rom customers
Cash payments for personnel services
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net Cash Provided by {used in} Operating Activities

Cash Flows from noncapital Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in interfund loan payable
Decrease (increase) in interfund receivable
Transfers in (out)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Noneapital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from liquidating of bond reserve
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Interest paid on revenue bonds
Proceeds from capital leases,net
Refunding deposit with escrow agent
Bond issuance costs
Capital lease payment
Principal paid on notes and leases
Interest paid on notes and leases
Payments for capital acquisitions

Net Cash {Used to) Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Sale of investmenis

Investment eamings
Net Cash Provided by (used in) investing Activities
Net {Decrease)} increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash

Total

Business-type

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Major Funds Activities
Water & Internal
Sewerage Elcetric Non-Major Service

System Svstem Funds Total Fund
20,232,126 § 46,549871 § 6,920,085 § 73,711,082 § 4,731,654
(3,836,480} (2,822,205} (1,994,223) (8,652,908) {1,456,126)
(9,877,374} (37.719.102} (2.987,927) (50.,584.403) {2,955.706)

6,518272 6.008.564 1,546,935 14.473.771 319.822
25451 (856,924) (995} (832,468) -

(569,480) (2,004,800) - (2,574,280) -

- (2,732 882) - (2,732 882) -

(544.029) (5.594.600) (995) (6.139.630) -

“ 178,147 - 178,147 -
{4,700,000) - - (4,700,000} -
(2,180,195) - - (2,180,195} -

- - 74,836 74,836 -

(72,685) - - (72,685) -

- (190,679) (224,983) (415,662) -

- (42,362) (93,314) (135,676) -
(3.133.954) (2.178.811) {783.717) (6.096,582) (537.969)

(10.086.834) (2.233.805) (1.027.178) (13.347.817) (537.969}
(60,521} - - (60,521) -
154,201 408,351 - 562,552 -

93.680 408.351 - 502.031 -
(4,018.911) {1.411.496) 918,762 (4,511.645) (218.147)
9.269.581 35.588.904 3.883.703 48.742.188 1,071,333
5250670 $_ 34177408 §__ 4802465 3_44.230543 § 853,186

S T T fo e e

5,200,286 S5 16441462 § 4802465 § 26444213 § 853,186

50.384 17.735.946 - 17.786.330 -
5250670 5_34.177408 S__ 4.802465 3_44230543 3 853.186



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Proprictary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows

June 30, 2019

Reconciliation of Operating income (Loss) to Net
Cash provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Operating Income

Adjustments
Depreciation

{Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts recetvable and accrued revenues
Inventory
Prepaid items

Increases (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued expenses
Deposits payable
Compensated absences
Cther post employment benefit
Customer deposit
Net pension liability

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Business-type Activities
Eaterprise-tvpe Activities

Business-type

Major Funds Activities
Water & Internal
Sewerage Electric Non-Major Service
System System Funds Total Fund
3 (1,406,269) § 5,798,231 % 123,813 § 4,515,775 % -
3,863,775 647,174 452,976 4,963,925 48,546
178,539 (460,780) (94,000} (376,241 -
(111,308 251,038 (7,009) 132,728 (44,744)
(250,715) {70,398) (344,146) (665,259) -
4,192,299 (230,219) 2,102,371 6,064,451 311,825
- 20,810 (6,642) 14,168 4,195
- (77,042) - {77,042) -
(12,064) (2,114) (9,800) (23,978) -
331,872 240,382 164,877 737,131 -
200,430 - - 200,430 -
{468.294) {108.518) {435.505) (1012317 -
by 6.518.272 § 6.008.564 § 1946935 § 14473771 § 319.822

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:
Amount due from brokers for securities sold
Accrued interest and dividends receivable
Contributions receivable

Total receivables

Investments:
U.S. government obligations
Corporate bonds
Core real estate property fund
Common stock
Convertible preferred stock
Foreign stock
Mutual Funds

Total Investments
Prepaid insurance
Total Assets

Lizbilities
Accounts payable

Amounts due to brokers for security purchased

Deposits
Total Liabilities

Net Position Restricted for Pension Benefits

December 31, 2018

Pension

Trust

10,995,665 §

212,942
404,215

June 30, 2019

Agency

1,022,607

617.157

3,123,204
16,237,442
14,010,369
30,240,097

5,685,567

975,792
19.747.421

50.019.892

2.998

101.635.712

1.022.607

218,733
157,907

1.022.607

376.640

1.022.607

101.259.072

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018

Additions
Contribution:
Employer 3 9,127,127
Employee 1.265.307
Total Contributions 10.392 434
Investment Earnings:

Net appreciation in fair value of investments (4,703,822)
Interest and dividends 2.897.855
Less: Investment Expenses (619.206)
Netf Investment Income (2.425.173)
Other Income 1.318
Total Additions 7.968.579

Deductions

Benefits paid including refunds of employee contribution 10,000,922

Administrative expense 258.835

Total Deductions 10.259.757

Net Decrease (2,291,178)
Net Position, Restricted for Pension Benefits Beginning of Year 103.550.250

Net Position, Restricted for Pension Benefits End of Year § 101.259.072

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Component Units
Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019
East Point
Business and
Industrial Keep East
Development Point
Authority Beautiful Tatal
Assets

Current:

Cash and cash equivalents 3 46,476 § 411 § 46,887
Receivables:

Accounts, net b 280,000 § - 3 280,000

Prepaid items $ 52,500 % - 3 52,500
Non-current Assets

Nondepreciable: Capital assets for resale 428.000 - 428.000
Total Assets 806,976 411 807,387
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable - 1,551 1,551
Due to primary government 175,528 “ 175,528
Customer deposits 49459 - 49.459
Total Liabilities 224 987 1.551 226,538
Net Position

Unrestricted 581,989 (1.140) 580.849
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 806976 % 411 § 807.387

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Expenses
Economic development

Intergovernmental Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Component Units

Combining Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

East Point
Business and
Industrial Keep East
Development Point
Authority Beautiful Total
b 33,885 68,812 § 102,697
207.756 66.064 273,820
207,756 66.064 273.820
173,871 (2,748) 171,123
408.118 1.608 409,726
$ 581.989 (1.140) $ 580,849

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

The City of East Point, Georgia (the "City") was incorporated on August 10, 1887 under the provisions of Georgia
Law 133, as amended. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following
services: general government, judicial, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, economic and community
development, water and sewer, electricity, storm water and solid waste disposal.

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting.

The most significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.
1-A. IReporting Entity

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are
included to ensure that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the City consists of
all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the City. For the City, this entity
includes component units as described below.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable. The City is
financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing
board and (1) the City is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the
organizations; or {2) the City is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's resources; the City is
legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to
the organization; or the City is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units also may include
organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City in that the City approves the budget, levies their taxes or issues
their debt.

The City’s component units are presented either as “blended” or “discretely presented.” If blended, it is reported as
if it were a fund of the City throughout the year. It is included at both the government-wide and fund financial
reporting levels,

Discretely presented component units are reported only at the government-wide financial reporting level. The
component unit columns included on the government-wide financial statements identify the financial data of the
City’s discretely presented component units. They are reported separately to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the City.

A brief description of the blended component units are as follow:

East Point Building Authority (The Authority) - The Authority was established to acquire, construct and equip
capital projects for the City. The Mayor and City Council appoint members of the Authority. The City has lease
agreements that require it makes lease payments to the Authority in amounts equivalent to the principal and interest
on the Authority’s outstanding debt. Capital assets owned by the Authority are included in capital assets; related debt
and debt service are included in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements and in the debt service
fund. Assets owned by the Authority and leased for use by enterprise funds are included in the enterprise funds,
along with the related capital debt. The Authority does not issue separate financial statements.

City of East Point Retirement Plan (the Plan) Pension Trust Fund. The City provides pension benefits to its
employees through the City of East Point Employees Retirement Plan (the Plan). The Retirement Committee for the
Employees of the City of East Point administers the Plan. Separate audited financial statement for the Plan may be
obtained by writing to the City’s Clerk office at 2757 East Point Street, East Point, Georgia 30344,
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The following component units are discretely presented in the reporting entity:

East Point Business and Industrial Development Authority (EPBIDA) and the Downtown Development Authority
of East Point (DDAEP) - The EPBIDA and the DDAEP were established to assist in the promotion, rejuvenation and
commercial development of the City. The board members of the Authorities are appointed by the City Council, The
Authorities receive a substantial portion of their operating revenues and all of their office facilities from the City.
While these entities are legally established as two separate authorities, they are operated and reported on as one
entity. The EPBIDA and the DDAEP do not issue separate financial statements,

Keep East Point Beautiful - Keep East Point Beautiful (KEPB), formally known as East Point Clean Community
System, was established to promote public interest in the general improvement of the environment of the City of East
Point. It receives substantially all of its operating revenues from the City. The directors of the System are appointed
by the City Council. The KEPB does not issue separate financial statements.

1-B. Basis of Presentation

The City's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net position, a
statement of activities and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net
position and the statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a whole. The
primary government and the discretely presented component units are presented separately within these financial
statements with the focus on the primary government. Fiduciary activities are not included at the government-wide
reporting level. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally
supported by taxes and City general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part
with fees charged to external customers. The operating activity of the internal service finds is eliminated to avoid
duplicating revenues and expenses.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the governmental and business-type activities of the
City and it’s discretely presented component units at year-end.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of
the City's governmental activities, for each identifiable activity of the business-type activities of the City and for
each major component unit. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and therefore
clearly identifiable to that particular function.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly connected
with the functional program, A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions of a fund or
summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinet functional
activity. Program revenues incluode: (1) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the
City's services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted
investment income;, and (3} capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or
rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses.
For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the determining factor for charges for services is which
function generates the revenue. For grants and contributions, the determining factor is to which functions the
revenues are resiricted.

Taxes and other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues of

the City. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental
function and each identifiable business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 -~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements - During the vear, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund
financial statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more detailed level. Fund
financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns with composite columns for
non-major funds. The internal service funds are presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund
statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Accounting - The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The City uses three categories of funds: governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically
are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for
which they may or must be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be
liquidated. The City reports the difference between governmental fund assets plus deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources as fund balance. The following are the City's
major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund. The general fund balance is available to the City for any purpose provided it is
expended or transferred according to the general laws of Georgia.

Capital Projects Fund - Capital Project Fund is used to help maintain or improve the City’s assets such as
new construction, expansion, renovation, or replacement of existing facilities, facilities and/or equipment.
T-SPLOST Fund - Transportation Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (TSPLOST) Fund accounts for
the revenues and capital outlays for transportation purposes only.

City Hall Fund - City Hall Fund accounts for the construction revenues, construction expense and debt
service that relate to the construction of the New City Hall Complex.

Praprietary Funds - Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes
in net position, financial position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as either enterprise or
internal service, The following are the City’s major enterprise funds.

Water and Sewer Fund — This fund provides water and sewer services to City residents.
Electrie Fund - This fund provides electrical services to City residents.

Proprietary Funds- Non Major Funds:

Solid Waste Fund — This fund provides sanitation services to City residents.

Storm Water Fund — This fund provides storm water services to City residents.

Internal Service Fund — The internal service fund accounts for the operation and administration activity of
the motor transport and I'T programs of the City.

Fidueiary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position. The City’'s fiduciary funds include
pension trust funds and an agency fund. The pension trust fund provides pensions to City employees and
City elected officials. The agency fund collects municipal court fines and forwards them to the general fund.
The agency fund is custodial in nature (assets equal habilities) and does not involve measurement of results
of operations.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
I-C. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. All assets plus deferred outflows of resources and all liabilities plus
deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of the City are included on the statement of net position.
The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses.

Fund Financial Statements - All povernmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included
on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports the sources (i.e.,
reveries and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial
resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide
financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with
brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the governmental
fund statements.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow
of economic resources measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets plus deferred outflows of
resources and all liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the statements of net position. The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position
present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net position. The statement of cash flows provides
information about how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities,

1-D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. At the fund
reporting level, governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting and fiduciary funds use the accrual
basis of accounting. Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting at both reporting levels. Differences in
the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred
revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified
accrual basis, revenue is recorded when the exchange takes place and in the calendar year in which the resources are
measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year
or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current calendar year. For
the City, the phrase “available for exchange transactions” means expected to be received within 60 days of year-end.

Revenues - Non-exchange Transactions - Non-exchange transactions in which the City receives value without
directly giving equal value in return, include sales tax, property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from sales tax is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place. Revenue from property
taxes 1s recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied, (Note 3-B). Revenue from grants and donations
is recognized in the calendar year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use
is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to be used for a specified
purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis.
On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions also must be available (i.e., collected within 60
days subsequent to year end) before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual:
property taxes, sales taxes and federal and state grants.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Uneuarned Revenue - Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied.

Deferved Inflows of Financial Resources - The government fund financial statements, revenues are deferred in
flows for:

. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met (e.g., cash advances)

. Property taxes receivable not collected within 60 days of year-end.

Deferred Qutflows of Financial Resources — The government fund financial statements, assets are deferred out
flows for:

. Prepaid items paid before services are rendered or the City becomes obligated.

. Investments earnings that will be used to pay future liabilities.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recogmized at the time they are incurred,
if measurable. On the modified accrual basis, expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred and due, if measurable.

1-E. Assets, Linbilities and Fund Equity

1-E-1. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand and time deposits as well as
short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City. Cash and cash

equivalents are reported on balance sheets, statements of net position and in cash flow statements.

Cash balances of most City funds are pooled and invested. Interest earned from investments purchased with pooled
cash is allocated to each fund based on the fund's average equity balance in the pooled fund.

Investments - The City is authorized by the City charter and Georgia statutes to invest in:

. Obligations of the State of Georgia or of any other states,

. Obligations of the United States Government,

. Obligations fully insured or gnaranteed by the United States Government or United States Government
Agency,

. Obligations of any corporation of the United States Government,

. Prime bankers’ acceptances,

. The State of Georgia local government investment pool (i.e., Georgia Fund I},

. Repurchase agreements,

. Obligations of the other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia,

Assets of the City's pension plans are invested in accordance with Georgia statutes. These statutes authorize the City
to invest these assets in:

. Obligations of the United States Treasury or its agencies and instrumentalities,

. Bonds of the State of Georgia and its agencies, instrumentalities and political subdivisions,

. Certificates of deposit of national or state banks that are fully insured or collateralized by United States
obligations,

. Common stocks,

. Money market instruments, and

. Corporate bonds and debentures, which are not in default as to principal and interest,

Investments of the City are stated at fair value based upon quoted market prices.
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For the City’s pension plan, securities traded on the national securifies markets are valued at the last reported sales
price on the last business day of the fiscal year. Investments traded in the over-the-counter market and listed
securities for which no sale was reported on that date are valued at fair value determined by the trustee on the last
reported bid and asked prices. Short term investments, corporate bonds, U.S. Govemment agency obligations and
corporate stock are reported at fair value as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

I-E-2, Receivables
All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectables, where applicable,
1-E-3. Interfund Balances

On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-tenm interfund loans are classified as
"interfund receivables/payables." These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities
columns of the statement of net position, except for any net residual amounts due between govermmental and
business-type activities, which are reclassified and presented as internal balances,

I1-E-4. Consumable Inventories

On the government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at a moving average cost basis and are
expensed when used (i.e., the consumption method).

On the fund financial statements, inventories of governmental funds and proprietary funds are stated a moving
average cost basis. For all funds, cost is determined on a first in, first out basis. The cost of inventory items is
recorded as an expenditure in the governmental fund types when consumed. Inventories of the proprietary funds are
expensed when consumed.

1-E-5. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the year ending June 30, 2019, are recorded
as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and reflecting the
expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed. At the fund reporting level, an equal amount of
fund balance is stated as non-expendable, as this amount is not available for general appropriation.

I-E-6. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.
Restricted assets in the governmental funds relate to specific programs for which cash is restricted for vse by the
donor or the nature of the program, debt service payments and for capital projects.

1-E-7. Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds. These
assets generally result from expenditures in governmental funds or contributions. The City reports these assets in

the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net position but does not report these assets
in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by proprietary funds are reported both in the
business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net position and in the proprietary fund’s
statement of net position.
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All capital assets are capitalized at cost {or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received. The City
maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The City’s infrastructure consists of roads, bridges, storm sewers,
traffic islands, street lights, traffic signals and street signs. Improvements to capital assets are capitalized. The costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are
expensed. Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets utilized by the enterprise funds is capitalized,
less the amount of interest earned during the same qualifying period.

The City has elected not to capitalize works of art and historical treasures based on its policy that these items are not
held for financial gain, they will be preserved and any proceeds from the sale of the items will be used to acquire
other collections.

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land, right-of-ways, water rights and construction in progress.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for
infrastructure were estimated based on the City’s historical records of necessary improvements and replacement.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Governmental Enterprise

Description Activities Activities KEPB
Land improvements 10-25 years 10-25 years -
Buildings 20-50 years 20-50 years -
Building improvements 20 years 20 years -
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years 5-20 years 7 years
Furniture and Fixtures 3-8 years 3-8 years 3-8 years
Vehicles 5-15 years 5-15 years -
Infrastructure 25-50 years 10-50 years -

1-E-8. Compensated Absences

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are eamed if the employees’ rights to receive compensation
are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for
the benefits through paid time off or some other means.

All compensated absence liabilities include salary-related payments, where applicable.

The total compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds
report the total compensated liability in each individual fand at the fund reporting level. Governmental funds report
the compensated absence liability at the fund reporting level oniy “when due.”

1-E-9. Workers’ Compensation

The reserves for claims are determined when a probable loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. The reserves are conservatively estimated with no inferest imputed in determining the amount
of the claims or reserves (Note 4-A).

The total workers’ compensation liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds

report the total workers’ compensation liability in each individual fund at the fund reporting level. Governmental
funds report the workers’ compensation liability at the fund reporting level only “when due.”
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
1-E-10. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations
All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in
full from cwrent financial resources, are reported as obligations of these funds, Bonds and capital leases are
recognized as liabilities in the governmental fund financial statements “when due.”

I-E-11, Bond Premiums, Discounts, Issuance Costs and Bond Refunding Gains and Losses

On the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary fund type statement of net assets, bond
premiums and discounts are netted against bonds payable. On the government-wide and proprietary fund type
statement of activities, bond premiums and discounts, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method and bond refunding gains and losses are reported as deferred inflows or outflows of
resources and amortized over the shorter of the life of refunding debt or the refunded debt using the straight-line
method. Bond issuance costs are recognized as current expenses in the reporting period in which they are incurred.

At the government fund reporting level, bond premiums and discounts are reported as other financing sources and
uses, separately from the face amount of the bonds issued. Bond issuance cosis are reported as debt service
expenditures.

I1-E-12. Fund Equity (See Note 3-K})

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance.” Fund equity for all
other reporting is classified as “net position.”

Fund Balance — Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current liabilities.
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in
those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:

. Nonspendable - Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash) or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

. Restricted — Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City Council or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

. Committed — Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific
purposes, pursuant to consiraints imposed by formal action of the City Council through the approval
of a motion to adopt an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year. Only, the City Council may
modify or rescind the commitment by adopting another ordinance to remove or revise the limitation
as passed.

. Assigned —~ Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the City’s
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Through resolution,
the City Council has authorized the City manager or designee to assign fund balances.

. Unassigned - Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the balances do
not meet any of the above criterion. The City reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the
general fund, Negative unassigned fund balances may be reported in all other funds.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Flow Assumptions — When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for

expenditures incurred, it is the City’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they are
needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City’s policy to use fund balance in the following order:

. Committed
. Assigned
. Unassigned

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used (i.e., the amount that the City
has not spent) for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City
or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. All other
net position are reported as unrestricted.

1-E-13. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary funds.
For the City, these revenues are charges for water and sewer, electric, storm water and sanitation services.

Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that are the primary activity of each
fund. All other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating including investment earnings, withdrawals
from the Municipal Competitive Trust, interest expense and the gain or loss on the disposition of capital assets.

I1-E-14. Contributions af Capital

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of capital assets
{e.g. developers), and grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

1-E-15. Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in the
purchaser funds. On the government-wide statement of activities, the exchange transactions between the internal
service funds and the user funds are eliminated. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a
requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing
sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revemies/expenses section in proprietary funds.
Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are
not presented on the financial statements.

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statement of activities are
reported as general revenues. Transfers between funds reported in the governmental activities column are
eliminated. Transfers between funds reported in the business type activities column are eliminated.

I-E-16. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may
differ from those estimates.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
1-E-17. Pensions

For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions and pensions expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City of East Point Employees
Retirement Plan (the Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (inciuding refunds of
employee contributions are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefits terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

1-E-18. Comparative Data/Reclassifications

Comparative data for the prior year have been presented throughout the financial statements in order to provide an
understanding of the changes in the financial position and results of operations.

I1-E-19. Correction of an error

The City restated its previously reported net position for governmental activities as of June 30, 2018. The
restatement resulted from a calculation error in the reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position. The amount of $68,711,569 was restated to $69,866,388.

Note 2 Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

2-A. Budgetary Information

The City adopts an annual operating budget for all governmental funds except the capital projects fund, which have
an adopted project budget. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP with the exception of the capital
projects funds, which have project length budgets, rather than annual budgets. The City adopts budgets for its
enterprise funds and internal service fund, however, the reporting of the budget to actual comparison is not required.
The legal level of control {the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each adopted
annual operating budget generally is the department level as defined in the adopted budget, within each individual
fuond. The City manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within a single department from one line to another.

Any change in total to a fund or departmental appropriation within a fund requires approval of the City Council.

The original 2019 budget was amended during the year. All unexpended annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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2-B. Encumbrances.
As discussed in note 2-A, Budgetary Information, Budgetary basis of accounting, encumbrance accounting is utilized

to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash
planning and control. Encumbrances outstanding at year end is as follow:

General fund 3 8,045,861
Capital Projects funds 7,874,302
T-SPLOST funds 2,862,823
Nonmajor governmental funds 3.449.998

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds
3-A. Depaosits and Investments

Deposits - State statutes require banks holding public funds to secure these funds by FDIC insurance, securities
pledged at par value, and surety bonds at face value in combined aggregate totaling not less than 110 percent of the
public funds held.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — the custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure,
the City’s deposits or the securities collateralizing these deposits may not be recovered.

The City limits its custodial risk by requiring deposits to be collateralized in accordance with state law. As of June
30, 2019, the City was not exposed to custodail credit risk.

Georgia Fund 1, created by OCGA 36-83-8, is a stable net asset value investment pool which follows Standard and
Poor’s criteria for AAA rated money market funds. However, Georgia Fund 1 operates in a manner consistent with
Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and is considered to be a 2a-7 like pool. The pool is not
registered with the SEC as an investment company. The pool’s primary objectives are safety of capital, investment
income, liquidity and diversification while maintaining principal {($1.00 per share value). Net fair value is calculated
weekly to ensure stability. The pool distributes earnings (net of management fees) on a monthly basis and
determines participant’s shares sold and redeemed based on a $1.00 per share value. The fair value of the City’s
position in the pool is the same as the value of pool shares ($1 per share value). The regulatory oversight agency for
Georgia Fund 1 is the Office of State Treasurer,

Funds included in this Pool are not required to be collateralized.

The fair value of the City’s position in the pool approximates the value of the City’s pool shares. Credit risk, value,
and interest risk at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Credit Risk Value Interest Risk
AAA rated hY 3,445 26 day WAM

The City classifies its investments in Georgia Fund I as cash and cash equivalents,
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Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Also, the Keep East Point Beautiful deposits and the East Point Business and Industrial Development Authority’s
deposits were covered either by FDIC coverage or were entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by the
component units’ agent in the component units’ name.

Investments (Governmental and Enterprise Funds)

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment

maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from volatility of interest rates.

June 30, 2019, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Maturity Period
Investment Type Fair Value Under 30 days
Money Market Funds $ 21,096,787 % 21,096,787

Because of the maturity date, the investments above have been reported as cash equivalents in the accompanying
financial statements.

Credit Quality Risk — Credit quality risk is that an issuer or other counter-party to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City’s investment policy does not address credit risk. The above money market funds are rated
(13 ! ! ! .!!

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank or investment firm failure, the
City’s investments may not be recovered. The City’s investment policy does not address custodial credit risk

Concentration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the
City’s investment in a single issuer. The City does not have a formally adopted investment policy for managing
concentration of credit risk. The only investments in excess of 5% of the City’s investment portfolio are federal
securities and money market funds,

Deposits (Pension Trust Fund)

Plan assets are to be invested in investment authorized by the Georgia Public Retirement Systems Investment
Authority Law, OCGA 47-20-80. Those investments include obligations of the U.S Treasury or Agencies and
instrumentalities, collateralized mortgage obligations, asset and mortgage back securities, taxable bonds that are
obligation of any state and its agencies, instrumentalities, and political subdivisions, and in certificates of deposit of
national or state banks that are fully insured, or collateralized by United States obligations, additionally, the plan is
authorized to invest in common stocks, money market instruments, and corporate bonds and debentures, which are
not in default as to principal and interest.

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an insurer or other party to an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the
plan. Stale law limits investment to investment grade securities.

For equity investment, the decision as to individual security selection, security size and quality, number of industries
and holdings, current income level, tumover, and other tools employed by equity investment managers are left to
each manager’s discretion, except that investment in micro-cap stocks (those securities with market capitalization
less than $100 million) are prohibited.
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For fixed income investments, decisions as to individual security selection, turnover, number of industries and
holdings and the other tools employed by fixed income investment managers are left to each manager’s discretion,
subject to the standards of fiduciary prudence. The minimum quality rating of each fixed income security in any
separate account portfolio is to be BAA or better.

At December 31, 2018 the Plan had $90,019,892 invested in the type of investment as categorized by credit risk,

Credit
Investment Fair value Quality
United States Treasury notes and bonds $ 2,582,829 AAT+
United States government agencies 540,375 AA+
Corporate bonds 216,792 AAA
Corporate bonds 145,500 AA+
Corporate bonds 74,316 AA
Corporate bonds 411,374 AA-
Corporate bonds 869,279 A+
Corporate bonds 3,618,746 A
Corporate bonds 3,693,575 A-
Corporate bonds 58,209 BB+
Corporate bonds 2,775,491 BBB+
Corporate bonds 2,288,376 BBB
Corporate bonds 2,085,784 BBB-
Mutual Funds 19,747,421 Not rated
Core real estate property fund 14,010,369 Not rated
Preferred stock-domestic 5,685,567 Not rated
Common stock - domestic 30,240,097 Not rated
Comumon stock - foreign 975,792 Not rated

§ 90.019.892
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Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely

affect the fair value of an investment. At December 31, 2018, the Pension Trust Fund had the following
investments and maturities;

December 31, Total Duration
Investment Type 2018 Investment (Years)
U.S. Treasury notes and bonds b 2,582,829 287 % 5.68
U.S. governiment agencies 540,375 0.60 15.56
Corporate bonds 16,237,442 18.04 5.7
Mutual funds 19,747,421 21.94 -
Preferred stock - domestic 5,685,567 6.32 -
Common stock - domestic 30,240,097 33.59 -
Common stock - foreign 975,792 1.08 -
Core real estate property fund 14.010.369 15.56 -
Total § 90,019,892 100 %

Custodial Credit Risk - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counter-party, the Plan will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2018, the Plan was not exposed to custodial credit risk with respect
to its deposits or investments,

Concentration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that may be attributed to the magnitude
of government’s investment in a single issue. The Plan is generally not authorized to hold more than 5% of plan
assets in the securities of any individual security or in the securities of a single cooperate issue. Individual asset
managers may hold positions above 5% so long as the aggregate holding across asset managers does not exceed 5%
of Plan assets. At December 31, 2018, the Plan was not exposed to concentration of credit risk

Foreign Curvency Risk — At December 31, 2018, the Plan had no exposure to foreign currency risk. The plan’s
investment foreign stock of $975,792 represents U.S dollars invested in the stock of foreign companies,
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Fair Value Measurement

At December 31, 2018, the Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements, broken into the fair value

hierarchy as of December 31, 2018:

Investment Level 1 Level 2 Total
United States government issues 2,582,829 540,375 3,123,204
Corporate bonds 11,918,750 4,318,692 16,237,442
Mutual funds 19,747,421 - 19,747,421
Equity securities 36.901.456 - 36.901.456
3 71.150.456 % 4.859.067 § 76,009,523
Invesiments recorded at net asset value (NAV):
Core real estate property fund 14.010.369

90.019.892

$———-——--J_m.——

Debt equity and mutual fund securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted
in active markets for those securities. Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using a matrix pricing technique. Mairix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities relationship to
benchmark quoted prices. Level 3 pricing is based on best available information, including primarily unobservable
inputs and assumptions market participants would use in pricing. The Plan has no investments classified as Level 3.

In addition to the three levels discussed above, if an investment does not have a readily determined fair value, the
investment can be measured using net asset value (NAV) per share {or its equivalent). Investments valued at NAV
are categorized as NAV and not listed as Level 1, 2, or 3.

The Plan invests in a core real estate property fund - the JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund. This fund invests in
core real properties seeking to realize capital appreciation on its portfolio while also generating a high level of
current income. This fund makes strategic property acquisitions primarily in the United States. As part of JP
Morgan's valuation process, independent appraisers value properties on an annual basis (at a minimum). The fund is
valued at NAV monthly.
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Cash and investment reconciliation at June 30, 2019:

Cash and
Cash Equivalents Investments Total
Fund Level Reporting:
Governmental Fund Type - Statement of Net Position
Unrestricted 3 18,763,696 § b 18,763,696
Restricted 28,363,203 28,363,203
Proprietary Fund Type - Statement of Net Position
Enterprise Fund
Unrestricted 27,297,399 27,297,399
Restricted 21.147.172 21.147.172
Total Fund Level $__ 95571470 § $ 95.571.470
Fiduciary Fund Type - Statement of
Fiduciary Net Position - Restricted as of
5 10.995.665 $ 90.019.892 §_ 101.015.557

December 31, 2018

3-B. Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2019, consisted of taxes, accounts (billings for user charges) and intergovernmental

receivables arising from grants.

Receivables and payables are recorded on the City’s financial statements fo the extent that the amounts are
determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable,
systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and in the case of receivables,

collectibility.

The City's individual major funds and nonmajor funds consist of the following:

Fund/Receivable, by type
General Fund
T-SPLOST fund

Nonmajor governmental funds

Water and sewer fund
Electric fund
Nonmajor enterprise funds

Total

3-C. Property Tuxes

$35.404350 $4.227.248

Net

Taxes Grants Utility Other Allowance Receivables
$5,475976 § 948,284 § - $1,409,688 § (1,095,195) $ 6,738,753
- 523,790 - - - 523,790
18,374 2,755,174 - 473,261 - 3,246,809

- - 4,816,927 - (2,769,439) 2,047,488

- - 8,647,028 - (4,501,159} 4,145,869

- - 2.076.026 - (938.817) 1,137.209

R

$5.539.981 $1.882949 § (9.304610) $_17.839.918

Property taxes for the June 30, 2019 fiscal year were levied on October 15, 2018, based on property values assessed
as of Januvary 1, 2018. The taxes were billed December 13, 2018 and were payable within 60 days of the billing
date. An interest penalty of 10% per annum is charged on property taxes not paid within 90 days of the due date.
Property taxes become an enforceable lien on April 15, 2019,
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3-D. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents consumption of net position that
applies to a future period (s) so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then,
The City reports the deferred outflow of resources ($0) on funding reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. The deferred outflow of resources resulted from the difference in the net pension investment earnings and
the refunding of carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  The amounts are deferred and
amortized over five year period for the difference in the net pension investment earnings, and the shorter of the life
of the refunded debt.

Deferred outflows:

Governmental Enterprise Total
Pension Liability $ 5914516 $ 2285278 § 8,199,794
OPEBR Liability 1.663.591 659.885 2.323.476
Total $ 7,578,107 § 2945163 § 10,523.270

In addition to labilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred mflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period (s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The City reports two of these items, These amounts also are reported on the government-wide statement of net
position.

These amounts are deferred and recognized as deferred inflows of resources in the period that the amount becomes
available. The amounts reported on the government-wide statement of net position relate to pension and debt related
transactions.

These amounts are reported as follows:

Deferred inflows:

Governmental Enterprise Total
Pension Liability 3 577,525 § 223,147 % 300,672
OPEB Liability 640,913 599,894 1,240,807
Refunding of Debt - 1.498.862 1.498.862
Total 5 1.218.438 § 2321903 §___ 3540341
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3-E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 for governmental was as follows:

Balance Retirements Balance
Asset Class 6/30/18 Additions Reclasses 6/30/19
Governmental activities:
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land b 7,093826 § - $ - $ 7,093,826
Construction 10.684.176 5.919.938 (7.634.377) 8.969.737

b 17,778,002 § 5919938 §_ (7.634.377) $__16.063.563

Depreciable capital assets:

Land improvements 7,256,054 - (13,361) 7,240,693
Buildings 14,896,882 12,569,604 6,972,830 34,439,316
Furniture 739,899 085,703 - 1,725,602
Machinery and equipment 18,442,076 1,248,058 411,511 20,101,645
Vehicles 19,226,314 315,731 - 19,542,045
Infrastructure 70.105.335 549.403 250.036 70.904.776
Total depreciable capital assets 130.666.560 15.668.501 7.619.016 153.954.077
Total capital assets 148,444,562 21,588,439 {15.361) 170,017,640
Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 3,911,358 263,720 11,376 4,186,454
Buildings 7,597,802 820,879 (14,894) 8,403,787
Furniture 726,942 108,601 - 835,543
Machinery and equipment 15,959,570 789,866 (72,964} 16,676,472
Vehicles 13,645,906 555,011 - 14,200,917
Infrastructure 27.482.277 1,121.825 83,560 28.687.662
Total accumulated depreciation 69.323.855 3.659.902 7.078 72.990.835
Govermmental capital assets, net h) 79120707 § 17.928 537 $ (22.439) $ 97.026.805
Governmental
Funds
General Government $ 896,209
Public safety 1,058,566
Public works 1,458,703
Culture and recreation 246.424

Total governmental activities
depreciation expenses $__ 3.666.980

51



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

The following are the changes in the capital assets for the City’s three enterprise funds and the internal service fund:

Business-type activities
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Construction in progress

Total nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements
Building and other structures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total depreciable capital assets

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements
Buildings and other stnictures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Capital asset activity for the component units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

East Point Business and Industrial
Development Authority
Nondepreciable:
Assets held for resale
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and machinery and equipment

Total capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and machinery and equipment

East Point Business and Industrial
Development Authority Capital Assets - Net

Balance Reclassification
6/30/18 Additions Deletions 6/30/19
$_ 3040254 $_ 3231810 § (21,828) % 6,250,236
$_ 3040254 $_ 3.231.810 3 (21.828) % 6,250,236
1,779,368 - - 1,779,368
142,987,429 1,327,326 - 144,314,755
12,932,844 1,520,315 21,828 14,474,987
11.612.283 563,253 - 12.175.536
169.311.924 3.410.894 21.828 172.744.646
172.352.178 6.,642.704 - 178.994 882
213,439 177,936 - 391,375
76,536,655 3,649,380 - 80,186,035
8,189,026 424,681 - 8,613,707
5.106.285 760.474 - 5,866,759
90.045.405 5.012.471 - 95.,057.876
§ 82306773 $_ 1630233 % - $_ 83937006
Balance Balance
6/30/18 Additions Deductions 6/30/19
5 428000 $ - - $ 428,000
36.136 - - 36.136
464.136 - - 464.136
36,136 - - 36,136
h 428.000 §$ - - 3 428.000
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Keep East Point Beautiful
Capital assets being depreciated:

Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Keep East Point Beautiful
Capital assets, net

Balance Balance
6/30/18 Additions Deductions 6/30/19
$ 69,456 § - h) - 3 69,456
69.456 - - 69.456
5 - $ $ - $ -

3-F. Intferfund Balances and Transfers

Interfund balances at June 30, 2019, consisted of interfund loans between funds for cash flow purposes and the
reclassification of cash overdrafts in the City’s cash and investment pocl.

Due From Due To
Capital City Nonmajor Water Nonmajor Intemal
General Project Hall Gov't Sewer Electric Enterprise Service
Funds Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
General Fund 3 - 52220585 % 54204421 % - b - § 940477 § 77272 § 7442755
Capital Projects Funds - - 2,085,668 - - 1,140,171 109,182 - 3,335,021
City Hall Fund - - - - - - - - -
Nonmajor Government Funds 62,606 497,325 - 118,312 - 1,137,292 - 3,662 1,819,197
Water and Sewer Fund 643,039 - - - - 311,934 479 72,019 1,027,471
Electric Fund 305,916 - - - 58,707 985,880 7,390 87,888 1,445,781
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 95,989 - - - - 12,990 64.168 19,530 192.677
Total $ 151071550 52717910 $2.085.668 §$4,322.733 § 58707 53588267 $_ 1121696 $26037) §15.262,902
Interfund transfers For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019, consisted of the following:
Transfers In
Nonmajor
General Capital Projects Governmental
Transfers out Fund Fund Funds Total
General fund 5 - 3 - S 1,683,320 $ 1,683,320
Nonmajor governmental funds 1,966,158 4,232 887 1,310,773 7,509,818
Electric fund - 2.732.882 - 2.732 882
Total $ 1,966,158 § 6,965,769 § 2.994.093 § 11,926.020
o

Transfers are used to report revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to expend them and unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations; to segregate money for
anticipated capital projects; to provide additional resources for current operations and to return money to the fund
from which it was originaily provided once a project is completed. More specifically, the transfer from the nonmajor
governmental funds to the general fund costs of the hotel/motel taxes collected in the hotel/motel tax fund.

All City transfers either occur on a regular basis or are consistent with the purpose of the fund making the transfer.
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Changes in Long-term Debt - Changes in the City’s governmental activities long-term obligations consisted of the
following for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 is as follows ( net of premiums of $1,023,100):

Governmental Activities

Revenue bonds:
Intergovernmental agreement
Limited obligations bonds:

Series 2015 Tax Allocation bonds-CC
Series 2015 Tax Allocation bonds-Corr

Series 2017 GMA COPS
Subtotal bonded debt reported

Net unamortized premiums and
discount
Total bonded debt reported

Capital leases
Compensated absences
Workers' compensation
Other-Utility credit payable
Net OPEB obligation

Net pension obligation

Total Governmental Activities

Qutstanding

Outstanding

Account Due

6/30/18 Additions Reductions 6/30/19 in One Year
5 678,271 § “ $ 76003 % 602,268 § 78,360
11,610,000 - 2,640,000 8,970,000 2,550,000
1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 -
12,835,000 - 30,000 12.805.000 100.000
26,323,271 - 2,746,003 23,577,268 2,728,360
1.089.169 - 64.069 1.025.100 64.069
27412 440 - 2.810.072 24 602,368 2.792.429
59,243 - 28,766 30477 30,477
1,386,821 103,414 122,069 1,368,166 120,000
202,115 240,462 329,231 113,346 90,000
300,000 - 120,000 180,000 120,000
19,394,171 2,291,795 433,461 21,252,505 465,400
14.569.242 10.902.582 5.658.819 19.813.005 -
g 63.3242032 $13.538.253 $9.502418 $67.359.867 $3.618.306

The general fund has been used historically to liquidate net OPEB and compensated absence liabilities

Change in the City’s business-type activities long-term obligations consisted of the following For the Fiscal Year

Ended June 30, 2019:

Business-type Activities
Limited obligation bonds:

2017 Building Authority revenue

refunding bonds

Net unamortized premiums and
discount

Total bonded debt reported

Net OPEB obligation
Net pension obligation
Capital leases

Total Business-type Activities

Outstanding Qutstanding  Amount Due
6/30/18 Addition Reductions 6/30/19 in One Year
§ 40975000 § - §_4.700.000 $36.275.000 S$__ 4.885.000
40,975,000 - 4,700,000 36,275,000 4,885,000
4.595.424 - 270319 4.325.105 270.319
45,570,424 - 4,970,319 40,600,105 5,155,319
8,531,962 909,063 171,932 9,269,093 184,600
4,451,655 6,672,095 3,468,308 7,655,442 -
2.255.027 940.808 1.354.323 1.841.512 1,051,759
$_00.809.068 $_8.521966 309964882 $59.366.152 $_ 6.391.678
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3-G. Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities Bonds and Capital Leases - The following is a summary of the outstanding long-term
bonds and capital leases at June 30, 2019:

2015 Tax Allocation Bonds (Camp Creek) — In 2015, the City issued tax allocation bonds, Series 2015, in the
amount of $13,925,000 with an average coupon rate of 3.71%. Debt service payment for the Series 2015 Bonds are
payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year with principal maturing February 1, 2026.

Annnal debt service requirements to amortize this debt, as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

August 1. Principle Interest Total

2020 $ 2,550,000 % 175,812  § 2,725,812
2021 1,265,000 123,955 1,388,955
2022 1,330,000 92.330 1,422,330
2023 1,400,000 59,080 1,459,080
2024 1,440,000 38.080 1,478,080
2025-2026 985.000 15.760 1.000.760
Total 3 8970000 $ 505.017 % 9475017

2015 Tax Allocation Bonds (Corridor} In November 20135, the City issued tax allocation bonds, for the Corridors
TAD Projects, in the amount of $1,200,000 at an interest rate of 5.125% debt service payment for the Series 2015
Bonds are payable on August 1% of each year with principal maturing August 1, 2040.

Annual debt service requirements to amortize this debt, as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2020 b - 3 61,500 § 61,500
2021 - 61,500 61,500
2022 - 61,500 61,500
2023 - 61,500 61,500
2024 - 61,500 61,500
2025-2029 - 307,500 307,500
2030-2034 - 307,500 307,500
2035-2039 - 307,500 307,500
2040-2040 1.200.000 30,750 1.230.750
Total o 1200000 S 1,260,750 § 2,460,750

2011 Building Authority Revenue Bonds — In 2011, the City issued revenue bonds in the amount of $1,150,000 at
an interest rate of 6.1%. The purpose of the bonds is to purchase property known as “the Wachovia Bank Building”
and make needed renovations. Semi-annual principal installments are made in decreasing amounts with principal
maturing December 1, 2025. There is an intergovernmental agreement between the City and the East Point Building
Authority.
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Annual debt service requirements to amortize the revenue bonds, as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 78,360 §$ 34921 % 113,281
2021 80,790 20,911 110,701
2022 83,295 29,911 113,206
2023 85,878 19,606 105,484
2024 88,540 14,244 102,784
2025-2026 185.404 11.570 196.974
Total 5 602,267 § 140,163 § 742.430

2017 GMA City Hall Project Certificate of Participation- On November 20, 2017, the City issued $12,835,000
Georgia Municipal Association, Inc. Installment Sale Program Certificate of Participation (COPS) (City of East
Point City Hall Project), Series 2017, to be used to construct a new city hall. The COPS will be payable from fiscal
years 2019 through 2035 with interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%.

Annual debt service requirements to amortize this debt, as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2020 § 100,000 % 548,725 § 648,725
2021 100,000 545,725 645,725
2022 110,000 542,725 652,725
2023 115,000 538,325 653,325
2024 120,000 533,725 653,725
2025-2029 1,730,000 2,499,625 4,229,625
2030-2034 2,070,000 2,146,938 4,216,938
2035-2039 2,455,000 1,772,538 4,227,538
2040-2044 3,010,000 1,208,750 4,218,750
2045-2048 2.995.000 383,500 3.378.500
Total k) 12.805.000 ¥ 10.720.576 3 23,525,576

In December 2015, the City and Fulton County Board of Education (*the Board”) entered into an agreement to
purchase property located on Norman Berry Drive, East Point, Georgia. The purchase price was $600,000. The City
and the Board entered into an intergovernmental agreement whereas, in lieu of cash, the City will issue a “Utility
Credit” of $10,000 per month for 60 months commencing January, 2016 against the Board’s utility billings from the
City. The outstanding balance of utility credits due to the Board as of June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Year Utility Credit Amount

2020 July 2019-June 2010 b 120,000
2021 July 2020-December 2020 60.000
Total 5 180.000
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Capital Leases — The City has entered into numerous lease agreements relative to its governmental activities with
Kansas State Bank. The following equipment and improvements were included in these capital leases:

Lease Lease Lease Initial

Number Date Purpose Interest Lease
48 September 22, 2016 Five Trucks 5.95% 5 118.140
Total 5 118.140

Annual debt service requirements to amortize the capital leases as of June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 30477 % 1.813 § 32,290
Total ) 30477 § 1.813 § 32.290

As of June 30, 2019, the gross amount of capital assets under capital leases for the city’s governmental activities is
$118,140 and the related accumulated depreciation is $58,124.

Business-type Activity Debt — The City reports three building authority debt issuances and a variety of capital leases
for business-type activities:

2017 Building Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds — On May 3, 2017, the City issued revenue refunding bonds in

the amount of $46,055,000 at an interest rate ranging from 2% - 5%, to fund a water and sewer project. The
purpose of advance refunding was to refund $39,295,000 of Series 2006 A Revenue Bonds (Water and Sewer
Project) and $10,325,000 of Series 2007 Revenue Bonds (Water and Sewer Project), to purchase a municipal bond
insurance policy relating to the Series 2017 Bonds and to pay certain costs of issuing the Series 2017 Bonds. The
Series 2017 bonds have varying semi-annual principal and interest payments due (February 1 and August 1)
commencing August 1, 2017 through February 2035. The refunding transaction resulted in aggregate debt service
savings of $7,781,356 and an economic gain (net present value of the aggregate debt service savings) of $6,022,698.

Annual debt service requirements to amortize this debt, as of June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2020 ¥ 4,885,000 3§ 1,639,881 § 6,524,881
2021 1,535,000 1,395,631 2,930,631
2022 1,565,000 1,364,932 2,929,932
2023 1,645,000 1,286,681 2,931,681
2024 1,695,000 1,237,331 2,932.331
2025-2029 9,825,000 4,828,656 14,653,656
2030-2034 12,330,000 2,329,863 14,659,863
2033 2.795.000 139.750 2.934.750
Total 3 36.275.000 $ 14222725 § 50.497.725
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Capital Leases - The City has entered into numerous lease agreements relative to its business-type activities with

Koch Company and Kansas State Bank. The following equipment and improvements were included in these capital
leases:

Lease Lease Lese Interest Lease
Number Date Purpose Rate Amount

44 March 22,2016 Automated Side Loader 2.49% b 204,016
45 March 22,2016 Freightliner R Load Truck 2.49% 123,228
46 March 22,2016 Five Leaf Trucks 2.49% 887,490
47 March 22,2016 Vacuum Truck 2.49% 287,293
48 March 22,2016 Bucket Truck 2.49% 531,627
49 March 22,2016 Bucket Truck 2.49% 603,432
50 June 1, 2016 Bucket Trucks 2.49% 408,982
51 July 1, 2017 Bucket Trucks 5.32% 69,700
52 July 1, 2017 Three Trucks 2.72% 1,080,500
53 December 8§, 2017 Two Sanitation Trucks 3.02% 557,181
54 July 1, 2017 Freightliner R Load Truck 532% 364.078

Total 5 5117.527

Annual debt service requirements for these capital leases payable as of June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Fiscal

Year Principal Interest Total

2020 3 1,185,051 & 67,224 % 1,252,275
2021 490,857 29,372 520,229
2022 218,131 13,358 231,489
2023 76.923 4615 81.538
Total $ 1,970.962 % 114569 § 2,085,531

As of June 30, 2019, the gross amount of capital assets under capital leases for the City’s business type of activities
is $5,117,527, and the related accumulated depreciation is $826,600.

The general fund services the governmental activities Building Authority bonds and capital leases. The tax
allocation bonds are being serviced by the tax allocation district funds 2015 Camp Creek and 2015 Corridor. The
business-type activities revenue bonds are serviced by the water fund and the business-type activities capital leases
are being serviced by the water and sewer, electric, solid waste and the storm water funds. Compensated absences
are being paid by the fund in which the employee works, primarily the general fund, the enterprise funds and the
internal service fund. The liabilities for worker’s compensation and claims are being paid by the general fund.

Arbitrage Rebate — The arbitrage rebate liability is treated as a claim or judgment upon occurrence, on all City
obligations. Certain City long-term debt obligations are subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 148, which
requires that interest earned on proceeds from the issuance of tax-exempt debt be rebated to the Federal government
to the extent that those earnings excesd the interest costs on the related tax-exempt debt. At June 30, 2019, the City
has no arbitrage rebate liability on any of its tax-exempt debt issuances.
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3-I Pension Plan

The City provides pension benefits to its employee through the City of East Point Employees Retirement Plan (the
Plan)., The Retirement Committee for the Employees of the City of East Point administers the Plan. The City’s
general fund shall be required to liquidate any net pension obligation or make up any deficiencies when benefit
payments are due. The cost of administering the Plan is primarily paid by investment earnings.

The City’s pension is part of the City financial reporting entity and is therefore, included in this financial statement
as a pension trust fund. Furthermore, the City issues publicly an available financial statement report for the Plan. The
report may be obtained by writing to the City Clerk’s office at the following address:

City of East Point, 2757 East Point Street, East Point, Georgia 30344

Plan Description — The Plan is a single employer, contributory defined benefit pension plan. Effective July 1, 1998,
the Plan covers all City employees employed prior to April 1, 1992. Also, effective July 1, 1998, the City
established an additional class of eligible employees or class 5 for employees hired subsequent to March 31, 1992,
These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and City ordinance.

Benefits vast differently for each class of employee. The Plan defines each class as follows:

. Class 1 -transferred from old plan on June 19, 1975.

) Class 2 - general employees and elected officials hired before April 1, 1992

. Class 3 - police and fire emplovees hired before April 1, 1992

. Class 5 - Eligible full-time employees hired on or after April 1, 1992 (Mayor and City Council).

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Vesting for each class is as follows:

. Class 1 - vesting begins after 8 years of service. {closed)
. Classes 2 and 3 - vesting begins after 10 years of service,
. Class 5 - police and firefighters - vesting begins after 10 years of service, elected officials -

vesting begins after 5 years of service.

Normal retirement ages and years of service required in order to receive benefits for each class are as follows:

. Class 1 - Age 50 and 8 years of service (closed plan).

. Class 2 - Age 65 and 10 years of service; if elected official, age 60 and 5 years of service.
o Class 3 -  Age 55 and 10 years of service,

. Class 5-  Age 65 (55 for police officers and firefighters) and 10 years of service; if

elected officials, age 60 and 5 years of service.

Early retirement is allowed for Class 2 and Class 3 employees if they are 50 years of age and have 10 years of
service. The benefit payable immediately is the accrued benefit reduced by 3% for each year retirement precedes
normal retirement date. Class 5 participants may retire as early as Age 35 (50 for Police Officers and Firefighters)
with ten years of credited service using the applicable percentage. The Plan also provides death and disability
benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and City ordinance.

Fund Membership - At January 1, 2018, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, there were 834 participants
respectively, consisting of the following:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 344
Terminated members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 26
Current active employees vested 174
Non-vested 294
Total 838

Funding Policy — The coniribution requirements of plan members and the City are established in accordance with
the applicable pension law. The City's funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions at
rates that, for individual employees, increase gradually over time so that sufficient assets will be available to pay
benefits when due. The City is currently contributing 58.3% of covered payroll and the active participants are
contributing 6% of their base pay.

Net Pension Liability — The net pension liability (NPL)} is the difference between the “Total Pension Liability”
(TPL) and the Plan’s “fiduciary net position” {(FNP). The TPL is the present value of pension benefits that are
allocated to current members due to past service by entry age normal actuarial cost method. The TPL includes
benefits related to projected salary and service and automatic cost of living adjustments (COLA). In addition, ad hoc
COLA are also included in the TPL to the extent they are substantively automatic. The FNP is determined on the
same basis used by the pension plans. The City’s NPL was measured on December 31, 2018 and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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Net Pension Liability:
Measurement Date December 31, 2018
Total Pension Liability $ 128,727,519
Fiduciary Net Position 101,259.072
Net Pension Liability b 27.468.447
Plan Fiduciary Position as a Percentage for Total Pension Liability 78.66 %

A schedule of Net Pension Liability, in addition to the information above, (beginning with FY 2018} and is presented
in the Required Supplementary Information section on page 73.

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability - Changes in the City’s net pension liability presented below are
calculated on the same basis as each of the plans. The Change in Net Pension Liability for the Plan For the Fiscal
Year Ended December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Total Pension Plan Net Pension
Liability Position Liability
(a) (b (a)-(b)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 3 2,846,462 § - $ 2,846,462
Interest 9,111,728 - 9,111,728
Benefit changes - - -
Difference in expected and actual experience 1,596,897 - 1,596,897
Changes in assumptions 2,602,205 - 2,602,205
Contributions - Employer - 9,127,127 9,127,127}
Contributions - Member - 1,265,307 (1,265.307)
Net investment income - (2,420,856) 2,420,856
Refund of Contributions (1,031,489) (1,031,489 -
Benefits paid (8,969,433) (8,969,433) -
Plan administrative expenses - (261.834) 261.834
Net changes 6.156.370 (2.291.178) 8.447.548
Net pension liability, beginning 122.571.149 103,550,250 16.020.899
Net pension liability, ending 3 128.727.519 §__ 101.259.072 § 27.468,447

Pension Expense — The pension cost For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 is $4,976,884. The
governmental activities column reports pension cost of $3,589,826 and the enterprise funds report $1,387,058.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the City would contribute the actuarially required contribution in
the future. Based on those assumptions and considering the Plan's net position as of December 31, 2018, the Plan's
net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through 2116. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.75%)} becomes the
discount rate and thus is applied to all projected future benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following table presents the net pension
liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.75%, as well as what the City's net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower (6.75%) or one-percentage-point
higher (8.75%) than the current rate:

6.75% 1.75% 8.75%

City's net pension liability b 41,607,690 § 27,468,447 § 15,553,142

Schedule of Deferred Cutflows and Inflow of Resources - Deferred outfiows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources by source reported by the City at June 30, 2019 for the pension plan are as follows:

Deferred outflows Deferred inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experiences 5 1,260,708 § 800,672
Changes of assumption 2,054,372 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on plan investment 4.884.714 -
Net deferred outflows and inflows 5 8.199.794 § 800,672

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions at June 30,
2019 will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred outflows Deferred inflows
Year ended June 30, of Resources of Resources
2020 $ 2,097,708 § -
2021 978,052 -
2022 1,570,413 -
2023 2,753,219 -
2024 - -
Total $ 7399392 § -
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Actuarial Assumptions Used to Calulate the Net Pension Liability

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2018, with updates performed by
the actuary to roll forward to the total pension liability measured as of December 31, 2018. The following actuarial
assumptions apply to all periods included in the measurement:

Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Salary increases 3.50%, including inflation

Inflation 2.25%

Mortality The rates of mortality for the period after service retirement are

according to the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Tables for males and
females, Projected AA to the valuation date.
Cost of Living Adjustment The yearly percentage increase of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) of
{Class 1-3) the most recent November CPI reading, with maximum increase of 3%.

The long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution analysis in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included
in the Plan's target asset allocation as of December 31, 2018, are summarized as follows:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate Rate of Return
U. S. Large Cap Equity 350 % 4.92%

U. S. Small/Mid Cap Equity 20.0 % 5.71%

U.S Direct Real Estate 10.0 % 4.19%
Pfds/Converts 15.0 % 2.75%

U.S Aggrepate Bond 20.0 % 1.99%

Total 100.0 %

Defined Contribution Plan

The City’s 401 Govemmental Money Purchase Deferred Retirement Plan (the “Deferred Plan™) is a defined
contribution plan which is administered by ICMA-Retirement Corporation. Employees at the director level are
eligible to participate in the deferred plan. The deferred plan participants can contribute a maximum of 6% of their
annual salary with matching contribution of (6%-12%) made by the City depending on the number of years of service
of the employee. The General Council of the City established and can amend the deferred Plan. At June 30, 2019
there were 9 participants in the deferred Plan with employees and employer contributing $56,607 and $85,131,

respectively.
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3-J. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

The City of East Point Retiree Healthcare Plan (the “Healthcare Plan™) is a single-employer defined benefit
healthcare plan which provides Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to eligible retirees, dependents and their
beneficiaries.

The City Council have the authority to establish the benefit provisions and may amend them as necessary . The
Healthcare Plan was established by legislative acts and functions in accordance with existing City laws. OPEB of
City retirees includes health, dental, and vision care and life insurance. Separate financial statements are not prepared
for the Healthcare Plan.

At June 30, 2018, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the OPEB had 249 retired participants and beneficiaries
receiving benefits. The OPEB had a total of 422 active participants.

In June 20135, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions (OPEB). GASB Statement No. 75 establishes standards for the measurement, recognition and
disclosure of OPEB expenses and related liabilities and is effective for the Board for the year ended June 30, 2019,
This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended.

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the employees
of state and local governmental employers. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring
liabilities, deferred outflows of rescurces, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined
benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit
payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to
periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about defined
benefit OPEB also are addressed.

In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with payables to
defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the specified criteria and for employers
whose employees are provided with defined contribution OPEB. This Statement also addresses certain circumstances
in which a nonemployer entity provides financial support for OPEB of employees of another entity.

In this Statement, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements depending upon whether the OPEB
plans through which the benefits are provided are administered through trusts that meet the following criteria:

»  Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the OPEB plan and earnings on those
contributions are irrevocable.

s OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with the benefit terms.

s OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing entities, the
OPEB plan administrator, and the plan members,

Funding Policy — The City has not advance-funded or established a funding methodology for the annual OPEB costs
or to retire the net OPEB obligation. The City Council is the authority that sets the contribution rates for active
employees and retirees. Active employees do not contribute and retirees pay approximately 40% of the premium.
The balance of the premium is paid by the City. The City covers the cost of administering the plan.
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Schedules of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Annual OPERB Cost and Tota! OPEB Obligation — The following table includes the City’s annual OPEB cost for
the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation:

6/30/19

Service cost $ 047,883
Interest 083,394
Difference between expected and actual experience 3,320,675
Changes of assumptions (2,051,093}
Benefit payments (605,393)
Other -

Net change in net OPEB obligation 2,595,466
Total OPEB obligation, beginning of year 27.926.132
Total OPEB obligation, end of year 3 30.521.598

The governmental activities column reports a net OPEB obligation of $21,252,505 and the enterprise funds report
$9,269,093 net OPEB obligation.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial acorued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations.

The actuarial valuation involves estimates of the value of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events or far into the future. Examples include assumptions of future employment, mortality and health
care cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The City’s actuarial valuation information is as follows:

Current Valuation Date June 30, 2018
Actuarial Assumptions:
Inflation 2.25%
Salary increases, including wage inflation 3.50%
Municipal Bond Index Rate
Prior Measurement Date 3.56%
Measurement Date 3.89%
Health Care Cost Trends
Pre-Medicare 7.25% for 2018 decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.75%
by 2028
Post-Medicare 5.375% for 2018 decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.75%
by 2022
Dental 4.00%

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the health care cost trend rates - The following presents the
total OPEB liability for the City’s plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the City’s total OPEB
liability would have been if it were calculated using a health care cost trend that is 1-percent-point lower and 1-
percent-point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
City's total OPEB liability $ 26,066,680 § 30,521,598 3 36,204,987
Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the total OPEB
liability for each of the City’s plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability

would have been if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percent-peoint lower and 1-percent-point higher
than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
2.89% 3.89% 4.89%
City's total OPEB liability $ 36,029,566 § 30,521,598 § 26,176,297
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Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflow of Resources - Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources by source reported by the City at June 30, 2018 for the OPEB plan are as follows:

Deferred outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience  §$ 2323475 % -
Changes of assumptions or other inputs - (2.331,556)
Total § 2323475 § {2.331.556)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB benefits at
June 30, 2018 will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Measurement Period Ended June 30:

2019 b (158,754)
2020 24,849
2021 125,814
2022 -

2023 -
Thereafter -

Total kY (8.091)

3-K. Fund Equity

Fund Balances — Fund balances are classified as follows:

. Nonspendable — The following fund balances are nonexpendable because they are not in expendable
form:

General Fund:

Prepaid $ 941,931
Inventories 1.431.431
Total § 2.373.362
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. Restricted — The following fund balances are legally restricted to specified purposes:

Governmental Funds:

Major Funds:
T-SPLOST $ 7,780,561
City Hall 414.704
Subtotal Major funds 8,195,265
Nonmajor Funds:
Capital projects 6,837,739
Tourism 454,682
Debt service 7,776,053
Public Safety 2.131.945
Subtotal Nonmajor fumds ' 17.200.419
Total 3 25.395.684

Net Investment in Capital Assets

The “Net investment in capital assets” amount as reported on the government-wide statement of net position as of
June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Business
Governmental Type

Net investment in capital assets Activities Activities
Cost of capital assets $ 170,017,640 § 178,994,882
Less accumulated depreciation (72,990.835) (95.057.876)
Book value 97,026,805 83,937,006
Less capital related debt- Bonds (23,577,268) (36,275,000)
Less capital related debt - Capital Leases (30,477) (1,841,512)
Less capital related debt - Utility Credits (180,000) -
Less capital related debt - Contract Retainage (664,103) {92,173)
Add unspent bond proceeds 3,005,739 3,360,842
Less premium on bonds {1.025.100) (4.325.105)
Net investment in capital assets $ 74,555.596 % 44.764 058
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4-A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. The City established a fully self-
insured program for workers’ compensation (See below) whereby any claims exceeding $500,000 are paid through a
private insurance carrier, and the City through a third-party administrator pays any others.

According to the General Assembly of the State of Georgia, Section 36-33-1 of the official Code of Georgia
Amnotated, as amended, municipal corporations {i.e. the City of East Point), via sovereign immunity, shall be
immune from liability for damages for actions based upon tort, but not contract. This immunity is still subject to
actions brought based upon federal constitutional or statutory rights. The City carries liability insurance for the types
of claims and in amounts that are customary for similar entities for those categories of claims not subject to the
defense of sovereign imumunity. The City maintains commercial property and casualty insurance for property
damage, earthquake, or flood damage. The various City assets consisting of its mechanical systems, computers, and
other equipment is insured for over $3,000,000, subject to limits for the individual asset types.

The City has purchased liability insurance for its general liability, its automobiles, its employees, public safety
officers, public officials, and a blanket fidelity bond. Performance surety bonds and builders’ risk insurance is
required of all contractors and subcontractors involved in the construction and renovation of municipal facilities or
assets. Any surety bonds are to be issued by firms having a rating of “A” or better by A.M. Best & Co. and builder’s
risk insurance must equal the sums of the contract.

There has not been a significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year. Settlement claims have not

exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three (3) years.

The following represents the changes in approximate liabilities for workers’ compensation from
July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2019:

Beginning of End of
Fiscal Year Claims and Changes Claim Fiscal Year
June 30, Liability in Estimates Payments Liability
2017 $ 222,060 3 383,216 $ 331,984 % 273,292
2018 b 273318 % 245975 § 317,178 § 202,115
2019 $ 202,115 § 240,462 § 329231 % 113,345

4-B. Commitments

Construction Commitments - As of June 30, 2019, the City has made the following construction commitments
outstanding:

Project

Total To-date Remaining Remaining
Contractor Contract Expenditures Commitments Percentage
D.A. Edwards & Company $ 3253000 $% 2,921,508 % 331,492 10.5 %
Tantalus Systems 2,513,311 1,444,201 1,069,110 342 %
Tantalus Systems 1,352,213 1,277,003 75,210 2.4 %
Winter Johnson Group 13.976.143 12.329.773 1.646.370 327 %
Total $__21.004667 $_ 17972485 § 3122 182 100 %
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Contract Commitments - Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia — The City has entered into a power sales
contract with the Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia (MEAG). The contract requires the City to purchase from
MEAG all of the City's bulk power supply, other than power supplied by Federally-owned generation projects.
MEAG is authorized to establish rates and charges so as to produce revenues sufficient to cover its costs. The City's
future minimum payment obligations to MEAG will be based on MEAG's costs and the City's vearly demand for
bulk power supply. The City's payment obligations under this contract are general obligations for which the City's
full faith, credit and taxing powers are pledged. In order to continue to purchase from MEAG, the City is
contingently liable for MEAG liabilities in the event of a default by MEAG. The City is current on all of its
obligations to MEAG for power sales contracts.

Subsequent amendments to the MCT allowed the City and other participants to withdraw funds (covering the period
from January 2009 through December 31, 2018) from the Credit Support Operating Account and the Flexible
Operating Account. The sum of these accounts is reported in the City’s Electric Utility Fund with the balance at
June 30, 2019 of $17,735,946. Funds within the Reserve Funded Debt account may be withdrawn only pursuant to
the terms of the MCT agreement as amended; however, due to the restricted nature of the withdrawals from this
account, it is not recorded in the Electric Utility Fund’s financial statements. The balance in the account as of June
30,2019 was $177,175

Contract Commitments - TSPLOST Intergovernmental Agreement - In 2016 the State of Georgia passed Senate
Bill 369 authorizing counties fo consider a Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax for transportation purposes
(TSPLOST). On July 18, 2016, the City of East Point, Georgia approved the resolution to enter into an
Intergovernmental Agreement with Fulton County (the County) for the use and distribution of proceeds by the
Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Referendum for transportation purposes (TSPLOST). On November §,
2016, voters approved the referendum to allow the County to impose a .075 percent Metropolitan County
Transportation Special Purpase Local Option Sales Tax. The funding is to be generated from within Fulton county,
outside of the City of Atlanta. The tax collection begun on April 1, 2017 and will last no more than 5-vear, until
March 30, 2022 or when the maximum amount of $655 million is reached. Fourteen municipalities are participants
in the TSPLOST Interpovermmental Agreement for the Use and Distribution of TSPLOST Proceeds with
approximately $40 million estimated at Tier 1, 2 & 3 for the City of East Point. Funds collected can only be spent to
transportation improvements, such as roads, bridges, sidewalks, bicycle paths and other transportation-related
purposes included in the legislation. Each city is responsible for managing and implementing its approved projects
list. See page 137 for the schedule of TSPLOST projects:

4-C. Contingent Liabilities

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. After consideration of applicable insurance policy
coverage, and the relative merits of each claim or lawsuit, it is the opinion of the City Attorney and City
Management that the potential nltimate liability resulting from these actions, if any, will not have a material adverse
financial effect on the City.

The City is a plaintiff in action against Fulton County, Georgia alleging breach of contract and duties relative to
agreements entered into by the parties for the construction, maintenance, operation and expansion of a sewage
treatment plant intended to serve all parties. According to the plaintiffs, the agreements set forth provisions for
sharing the cost of construction of the plant and methods for allocating operations and maintenance costs, At some
point subsequent to executing the agreements, the County, according to the complaint filed by the plaintiffs, assumed
sole ownership rights to the plant, subsequently sold excess capacity to other municipalities within the county and
billed the plaintiffs under methods inconsistent with the proportional use of the facility.
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The plaintiffs are seeking declaratory judgment on several issues, including that the various agreements entered into
by the parties are valid and enforceable contracts; that the County wrongly sold portions of the plant to other
municipalities; that the County has improperly billed the plaintiffs; that they are entitled to shares of the monies
received from the other municipalities utilizing the plant and that the percentages used in allocating operations and
maintenance costs should be adjusted due to the additional users of the plant. The City is currently pursuing
settlement negotiations.

4-D. Joint Venture

The City participates in the following joint venture.

Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) — Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other counties and cities
within the metropolitan Atlanta area, is a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC), the Regional
Commission (RC) for the metropolitan Atlanta area. By agreement with the ARC, dues for cities within Fulton
County, outside the City of Atlanta, are paid by Fulton County on a per capita basis. Also by agreement with ARC,

Board representation for cities within South Fulton County is determined by the mayors of the cities in south Fulton
County. The mayor of East Point is not the South Fulton County representative on the ARC.

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Georgia laws also provide that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of an RC beyond its
resources (0.C.G.A. 50-8-39.1).

Separately issued financial statements are available at the ARC’s administrative office, 40 Courtland Street, N.E.,
Atlanta, Georgia 30303,

4-E. Related Organization — The City has a limited relationship with the following organization:

Housing Authority of the City of East Point — The Housing Authority of the City of East Point (the “Housing
Authority”) is considered a related organization and not incorporated into the reporting entity. The Housing
Authority is a legally separate entity from the City, having a board composed of members originally appointed by the
mayor of the City. The City is not able to impose its will upon the Housing Authority and a financial burden/benefit
relationship does not exist between them. Therefore, based on these criteria, the Housing Authority 15 a related
organization. The Housing Authority issues separate financial staternents.

Atlanta Housing Authoerity — the City Council appoints one member of the Atlanta Housing Authority and that is the
extent of their involvement.

4-F. Hotel-Motel Lodging Tax

On April 18, 2011 the City passed an ordinance 003-11 to amend part 5, chapter 1, article B, section 5-1052 of the
City’s code in accordance with O.C.G.A. 48-13-51 effective July 1, 2011, to increase the lodging tax from 3% to
8%. The City has contracted with the Atlanta Airport District Destination Marketing Orpanization, Inc as a
destination marketing organization (“DMO”) to meet the expenditure requirements of Section 48-13-51(e) of the
0.C.G.A. The City shall expend the proceeds of the tax imposed as follow:

. City’s General fund 3.0%
. City’s Tourism development projects (facilities) 2.0%
. Tourism, convention and trade promotion contract with the DMO 1.5%
. Tourism and trade promotion projects 1.5%

During the fiscal year the City collected $5,250,434 and transferred $1,966,158 to general fund, $1,310,773 to the
government fund for the construction of a tourism facility to host concerts, seminars and meetings, $4,232.887 to
capital projecis fund and paid $983,079 to the DMO. The balance of the remaining funds is used to cover other
approved tourism projects and remains in the Hotel-motel fund until expended.

4-G. Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated events, activities and transactions subsequent to the balance sheet date through December
13, 2019 (the date the financial statements were made available to be issued) for potential recognition or disclosure

in the financial statements. Management has identified no events that required adjustment and disclosure in the
financial statements that were issued on December 13, 2019.
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Total Pension Liability
Service Cost

Interest on total pension liability
Benefit Changes

Difference in expected and actual experience

Change of assumptions

Benefit payments

Refund of Contributions

Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)
Plan Net Position

Contributions - employer

Contributions - member

Net investment income

Benefit payments

Administrative expenses

Refunds of contributions

Net Change in plan in Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b}

Net Pension Liability - ending (a)-(b})

Plan Net Position as a Percentage of the total

Pension Liability
Covered Employee Payroll

Net Pension Liability as Percentage of
Covered Employee Payroll

Note to the Schedule:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
$ 2,846,462 § 2,437,624 S 2,385,490 § 2,154952 5 2,121,348
9,111,728 9,188,599 9,085,741 8,977,933 8,790,749
- 703 - - -
1,596,597 (372,584) (1,068,659) (1,486,574) -
2,602,205 - . . -
(8,969,433) (8,148,374) (7,948,806) (7,818,041) (7,653,160)
(1.031.489) (1.467.896) (689.950) (514.762) (1.074.881)
6,156.370 1,638,072 1.763.814 1,313,508 2,184,056
122,571,149 120,933,077 119,169,260 117.855.752 115,671,696
128.727.519 122,571,149 120,933,076 119.169.260 117,855,752
$ 9,127,127 8 8,628,709 § 8,674,036 § 9,504258 § 9,178,327
1,265,307 1,189,472 1,356,521 1,126,534 1,056,133
(2,420,836) 13,702,310 8,210,957 (471,734) 5,165,761
(8,969,433) (8.148,374) (7.948,806) (7,818,041 (7,653,160)
(261,834) (275,589) (250,881) (257.170) (263,308)
(1.031.489) (1.467.896) (689.950) {514.762) (1.074.881)
(2,291,178) 13,628,632 9,351,877 1,569,085 6,408,872
103.550.250 89.921.618 80.569.741 79,000,636 72,591,784
S 101259072 S 103.550250 § 80921 618 § 80.569.741  $__ 79.000.656
$ 27468447 5 19.020.899 § 31011458 § 38.599.519 $_ 38.855.096
18.66 % §4.48 % 74.36 % 67.61 % 67.03 %
20.545,000 19,192,214 20,956,203 20.777.687 19,748,540
133.70 % 99.11 % 147.98 % 185.77 % 196.75 %

The schedule will present 10 year of information once it is accumulated

73



PL

04 € JO OSEOIOUL WnWIXEW Yym “FUIPBEAL [{) J9GUIDAON] JUSI2] SO D)
Jo (14D) xapu] 95114 soeunsuo?) 9y Jo asealow afejusotad LLmeal oy
uoneyul Suipnjaut ‘ssuadxa

watsaauy ueid vorsuad Jo 30U o6/,

uone[uL JUIpnRUL ‘4406°¢

YT

123JeW paLoows Jgak ¢

sk 9

P3S0[2 “JR}|OP [2AD]

[euLion 98y Anpug [enpiaipu]

810z ‘1 Asmnuef

(-1 sseD)
waunsnlpy Surary jo 1500

LN JO 98I JUSIIISIAU]
SOSBOIOUL Alg|eg

uonRu]

POYISWI UDTIRDYBA JOSSY

pouad uonezisowe Surliewy
POYiaW uoneZIKoWY

POYIOUE 1500 [ELIBNJOY

B UOHEN[RA

ISUOHRGLNLOD PIUTULSISP A][RLIENIDE JO SUONBTIZ[RD UT PASN suolduinsse pue spoysiy o)

04,677 O SIDQUIAW ¢ pUR 7 ° ssed

1oy padueyo seam JuauYsnPY SuAr] J0 1507) patunsse s ‘910z | Aenuer aayoayrg suondwnssy jo safueyn) ‘q

-age jo sso|paedal 2014198 Jo sieak ua) Jo

uoya|duon nodn pajsaa ANy o1e SIDQUIAW ¢ pUE § SSB[D) ‘£107 | AIBNURF 2ANDOYT Suils) jiyausq Jo safuey) v

ISUOHNGLIJI0.) JO ANPAYIS 31} 03 SHION]

2% 05°6T % T6'PE % LTLE % 9T % 90'bS % TT1S % S6'TS % YT SE % 96'b¥ % Pty Trexiud aafojdwd paasaos yo
afeyuaaaad 8 se suonnqLne)
956'SFTLI & SPG'IVL'BL S GPS'ILP'BIS  669°0T6'81 §  PSL'TELLIS 185°0T6°LI S O80°GPGLT §  ETEILIGI S FITT6I61 §  600°SHSOT § lioxfed 2adojdura pasaaa)
- $ - $ - $ 00071 S - $ - S - $ - T < - ¢ (ssoaxa} Asugkotjop uonnquo)
PHOTLS0E TILFEET RLOPI8 G 11.°601°8 TI95356 LTEBLT 8CT Y056 CERZR] 6073208 L[TIIZ1 G uonngLuod 1akofctud fenjoy

PPOL80'C & TIL'PEE'0 $ SLOPRRO S I1L°001°% S 1186856 S LTL'BLI6 §  WST'BOS'E §  OLOPLOR §  60L°8TO8 §  LTILTIG § uonNqLIUOI
PouILINGp Aj[rURNDY

600% 107 F{TT4 10z [STiT 102 STz o107 8102

BI0T “1€ T2GUIDIDQ PiLY AEd X ) 0]
UE[J FUIWIAAIIY
SUGHINALIILO JO ANPIYIG
uonrurtagu] Lamyuawapddag panabay

VIOAO0ED ‘INIOd LSVA 40 ALID



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liabilty
June 30, 2019

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB liability- A 10 year schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related
ratios are shown in the following table. Only the initial years are displayed. Additional years will be added in the
future.

6/30/19 6/30/18
Normal cost 3 047883 § 1,160,443
Interest on normal costs 983,394 847,850
Difference between expected and actual experience 3,320,675 -
Changes of assumptions (2,051,093) (1,976,437
Benefit payments (605,393) (546,988)
Other - -
Net change in net OPEB obligation 2,595 466 (515,132)
Total OPEB obhligation, beginning of year 27.926.132 28.441.264
Total OPEB obligation, end of year 3 30.521.598 § 27.926.132
Covered-employee payroll b 19,568,580 § 19,192,214
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 15597 % 145.51 %

Per the criteria in GASB No. 75, paragraph 4, no assets are accumulated in a trust to pay related benefits for The City's OPEB
plan.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Required Supplementary Information
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Variance With

Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budset Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Taxes $ 26,038,836 § 28,986,878 § 28,986,879 § 1
Licenses and permits 2,529,150 2424873 2,424,573 (300)
Charges for services 872,500 860,780 1,121,498 260,718
Fines and forfeitures 1,001,750 1,310,169 1,310,169 -
Investment earnings - - 2,756 2,756
Miscellaneous 868.060 868.060 798.012 (70,048)
Total Revenues 31,310,296 34.450.760 34.643.5887 193.127
Expenditures
Current:

General governments

City Council 773,346 836,807 807,681 29,126

Executive 2,804,200 2,868,403 2,766,101 102,302

Administrative 7,729,523 8,032,847 6,620,457 1,412,390

Less Cost Allocations to Utilities (R,945,194) (8,945,194) (8,945,194) -
Judicial 867,721 935,451 830,449 105,002
Public safety

Police and code enforcement 14,013,987 14,991,823 13,995,469 996,354

Fire 7,799,160 7,939,158 7,323,819 615,339

Public works 1,662,634 1,753,203 1,703,098 50,105
Culture and recreation 1,515,074 1,498,004 1,348,377 149,627
Economic and community development

Comumnunity Services 1,357,848 1,344,064 1,284,955 59,109

Economic development 725,327 713,323 647,177 66,146
Debt Service: - - - -

Total Expenditures 30.303.626 31.967.889 28.382 389 3.585.500
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 1,006,670 2,482,871 6,261,498 3,778,627
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of capital lease - - - -
Transfer in 1,966,135 1,788,691 1,966,158 177,467
Transfer out (2,518,986) (2,860,516) (1,683,320) 1,177,196
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - §8.705 -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (552.851) {1,071.825) 371.543 1,354,663
Net Change in Fund Balances 5 453819 § 1.411.046 6,633,041 § 5,133.290
Fund Balances Beginning of Year 19.024. 450
Fund Balances End of Year $ 25.657.491

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund

Comparative Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 18,413,255
Receivables:
Accounts 1,409,688
Property taxes 4,380,780
Intergovernmental 048,284
Interfund 7,442,756
Component units 175,528
Inventory 1,431,431
Prepaid items 941,931
Total Assets $ 35,143,653
Liabilities Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,829,588
Accrued expenditures 1,058,609
Interfund payable 1,107,549
Deposits payable 313,280
Tax anticipation notes payable -
Total Liabilities 4.309.026
Deferred Inflows 5.177.136
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 9.486.162
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 2,373,362
Unassigned 23.284.129
Total Fund Balances 25,657.491
Total Liabilities Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances $ 35,143,653

77
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$ 10,318,112
1,398,896
3,180,197

905,960
7,393,053
175,528
1,203,357
67.381

h 24.642 484

3 1,373,252

525,491
170,148

2,068,891
3.549.143

5.618.034

1,270,738
17.753.712

19.024.450

3 24.642.484



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

Economic and community development

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal

Total Expenditures

Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Inception of capital lease/other
Transfer in
Transfer out
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

2019
by 28,986,879
2,424,573
1,121,498
1,310,169
800.768

34.643.887

1,249,045
830,449
21,319,288
1,703,098
1,348,377
1,932,132

28.382.389

6.261.498

88,705

1,966,158
{1.683.320)

371.543

6.633.041

19.024.450

b 25.657.491

18

2018

26,043,772
2,636,731
625,815
1,509,018
1,055.398

31.870.734

2,633,651
754,868
18,029,521
1,491,090
1,264,767
1,539,726
895,828

26.609.451

1,817.469
(5.003.485)

(3.186.016)

2.075.267

16.949.183

19.024 450




Revenues:
Taxes
Property
Real property
Current
Motor vehicle tax
Mobile home
Intangibles
Personal property
Public utility
Real estate transfer tax
Delinquent:
Current year
Prior year
FIFA

Total Property taxes

Franchise taxes:

Electric

Gas

Cable Television

Telephone
Local option sales and use tax
Alcoholic beverage excise tax
Excise tax car rentals
Local option mixed drink tax
[nsurance premium tax

‘Total Franchise taxes
Total Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Comumunity Services:

Business licenses
Alcohol licenses
Cccupational licenses
Administrative fec
Building permits
Electrical permits
Heating permits
Plumbing permits
Zoning pernits
Land disturbance
Penalty
Interest
Other

Total Licenses and Permits

Total carried forward

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Actual

$ 8,550,000 § 10,257,276 % 9,086,675 % (1,170,601} § 8,173,608
400,000 400,000 641,124 241,124 623,559
1,000 1,000 913 {(87) 641
195,000 195,000 271,985 76,985 277,683
2,000,000 2,000,000 2,286,374 286,374 1,889,724
190,000 150,000 706,366 516,366 39,105
125,000 125,000 126,805 1,805 159,229
75,000 75,000 145,270 70,270 88,950
125,000 125,000 247,609 122,609 82,032
50.000 50.000 41,579 (8.421) (16.578)
11.711,000 13.418.276 13.554.700 136,424 11.318.013
300,500 300,500 272,493 (28,007) 297,120
195,000 195,000 227,446 32446 206,912
360,000 360,000 269,817 (90,183) 348,195
325,000 325,000 113,656 (2£1,344) 139,522
10,200,000 11,427,581 11,427,581 - 10,788,633
521,336 521,336 468,746 (52,590} 500,059
1,000 1,000 1,417 417 1,310
200,600 200,000 234,000 34,000 202,811
2,223,000 2,238.185 2417.023 178.838 2.241.197
14.327.836 15,568,602 15,432,179 (136.423) 14.725.759
26,038 836 28.986.878 28.986.879 I 26.043.772
- - 23,100 23,100 26,500
215,000 142,000 142,000 - 225,550
775,000 715,000 834,081 59,081 815,359
250,000 250,000 259,692 9,692 261,540
900,000 868,723 777,327 (91,396) 817,543
90,000 90,000 59,434 (30,566) 88,565
40,000 40,000 37,88¢ 2,111 57,147
45,000 45,000 49,068 4,068 48,189
25,000 25,000 29,170 4,170 38,570
150,000 150,000 174,503 24,503 211,168
8,200 8,200 8,015 (185) 7,941
5,200 5,200 5,938 738 10,328
25.750 25750 24.356 (1.394) 28331
2.529.150 2.424 873 2.424.573 (300) 2.636.731
5 28.567.986 § 31411751 § 31411452 § {299) 28.680.503
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Brought Forward

Revenues:
Charges for Services
General govermment

Election qualifying fees
Rent SW Creek Park,
Bad check fees
Cell tower rental
Clerk's office
Bus shelter revenue
Public administration
Services
Reimbursements
Probation office
Telephone commission
Prisoner housing
Fire administration
Fire Marshall fee
Fire recovery
Public works
Erosion inspection
50 Worst Propertics-Reimbursement
Parks and recreation
Program fees
Other

Total Charges to Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Court
Fire restitution
Indigent defense fees

Total Fines and Forfeiturcs
Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous
Rents and royalties
Convenience fees
Recycling fees
Stormwater restricted legal
Sign adveriising
Employee Recognition
Holiday Business Events
Healthy Initiative
Other

Total Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Other Financing Sources:
Inception of Capital lease/other

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers in

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources )

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

s 28.567.986 § 31411751 § 31411452 § (299) % 28.680.503
$ - $ - 5 - $ - s 31918

5,000 - - - -
800 800 245 (555) 315
25,000 25,000 25,955 955 24,037
8,000 8,000 5,372 (2,628) 4,184
9,160 9,100 14,865 5,765 9,060
130,000 130,000 186,360 56,366 121,300
25,000 25,000 155,964 130,964 50,641
8,400 8,400 7,700 (700) 7,700
5,000 5,000 6,511 1,511 6,038
540,000 540,000 607,128 67,128 314,190
4,000 4,000 2,211 (1,789) 4,041
- - 19,268 19,208 4,493

20,000 20,000 - {20,000} -
62,500 62,500 66,903 4,403 73,636
29.700 22 980 22980 - 2.262
872.500 860,780 1.121.498 260,718 625815
1,000,000 1,308,419 1,309,852 1,433 1,508,243
1.750 1,730 317 {1.433) 775
1.001.7590 1.310.169 1.310.169 - 1.509.018
- 1,500 2,756 1,256 2,690
68,000 68,000 [37.645 69,645 92,928
640,000 640,000 657,468 17,468 649,723
7,500 7,500 1,764 (5,736) 18,798
1,600 1,000 1,150 150 871
560 560 240 (320} 1,334
- - 2,000 2,000 15,624
- - 13,592 13,592 3,729
151,000 151,000 (15.847) {166,847) 273,701
868 060 868,060 798,012 (70,048) 1,052,708
31,310,296 34,452,260 34,643,887 191,627 31,870,734

- - 88,705 88,705 -
1,966.135 1.788.691 1.966.158 177.467 1.817.469
33276431 % 36,240951 S 36.698.750 % 457799 § 33.688.203
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General Government:

City Council
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total City Council

Mayor
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total Mayor

City Clerk
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total City Clerk

City Manager
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total City Manager

Legal
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Claims
Supplies

Totak Legal

Stormwater Restricted Legal
Purchased/contacted services

Total Carried forward

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
b 159,782 142,262 § 138,427 § 3,835 % 141,236
116,950 156,877 151,481 5,396 30,198
89.500 158,984 154,127 4.857 42.951
366,232 458 123 444 035 14.088 264385
171,495 171,495 120,902 50,593 74,347
21,650 22,470 19,238 3,232 19,567
1,700 880 562 318 2,275
194.845 194,845 140,702 54.143 96.189
300,193 300,030 294,935 5,095 258,983
103,921 75,654 68,143 7,511 218,364
3.000 3.000 568 2432 1.867
407.114 378.684 363.646 [5.038 479,214
823,997 899,650 883,307 16,343 649,789
288,716 222,563 204,449 18,114 293,997
14.961 14.461 2.611 11.850 10,330
1.127.674 1,136,674 1.090.367 46.307 954.116
458,331 471,034 434,548 36,486 411516
764,150 732,170 770,707 (38,537 1,013,172
242,000 316,480 315,175 1,305 146,109
17,200 17.200 14,602 2.598 14,490
1.481.681 1.536.884 1,535,032 1,852 1.585.287
- - - - 120.000
3,577,546 3,703,210 3.573.782 131.428 3.499 101
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Total brought forward

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

General Government (Continued)

Planning and Zoning
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services

Total Planning and Zoning

Finance and Accounting
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total Finance and Accounting

Property Tax Division
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies
Other Cost

Total Property Tax Division
Purchasing
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total Purchasing

Total Carried Forward

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Buadget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 3577546 % 3705210 § 31,573,782 % 131428 § 3.499.191
17.145 16.288 5,125 11.163 3.950
17.145 16,288 5,125 11,163 3,950
1,226,219 1,264,288 1,119,107 145,181 1,026,408
118,687 118,932 169,665 9,267 62,844
0,750 8.300 1,529 6.771 6415
1.351.656 1.391.520 1,230,301 161,219 1.095.667
153,869 180,527 178,825 1,702 151,199
37,050 48,425 25914 22,511 17,829
1,600 1,600 155 [,445 684
192,519 230.552 204.894 25.658 169.712
587,487 560,497 540,862 19,635 477,508
21,000 29,793 24,190 5,603 11,661
6,100 6,163 (7,947 14,110 15.449
614,587 506,453 557.105 30,348 504.618
$ 5753453 § 5.940.023 § 5571207 § 368,816 § 5,273,138
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Total brought forward

General Government (Continued)
Human Resources

Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Other cost

Total Human Resources

Building and Ground

Personal services
Purchased/contracted service
Supplies

Total Building and Grounds

Administration (non-departmental)
Personal services
Purchase/contracted services
Supplies
Debt service
Indirect cost
Other cost/other Financing source

Total Administration (Non-departmental)
Total General Government

Judicial
Maunicipal Court

Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Capital outlay

Total Municipal Court
Total Judicial

Public Safety
Police

Personal services
Purchased/confracted services
Supplies

Capital outlay

Other cost

Total Police

Totals carried forward

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 39, 2019

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budgpet Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
b 5753453 § 5940023 § 5,571,207 § 363.816 § 5,273,138
5 507,544 § 522,307 % 522,193 % 114 391,026
82,985 80,979 80,979 - 60,432
35,135 16,471 11,988 4,483 20,819
625,664 619,757 615.160 4,597 472 277
1,100,705 1,117,568 926,024 191,544 789,070
438,430 457,130 319,326 137,804 427.464
84.000 87.000 33021 53.979 61,687
1,623,135 1.661.698 1,278.371 383,327 1.278.221
577,000 583,789 477,220 106,569 602,017
1,125,644 1,446,080 1,045,183 400,897 1,117,486
194,000 235,608 235,609 )] 237,953
1,058,173 1,058,173 944 425 113,748 1,168,871
350.000 192.929 27 064 165,865 140.520
3.304.817 3.516.579 2.729 501 787.078 3.266.847
11,307.069 11,738,057 10,194,239 1.543.818 190.290.483
751,331 806,370 715,342 91,028 636,528
111,390 119,581 113,290 6,291 112,507
5,000 9,500 1,817 7,683 5,833
867.721 935451 830.449 105,002 754.868
867,721 935451 830.449 105.002 754 868
11,658,920 11,638,984 11,406,171 232,813 9,491,088
394,242 1,406,133 975,168 430,965 357,262
103,650 115,001 72,567 42434 107,768
12.156.812 13.160.118 12.453.906 706,212 9.956.118
k) 24331602 § 25833626 § 23478594 § 2355032 $__ 21.001.469
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Total brought forward

Public Safety

Jail
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total Jail

Code Enforcement
Personal Services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total Code Enforcement

Fire
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies
Capital outlay
Debt services
Other cost

Total Fire
Total Public Safety

Public Weorks
Highways and Streets

Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Capital outlay

Total Highways and Streets

Roadways and Walkways
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies
Cost allocation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Other cost

Total Roadways and Walkways
Total Public Works

Totals carried forward

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

$ 24331602 3 25833626 3§ 23478594 § 2355032 § _ 21.001.469
$ 1,208,992 § 1,208,992 § 1,131,226 § 77,766 % 1,029,382
84,100 63,630 4,364 59,266 6,369
157.000 157.000 131,719 25281 105,356
1,450,092 1,429,622 1,267,309 162,313 1,141,107
401,083 400,958 273,918 127,040 259,857

- 125 125 - -
6,000 1.000 211 789 1.656
407.083 402.083 274,254 127.829 261,513
7,396,135 7,505,496 7,080,403 425,093 6,156,624
211,415 251,115 177,673 73,442 159,188
191,610 182,547 65,743 116,804 196,894
- - - - 158,077
7.799.160 7.939.158 7.323.819 615.339 6.670,783
21.813.147 22.930.981 21.319.288 1.611.693 18.020. 521
353,796 564,049 563,972 77 440,831
161,840 [11,503 103,855 7,648 29,277
2,666 2,966 781 2,185 2,601
518.302 678.518 668.608 9910 472.709
581,728 637,614 627,088 10,526 486,258
15,213 12,043 7,954 4,089 76,520
153,700 45423 47,048 2,375 106,741
393,691 375,605 352,400 23,205 337,298
- - - - 11,564
1.144,332 1.074.685 1.034.490 43.195 1.018.381
1,662,634 1,753,203 1,703.098 50,105 1.491.090
35.650.571 37.357.692 34.047.074 3310618 30,565,962
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Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Budget and Actual

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 )

Total brought forward

Culture and Recreation
Parks and Recreation Administration
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies
Capital outlay

Total Parks and Recreation - Admin

Park Facilities and Programs

Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Capital outlay

Debt service

QOther costs

Total Park Facilities and Programs
Tetal Culture and Recreation

Economic Development and
Community Services
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies
Capital outlay
Other cost

Total Community Services

Economic Development
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Total Economic Development

Total Economic and Community Development

Totals carried forward

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budgpet Actual (Negative) Actual

35,650,571 5 37,357.692 § 34,047,074 3310618 % 30.565.962
301,655 305,160 395,161 €)) 250,548
2,300 2,300 1,359 041 3227
303.955 397.460 396,520 9340 253.775
871,119 771,614 660,851 116,763 678,583
[81,100 163,830 163,969 (139) 183,348
157,400 158,700 126,897 31,803 148,361
1,500 400 140 260 700
1,211,119 1.100.544 951,857 148.687 1,010,992
1.515.074 1.498.004 1.348.377 149.627 1.264.767
1,087,838 ,160,666 1,155,983 4,683 940,881
224,204 112,903 84,189 28,714 34,183
15,450 36,629 £1,429 25,200 14,743
28,766 28,766 28,766 - 27,151

1,500 5,100 4,588 512 -
1,357,848 1,344.064 1,284,955 59,109 1,016,958
424 837 432,470 424,621 7,849 390,391
207,040 276,374 221,193 55,181 128,974
3.450 4.479 1.363 3.116 3.403
725,327 713.323 647.177 66,146 522768
2083175 2.057.387 1.932.132 125255 1.539.726
39.248 820 40.913.083 37.327 583 3.585.500 33.370.435
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Totals brought forward

Debt Service:
Principal retirement

Fotal Debt Service:

Total Expenditures

Less Cost Allocations to Utilities
Net Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:

Transfer out

Other Financing Uses

Total Expenditures and Gther
Financing Uses

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

{With Comparative Actuzl Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Pasitive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
b 35,248,820 3 40.913.083 $ 37327583 % 3.585.500 § 33,370,455
39.248.820 40,913,083 37.327.583 3.585.500 33,370,455
(8,945,194) (8.945,194) (8.945.194) - {6.761.004)
30.303 626 31,967,889 28,382,389 3.585,500 26.609.451
2.518.986 2860516 1,683.320 (2.274.053) 5.003.485
2.518.986 2.860.516 1.683.320 {2.274.053) 5.003.485
5 32,822,012 % 34,828.405 § 30065709 $ 1311447 $ 31.612.036
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Capital Project Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019
2019 2018

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 - ¥ -
Restricted cash 148,550 -
Intergovernmental receivable - -
Interfund receivable 3.335.021 4.080.911
Total Assets S 3.483.571 5 4080911
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 765,661 b 624,565
Interfund payable 2717910 2.717.910
Total Liabilities 3,483,571 3,342,475
Fund Balance
Resticted for capital projects - 738,436
Unrestricted - -
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 3 3,483,371 L 4.080.911
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Capital Project Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Expenditures 2019 2018
Current:

Capital Outlay b 7,704,205 § 6,911,145
Debt Service:

Total Expenditures 7,704,205 6,911,145

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 6,965,769 8,229,245
Total Other-Financing Sources 6.965.769 8.229.245
Net Change in Fund Balances (738,436) 1,318,100
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 738.436 (5790.664)
Fund Balances End of Year § - $ 738.436
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovermmental - - - - -
Expenditures
Capital Outlay §_12639.726 §_ 13643265 $ 7.704.205 § 5939060 § 6.911.145

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 12,639,726 13,643,265 6,965,769 (6,677,496) 8,229,245
Transfers out - - - - -
Proceeds from bond issuance - - - - -
Issuance cost paid to agent - - - - -
Other Financing Source (Uses) 12,639,726 13.643.265 6,965.76%9 (6.677.496) 8.229.245

Net Change in Fund Balance $ - $ - (738,436) § (738.436) 1,318,100
Fund Balances (Deficit),

Beginning of Year 738.436 (579.664)
Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year b3 - $ 738.436

A s
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Intergovernmental receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance
Restricted for capital projects

Unrestricted

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

T-SPLOST Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019

80

2019 2018
7,505,729 4,874,612
523.790 526,994
8.029.519 5.401,606
248958 283,935
248.958 283.935
7.780,561 5.117.670

$

8.020.519




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
T-SPLOST Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Revenues 2019 2018
Intergovernmental $ 6,257,416 $ 5,904 454
Investment Earnings 4.846 1,492
Total Revenues 6.262.262 5.995.946
Expenditures

Current:

Capital Qutlay 3,599,371 2,251,564
Total Expenditures 3.599.371 2.250,564
Net Change in Fund Balances 2,662,891 3,744,382
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 5.117.670 1,373,288
Fund Balances End of Year $ 7,780,561 5 5,117,670
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T-SPLOST Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Actusl
Revenues
Intergovernmental 5,811,430 5,811,430 6,257,416 “ 5,994,454
Investment earnings - - 4,846 - 1,492
Total Revenues 5,811,430 5,811,430 6,262,262 - 5,995,946
Expenditures
Capital Outlay $ 6.999.859 $__ 6.999.859 3§ 3.599371 §% 3400488 §% 2.251.564
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 1,267,616 1,267,616 - (1,267,616) -
Transfers out - - - - -
Other Financing Source (Uses) 1.267.616 1,267.616 - (1.267.616) -
Net Change in Fund Balance $___(5732243) $__(5.732.243) 2,662,891 $_ 2132872 3,744,382
Fund Balances (Deficit),
Beginning of Year 5.117.670 1,373 288
Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year 3 7.780.561 $ 5,117,670
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
City Hall Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019
2019 018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 5 27,519,387
Restricted cash 3.164.473 10.888.098
$ 3,164,475 3 10,888,098
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Accounts payable $ 664,103 $ 419,132
Interfund payable 2.085.668 -
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 2.,749.771 419,132
Fund Balance
Restricted for capital projects 414,704 10,468,966

Unrestricted - -

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances 3 3.164.475 $ 10.8388.098
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

City Hall Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues

Investment Earnings
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General Government
Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Prinicpal payments
Interest payments

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from bond issuance
Issuance costs paid to agent
Total Other-Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances End of Year

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

94

2019 2018
$ 125.214 $ 69,888
125214 69,888
9.525.382 3.173.115
30,000 -
624.094 -
10.179.476 3,173,115
- 13,924,169
- (331.976)
- 13,572.193
(10,054,262) 10,468,966
10.468.966 -
5 414 704 3 10.468 966




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
City Hall Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Nepative) Actnal
Revenues
Investment Earnings 5 - $ - 5 125214 § - $ (9.888
Total Revenues - - 125,214 - $ 69,888
Expenditures
Capital Outlay $ - 3 - 3 9,525382 § (9.525382y §__ 3173115
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - 30,000 (30,000} -
Interest and fiscal charges - - 624.094 {624.094) -
Total Expenditures 3 - k3 - $ 10.179.476 & (10.179.476) $ 3,173,115
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from bond issuance - - - - 13,924,169
Issuance cost paid to agent - - - - (351.976)
Total Other Financing Source (Uses) - - - - 13,572,193
Net Change in Fund Balance h) - 5 - (10,054,262) $ {9.525.382) 10,468,966
Fund Balances (Deficit),
Beginning of Year 10.468.966 -
Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year 3 414,704 $___10.468 966
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Noamajor Governmental Funds - by Fund Type
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Total
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Governmental
Funds Funds Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ - 3 350,441 % 350,441
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,254,851 7,966,509 6,323,089 17,544,449
Receivables:
Accounts 473,261 - - 473,261
Property taxes - 18,375 - 18,375
Intergovernmental 2,755,174 - - 2,755,174
Interfund 1,638,280 62.606 118.312 1.819.198
Total Assets RS B.121.566 $_ 8047490 $_ 6,791,842 § 22.960.858
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable b3 1,117,196 3 - 3 22077 % 1,139,273
Accrued expenditures 4,872 - - 4,872
Interfund payable 4,259,390 63,344 - 4,322,734
Unearned revenues 85.507 - - §5.507
Total Liabilities 5.466.965 63,344 22.077 5,552,386
Deferred Inflows - 208.093 - 208.093
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows $ 5466965 §__ 271437 % 22.077 § 5.760.479
Fund Balances
Restricted for:
Capital projects 67,974 - 6,769,765 6,837,739
Tourism 454 682 - - 454,682
Debt service - 7,776,053 - 7,776,053
Public safety 2,131,945 - - 2,131,945
Unrestricted - - - -
Total Fund Balances 2,654.601 7.776.053 6.769.765 17.200419
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund
Balances B 8.121.566 §_ 8047490 §  6791.842 § 22.960.898
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - by Fund Type
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Revenues

Property taxes
Hotel-motel taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Economical and community development

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Proceeds from bond issuance

Issuance costs paid to agent

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Changes in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

$

Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Total

Special Debt Capital Nonmajor

Revenue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Fund Funds

- $ 3,717868 § - p 3,717,868
5,250,434 - - 5,250,434
1,312,247 - - 1,312,247
543,091 - - 543,091
441,187 - - 441,187
664 144,302 - 144,966
- - 77.058 77,058
7.547.623 3.862.170 77.058 11.486.851
1,567,308 - 354,972 1,922,280
1,718,147 - - 1,718,147
183,014 - - 183,014
771,352 960,859 - 1,732,211
- - 45,377 45,377
- 2,640,000 - 2,640,000
- 467.075 - 467.075
4.239.821 4.067.934 400.349 8.708.104
3.307.802 (205.764) (323.291) 2,778,747
1,183,320 - 1,810,773 2,994,093
(7,509,818} - - (7,509,818)
{6.326.498) - 1.810.773 {4.515,725)
(3,018,696) (205,764) 1,487,482 (1,736,978)
3.673.297 7.981.817 5.282.283 18.937.397
2654601 §__ 7.776.053 3 6.769.765 § 17,200419
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Restricted Grants Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Assets
Restricted cash 5 - 101,773
Intergovernmental receivable 2,451,241 2,451,241
Interfund receivable 1.610.237 1.610.237

$ 4.061.478 4,163,251
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Accounts payable 3 219,989 389,736
Interfund payable 3.773.515 3.773.515
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 3,993,504 4,163,251
Fund Balance 67.974 -
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances 3 4.061,478 4.163.251
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Restricted Grants Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With

Final Budget -

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental § 8.837.976 & 8.837.946 § 1,133.334 § (7.704.612) 3 937.745
Total Revenues 8.837.976 8.837.946 1.133.334 (7.704.612) 937.745
Expenditures
Current:
General government/Public Works 4,219,459 4,230,459 110,994 4,119,465 795,738
Public safety - - - - 10,000
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Culture and recreation 551,000 713,487 183,014 530,473 108,802
Economic and community development 7,707,515 7,726,015 771.352 6.954.663 262,696
Total Expenditures 12.477.974 12.669.961 1.065.360 11,604,601 1,177,236
Other Financing Sources
Transfer in - - - - 615.792
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures ¥ (3,639.998) 3 (3.832.015) 67,974 § 3.899.989 376,301
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year - (376.301)
Fund Balances, 'End of Year £ 67.974 5 -
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Hotel Motel Tax Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019 2018
Restricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 868,999 $ 4,244,520
Accounts receivable 473,261 446,247
Interfund receivable - -
Total Assets 5 1.342.260 S 4.690.767
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 591,799 b 294,761
Interfund payable 295.779 225.624
Total Liabilities 887,578 520,385
Fund Balance
Restricted for tourism 454.682 4.170.380

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ] 1.342.260 $ 4,690,765
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Hotel-Motel Tax Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Revenue
Hotel-motel taxes i3 4,500,000 § 4,500,000 % 5,250,434 750,434 § 4,846,584
Expenditures
Current
General Government 1,333,750 1.333.750 1,456,314 122,564 1.111.592
Total Expenditures 1,333,750 1,333,750 1.456.314 [22.564 E. 111,592
Other Financing Uses
Transfers out (2.812.500} (2.812.500) (7.509.818) (4.697.318) (3.029.116)
Net Change in Fund Balances b 353750 % 353.750 (3,715,698) § (4.069.448) 705,876
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 4.170.380 3,464,504
Fund Balances, end of Year $ 454,682 $ 4.170.380
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Assets

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Police Grants Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Intergovernmental receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Interfund payable
Unearned revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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$

2019 018
- 16,634

303.933 101,783

303.933 118.417

190,890 5,374

113,043 113,043

303.933 118.417

303,933 118,417




Revenune
Intergovernmenial
Other

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current

Public safety

Total Expenditures

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Police Grant Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budpet Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
3 (139,942) § 177,199 § 178,913 1,714 % 37,257
- - - - 32,263
(139.942) 177.199 178.913 1.714 69.520
206,650 243.907 178913 64.994 55255
206.630 243907 178.913 64.994 55,255
$ {346.592) § (66,708) - 3 66.708 14,265
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year - (14,265}
$ - b} -

Fund Balances, End of Year
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid items
Interfund receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balancers
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

Accounts payable
Interfund payable

Uneamned revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted for public safety

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Confiscated Assets Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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019 2018
1226320 $ 1,108,567
6.870 -
1233190 $ 1,108,567
112,867 S 24,840
112,867 24,840
85.507 85.507
198,374 110,347
1,034.816 998.220
1.233.190 § 1.108.567




Revenue
Fines and forfeiture
Investment earnings

Total Revenues

Expenditure
Current:

Public safety
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Confiscated Assets Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

{(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Vartance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
$ 115,000 & 115,000 % 441,187 § 326,187 8 450,807
400 400 664 264 543
115.400 [15.400 441.851 326,451 451,350
316.965 316.965 405,255 {88.290) 114.236
316,965 316.965 435,255 {88,290} 114236
$ (201,565) § (201!565) 36,596 $ 238!E61 337,114
998.220 661.106
5 1,034,816 $ 998,220
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Interfund receivable

Prepaid items

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenditures
Interfund payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted for public safety

Tetal Liabilities and Fund Balances

E-911 Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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2019 2018
1,159,532 8 545,178
21,173 21,173
1,180,705 $ 566.351
1,651 (23,274)
4,872 7,876
77,053 77.052
83,576 61,654
1,097,129 504,697
1,180.705 $ 566.351




Revenue
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current

Public safety

{Deficiency) of Revenues (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

E-911 Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
375200 % 375,200 % 543,091 § 167,891 § 432,237
375,200 375,200 543.091 167.891 422 237
1.576.020 1,.576.020 1,133,979 442 041 1,181,806
(1,200.820) (1.200.820) {590.888) 609.932 (759.56%)
1.200.820 1.200.820 1.183.320 (17,5000 1.095.346
- S - 592,432 § 592,432 335,777
504,697 168,920
§ 1,007,120 $ 504.697
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Debt Service Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019
East Point
Camp Creek Corridors Nonmajor
Tax Allocations Tax Allpcations Debt Service
District District Funds

Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3 7,364,841 § 601,668 § 7,966,509
Taxes receivable 670 17,705 18,375
Interfund receivable - 62.606 62.606
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 7.365.511 % 681979 § 8.047.490
Liabilities, Deferred inflows and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Interfund payable 39.929 23415 63,344
Total Liabilities 39,929 23,415 63,344
Deferred Inflows

Deferred Inflows 191.640 16.453 208.093
Total Deferred inflow of Resources 191,640 16.453 208.093
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 231,569 30,868 271.437
Fund Balances

Restricted for debt service 7.133.942 642,111 7.776.053
Total Liabilities Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances $§ 7365511 § 681,979 § 8.047.490
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Debt Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Revenues
Property taxes
Investment earnings
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Debt Service
Principal payments
Interest and service charges
Redevelopment costs

‘Fotal Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Changes in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances;, End of Year

111

$

East Point
Camp Creek Corridors Nonmajor
Tax Allocations Tax Allocations Debt Service
District District Funds

3,630,945 § 86,923 § 3,717,868

134.441 9.861 144.302

3.765.386 96,784 3.862.170

2,640,000 - 2,640,000

402,575 64,500 467,075

960,859 - 960.859

4.003.434 64,500 4.067.934
{238.048) 32.284 {205.764)
(238,048) 32,284 (205,764)

7.371.990 600.827 7981.817

7'133a942 $ 642,111 % 7.776,053




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Camp Creek Tax Allocation District Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019 018

Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3 7,364,841 § 7,601,927
Taxes Receivable 670 43.365
Teotal Assets and Deferred Outflows 3 7.365.511 3§ 7,645,292
Liabilities, Deferred Inflow and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Interfund payable 39.929 38,967
Total Liabilities 39,026 38.967
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows 191.640 234,335
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 191,640 234.335
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 231.569 273,302
Fund Balances

Restricted for debt service 7.133.942 1,216,133
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances ¥ 7.365.511 1489435
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Camp Creek Tax Allocation District Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Revenue
Property taxes $ 3,501,264 % 3,630,945 § 3,630,945 % - 3,796,056
Investment earnings 30.000 30.000 134.441 104.441 68.512
Total Revenues 3.531.264 3.660.945 3.765.386 104.441 3.864.568
Expenditures
Debt Service
Principal payments 1,160,000 2,640,000 2,640,000 - 7,270,857
Interest and fiscal charges 446,525 402,576 402,575 (H 468,825
Redevelopment cost - 960,859 960,859 - 1.064.610
Total Expenditures 1.606.525 4.003.435 4.003.434 {0 8.804.292
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures ) 1.924.739  § (342.490) (238,048) 3 104.442 (4,939,724)
Net Change in Fund Balance (238,048) (4,939,724)
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 7,371,990 6,155,857

Fund Balances, end of Year

$ o 133,002
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
East Point Corridors Tax Allocation District Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019 and 2018
201 2018

Assets
Restricted cash $ 601,668 3% 550,116
Taxes receivable [7,705 18,243
Interfund receivable 62.606 62.606
Total Assets $ 681979 § 630,965
Liabilities, Deferred Inflow and Fund Balances
Interfund payables 23415 4,147
Deferred In-flows 16,453 16,991
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 39.868 21,138
Fund Balances
Legally restricted 642,111 609.827
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances 5 681979 § 630.965
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
East Point Corridors Tax Allecation District Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenue - S——
Property taxes $ 340,000 3 340,000 3 86,923 § (253,077 § 124,667
Investment Earnings 1.000 1.000 9.861 8.861 3.920

Total Revenues 341.000 341.000 96,784 (244.216) 128.593
Expenditures
Debt Service
Principal - - - - -
Interest and fiscal changes 61,500 66,000 64,500 1,500 64,500
Redevelopment cost - - - - -
Total Expenditures 61,500 66.000 64.500 1.500 64,500
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures § 279,500 § 275,000 32,284 % (242.716) 64,093
Other Financing Sources
Bond proceeds - -
Net Change in Fund Balance 32,284 64,093
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 609,827 545,734
Prior period Adjustment - -
Fund Balances, End of Year b 642111 5 609.827

1E5



Assets

Cash and cash equivalenis
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Intergovernmental Receivables
Interfund

Total Assets
Liabilities and Fund
Liabilities

Accounts payable
Interfund

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances
Restricted for capital projects

Unrestricted

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2019
Government Total
Bond Center 50 Worst Nonmajor
Construction Construction Praperties Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund
- - 350,441 350,441
40,250 6,282,839 - 6,323,089
- 118,312 - 118,312
40250 § 6401151 % 350,441 6,791,842
- - 22,077 22,077
- 22077 22077
40,250 6,401,151 - 6,441,401
- - 328364 328,364
40250 % 6401151 §__ 350441 6,791,842
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Revenues

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment Eamings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenuces

Expenditures
Current:

General Government
Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Prinicpal payments
[nterest payments

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Proceeds from bond issuance
Issuance costs paid to agent
Total Other-Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances End of Year

Government Total
Bond Center 50 Worst Nonmajor
Construction Construction Properties Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund
- - 77058 % 77,058
- - 77.058 77,058
- . 354,972 354,972
- - 45377 45377
- 400.349 400,349
- 1,310,773 500,000 1,810,773
- 1.310.773 500,000 1,810,773
- 1,316,773 176,709 1,487,482
40.250 5.090,378 15§.655 5.282.283
40.250 % 6401151 328364 § 6,769.7635
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

{With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Revenues
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

General Government

Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Proceeds from bond issuance
Issuance cost paid to agent
Other Financing Source (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balances (Deficit),
Beginning of Year

Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year

2019 2018
Variance With
Final Budget -
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Nepative) Actual
3 - 5 77.058 § 77.058 § - 5 10,022
- 77,058 77.058 - 10,022
5 6,972,859 § 6,972859 § 354972 § 6,617,887 § 358,367
27000 27.000 45377 (18.377) -
6.999 859 6.999 859 400,349 6.599.510 358.367
7.000,000 7,600,000 1,810,772 (5,189,228} 1,711,646
7,000,000 7.000.000 1.810.772 (5,189.228) 1.711.646
$ 27.141 % 77.199 1,487481 &____ 1428659 1,363,301
5282283 3.918.982
5 6,769,764 $ 5,282.283
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Water & Sewer Fund

Comparative Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivable (net)
Accounts
Accrued revenue
Liens
Interfund
Inventory
Prepaid items

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Investments
Prepaid charges
Capital assets
Construction in progress
Depreciable, net

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Difference in pension investment ecamings
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Current Liabilities

Accounis payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued interest payable

Compensated absences payable

Interfund payable

Capital lease payable

Revenue bond payable

Total Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities Payables from Restricted Assets

Accrued Interest Payable
Customer Deposits

Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

Taotal Current Liabilities and Payable from Restricted Assets

Long-Term Liabilities (net of current portion)
Other post employment benefits payable
Capital lease payable (net of current portion)
Revenue bonds payable (net of current posting)
Net Pension Liability

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fotal Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Reseurces
Net Investment in capital assets

Restricted for capital projects

Unrestricted

Total Net Position
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$

2019 2018

5200286 § 9,219,197
50,384 50,384
1,782,375 1,997,040
265,113 226,644
1,056,971 1,059,314
1,027,470 457,990
271,992 160,691
293,710 42,995
9,948,301 13,214,255
3,360,842 3,300,321
4,118,864 1,808,921
64124611 67.156.180
71.604.317 72265 422
81.552.618 85.479.677

1.320.464 -
82,873,082 85.479.677
12,833,926 8,641,627
582,123 573,924
126,610 138,674
58,707 33,256
74,494 72,685
4,885,000 4,700,000
18,560,860 14.160.166
683,284 761,617
850.439 650,009
1,533.723 1.411.626
20.094.583 15.571.792
4,079,145 3,747,273
- 74,494
35,715,105 45 465,848
3.428.179 1,960,502
43977 429 51.248.117
1,871,833 2,487.340
65.188.845 69,307,249
30,929,718 21,952,395

3,411,226 -

{16.656.707) {1.184.543)

17684237 8 20,767,852



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Water & Sewer Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Personnel services
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Sanitary sewers
Depreciation
Cost allocation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest and fiscal charges
Amortization of bond issunance costs
Investment earnings
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income before Transfers in (Out)
Transfers (Out)
Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, End of Year
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2019 018
$ 19.853.157 $___21.361.474
19.853.157 21.361.474
3,687,994 3,733,963
2,039,117 2,728,345
1,276,097 1,033,850
4,436,709 3,407,274
3,863,775 2,998,930
5.955.734 2362788
21.259.426 16.265.150
{1.406.269) 5.096.324
(1,831,547) (1,446,635)
154.201 28.131
(1.677.346) (1,418.504)
(3,083,515) 3,677,820
(3.083,615) 3,677,820
20.767.852 17.090.032
§__ 17.684.237 $___20.767.852



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Water & Sewer Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to goods and services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from noncapital Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in interfund payables
Increase in interfund receivable
Transfers Out

Total Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows frem Capital and Related Financing Activities
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Interest paid on revenue bonds
Proceeds from issuance of refunding revenue bonds
Refunding deposit with escrow agent
Bond issuance cost paid
Capital lease principal payments
Proceeds from assumption of capital leases
Payments for capital acquisitions

Net Cash (Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Investments earnings-Pension

Investments earnings

Maturities of investments
Net Cash provided by Investing Activities
Net Increases (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash

Total
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2019 2018
20,232,126 $ 21,337,269
(3,836.,480) (2,995,766)
(9.877.374) (7.888.127)
6.518.272 10.453.376
25,451 (4.811)
(569,480) 8,409
(544.029) 3.598
(4,700,000) (5,080,000)
(2,180,195) (2,683,695)
(72,685) (70,919)
(3.133.954) (2,774.426)

{10,086.834)

{10.609.040)

154,201

28,131
{60.521) (28.131)
93.680 -
(4,018.911) {152.066)
5,269,581 9.421.647
5.250,670 $ 9.269.58]1
5,200,286 9,219,197
50.384 50.384
5250670 $ 9,260,581




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Comparative Statement Cash Flows

Water & Sewer Fund

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Reconciliation of Operating income to Net Cash

Provided by (used in) Operating Activities
Operating Income

Adjustments

Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts receivable and accrued revenues
Inventories
Prepaid items
Imcrease (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Compensated absences
Other post employment benefits
Customer deposits
Net pension liability

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
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2019

g
[y
[~}

(1,406,269) § 5,096,324

3,863,775 2,998,930
178,539 (127,202)
(111,301) (37.157)
(250,715) (4,253)
4,192,299 1,685,540
(12,064) (33,444)
331,872 2,965,265
200,430 102,997
(468.294) (2,193 624)

6518272 §__ 10453376



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Assets and Deferred inflow of Resources

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted asset
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivable
Accounts
Accrued revenue
Interfund

Inventories

Prepaid items

Total Current Asses

Noncurrent Assets

Capital assets
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Difference in pension investinent earnings

Total Asscets and Deferred outflows of Resources

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expense

Compensated absences

Interfund payable

Capital leases payable

Total Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets
Customer deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities (net of current portion)
Other post employment benefits payable
Capital leases payable
Net pension Hability
Long-term Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred inflows of Resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects

Unyestricted

Total Net Position

Electric Fund
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019 and 2018
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2019 2018
16,441,462 3§ 13,336,186
17,735,946 22,252,718
3,524,355 2,998,786

621,514 686,303
1,445,781 588,857
1,193,191 1,444,229

195.132 124,734

41.157.381 41431.813
2,131,372 £,231,333
7,067,837 6,436,177
9,199,209 7,667,510

50,356,590 49.099.323
1.052.419 -

51.409.009 49.099.323
3,043,678 3,273,897

183,756 162,946

152,387 154,501
3,588,267 5,593,067

388.037 343.769
7.356.725 9.528.180
2415131 2.492.173
2.771.856 12,020,353
3,107,966 2,867,584

84,629 320,176
2.804 626 1,426,006
5.997.221 4,613,766
272,353 707,072
16,041,430 17.341.191
8,725,943 7,003,565
17.735 946 22,252,718
8.905.690 2.501.849
35367579 § 31.758.132




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Electric Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues
Charges for services - net
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal services
Wholesale electric
Purchased services
Cost allocation
Supplies
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment earnings
Interest Expense

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Proceeds from the liquidation of bond reserve

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Income before Transfers in {Out)

Transfers Out
Changes in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, End of Year
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019 2018
47071,797 $ 46,969,963
15.896 17,573
47.087.693 46.987.536
2,972,765 2,986,341
29,900,837 30,367,879
1,122,188 2,378,788
5,878,727 2,815,680
767,771 1,003,738
647.174 598.570
41.289.462 40.150.996
5.798.231 6.836.540
408,351 309,986
(42,400) (37.957)
178.147 1,602,067
544,098 1,874,006
6.342.329 8,710,636
(2.732.882) (5.436.898)
3,600,447 3,273,738
31,758,132 28,484,394
35.367.579 $_ 31.758.132




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Electric Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
June 30,2019 and 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for personnel services
Cash payments for goods and services
Net Cash provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Decrease in interfund receivable
Decrease in interfund payable
Transfers out
Net Cash Flows used in} noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from the liquidation of bond reserve
Proceeds from assumption of capital leases
Payments for interest on capital leases
Payments for capital acquisitions
Net Cash Provided by capital and related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment earnings

Net Cash provided by investing activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalent
Restricted Cash

Total

£25

2019 018

46,549,871 $ 47,066,168
(2,822,205) (3,384,602)
(37.719.102) (37.042.584)
6.008.564 6.638.982
(856,924) (136,418)
(2,004,800) 2,194,299
(2.732.882) (5.436.898)
(5.594.606) (3.379.017)
178,147 1,602,067
(190,679) (331,260)
(42,362) (37,919)
(2.178.911) (833.160)
(2.233.805) 399,728
408.351 309.986
408351 309.986
(1.411.496) 3.969.679
35,588.904 31.619.225
34177408 $_ 35588904
16,441,462 13,336,186
17.735.946 22.252.718
34.177.408 $__ 35.588.904




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Electric Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2013
Reconciliation of Operating Income to net cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ 5,798,231 § 6,836,540
Adjustments
Depreciation 647,174 598,570
(Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts receivable and accrued reviews (460,780) 167,587
Inventories 251,038 (241,937)
Prepaid items (70,398} {85,992)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts payable (230,219 (148,570)
Accrued liabilities 20,810 33,791
Deposits payable (77,042} (88,955)
Compensated absences payable (2,114) 15,369
Other post employment benefits 240,382 2,031,160
Net pension liability (108.518) (2.478.581)
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities § 6.008.564 § 6,638,982



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
Combining Statement of Net Position

Assets and Deferred Outfiows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Accounts
Accrued revenue
Interfund
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets
Nondepreciable:

Depreciable, net

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Difference in pension investment earnings

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Contracts retainage payable

Accrued expense

Unearned Revenue

Interfund payable

Compensated absences payable

Capital leases payable

Claims payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities (net of current portion)
Other post employment benefiis payable
Net pension liabilities
Capital leases payable

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

June 39, 2019
Stormwater Solid Waste
Fund Fund Total
$ 4802465 § - $ 4,802,405
680,738 364,692 1,045,430
- 91,780 91,780
22,993 169,684 192,677
- 7,009 7,009
169.493 260.643 430,136
5.675.689 893.808 6.569 497
2.148.544 3,856.355 6.004,899
2,148,544 3.856,355 6,004,899
7.824 233 4.750.163 12.574.396
104.363 467.917 572280
7,928,596 5,218.080 13.146.676
40,367 2,503,824 2,544,191
92,173 - 92,173
5,080 20,050 25,130
715,404 - 715,404
68,464 1,053,232 1,121,696
14,824 52,709 67,533
230,124 358,504 588,628
467,000 - 467.000
1.633.436 3,988.319 5.621.755
298,275 1,783,707 2,081,982
261,229 1,161,408 1,422,637
- 705.124 705,124
559.504 3.650.239 4.209.743
32,027 145,690 177,717
2,224 967 7,784 248 10.009.215
1,918,420 2,792,727 4,711,147
3.785.209 {5,358.895) (1,573.686)
b 5.703.6%2 $ (2.366,168) $ 3.137.461
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

StormWater Solid Waste
Fund Fund Total
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services Net § 2,632,113 § 4,390,972 7,023,085
Miscellaneous - - -
Total Operating Revenues 2.632.113 4.390.972 7.023.085
Operating Expenses

Personal services 348,764 1,358,389 1,707,153

Purchased services 334,044 1,556,701 1,890,745

Cost allocations 340,248 2,394,510 2,734,758

Materials and supplies 3,781 109,859 113,640

Depreciation 190,992 261,984 452976

Inventory adjustment - - -

Total Operating Expenses 1.217.829 5.681.443 6.899.272
Operating Income (Loss) 1.414.284 (1.290.471) 123.813
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest expense (10.871) {82.443) (93.314)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) {10.871) (82.443) (93.314)
Income (Loss) Before and Transfers in (Out) 1,403,413 (1,372,914) 30,499
Transfers Out - - -
Change in Net Position 1,403,413 (1,372,914) 30,499
Net Position, Beginning 4.300.216 (1.193.254) 3.106.962
Net Position, (Deficit) End of Year 5,703.629 {2.566.168) 3.137.461
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for personal services
Cash payments for goods and services

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from noncapital Financing Activities
Decrease (Increase) in interfund payable
Decrease (increase) in interfund receivable

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from capital and

Related Financing Activities
Payments for capital acquisitions
Principal paid on notes and leases
Proceeds from assumption of capital leases
Interest paid on notes and leases

Net Cash (Used in) Capital and Related
Financing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year
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StormWater Solid Waste
Fund Fund Total

b 2,538,585 % 4,390,500 $ 6,929,085
(352,178) (1,642,045 (1,994,223
(801.120) (2,186.807) (2,987.927)

1.385.287 561.648 1,846,935
- (995) (995)
- (995} (995)
(230,671) (553,046) (783,717)
(224,983) - (224,983)

- 74,836 74,836
(10.871) (82.443) (93.314)
(466.525) (560.653) (1.027.178)

918.762 - 918.762

3,883,703 - 3.883.703

3 4.802.465 § - L) 4.802.465




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Recenciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments
Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts receivable and access revenues
Inventories
Prepaid items
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Compensated absences
Other post employment benefits
Net pension Hability

Net Cash Provided by (used in) Operating Activities
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Stormwater Solid Waste
Fund Fund Total
$ 1,414,284 % (1,290,471) $ 123,813
190,992 261,984 452,976
(93,528) (472) {(94,000)
- {7,009) (7,009)
(126,498) (217,648) (344,146)
3,451 2,098,920 2,102,371
872 (7,514) (6,642)
(2,189) (7,611) (9,800)
29.470 135,407 164,877
(31.567) (403.938) {435.505)
3 1385287 § 561.648 § 1.946.935




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Solid Waste Fund
Comparative Statement Net Position

June 30, 2019 and 2018
201 018
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents s - $ -

Receivables:

Accounts 364,692 374,180

Accrued revenue 91,780 BE.820

Interfund 169,684 168,689

Inventories 7,009 -

Prepaid items 260.643 42.995
Total Current Assets §93.808 667.684
Noncurrent Assets

Capital assets

Depreciable capital assets net 3,856,355 3,565,297
Total Assets 4 750163 42312931
Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Difference in pension investment earnings 467.917 -

Total Asscts and Deferred Outflows of Resources 5.218.080 4.232 981
Liabilities
Current Liabilifies

Accounts payable 2,503,824 404,904

Accrued expenses 20,050 27,564

Interfund payable 1,053,232 1,053,232

Capital leases payable 358,504 349,197

Compensated absences payable 52,709 60,320
Tsotal Current Liabilities 3988319 1.895.217
Lang-term Liabilities (net of current portion)

Other post employment benedicts payable 1,783,707 1,648,300

Net pension liability 1,161,408 922 855

Capital leases payable 705.124 639.599
Long-Term Liabilities 3,650,239 3.210.754
Deferred Inflows of Resources 145.690 320.264
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of resources 7.784.248 5426.235
Net Position (Deficit)

Net investment in capital assets 2,792,727 2,576,501

Unrestricted (deficit) (5.358.895}) (3.769.755)
Total Net Position (Deficit) 3 (2.566.168) § (1,193.254)
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Solid Waste Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal services
Purchased services
Supplies
Depreciation
Cost allocation
Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (expenses)
Interest expense

Total Non-Operating revenues (Expenses)
Income Before Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, End of Year
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2019 018
$ 4390972 $ 4,271,746
4.390.972 4.271.746
1,358,389 1,338,435
1,556,701 1,495,623
109,859 122,633
261,984 113,502
2,394,510 1,781,054
5.681.443 4.851.247
(1.290.471) (579.501)
(82.443) (35.375)
(82.443) (35.575)
(1.372.914) (615.076)
(1,372,914) (615,076)
(1,193.254) (578.178)
$_ (2.566.168) $__ (1.193.254)




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Solid Waste Fund
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

019 018
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers kS 4,390,500 3 4,240,292
Cash payments for personnel services 7 (1,642,045) (1,476,852)
Cash payments for goods and services (2.186.807) (3.105.249)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 561.648 (341.809)
Cash Flows from Nencapital Financing Activities
Decrease in interfund receivable (995) 1,705
Decrease in interfund payable - -
Transfers out - -
Total Cash flows (Used in) Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities (995) 1,705
Cash Flows from Capital and Related financing Activities
Principal payments on capital leases - -
Interest payments on capital leases (82,443) (35,575)
Proceeds from assumption of capital leases 74,836 740,373
Payments for capital asset acquisition (553.046) {1.477.241)
Taotal Cash Flows Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (560.653) (772.443)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents - (1,112,547
Cash and cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year - 1.112.547
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 3 - 5 -
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Solid Waste Fund

Comparative Statement Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments
Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in assets
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue
Inventories
Prepaid items

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts payables and accrued expenses
Accrued expenses
Compensated absences payable
Other post employment benefits
Net pension liability

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
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2019 2018
$ (1,290,471) $ (579,509)
261,984 113,502
(472) (31,454)

(7,009) -
(217,648) 82,713
2,098,920 211,348
(7,514) 11,250
(7,611) 8,712
135,407 1,202,910
(403.938) (1,361.289)
$ 561648 § (341.817)




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Stormwater Fund
Statement of Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Accounts
Interfund
Prepaid items

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets
Depreciable, Net

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Difference in pension investment earnings

Total Assets and Deferred outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Contract retainage payable
Accrued expenses
Compensated absences
Interfund payable
Unearned revenue
Capital lease payable
Claims payable

Teotal Current Liabilities

Long-term Liabilities
Net pension liability
Other post employment benefits payable
Capital leases payable

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investiment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
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019 018
$ 4,802,465 § 3,883,703
680,738 587,210
22,993 22,993
169.493 42.995
5,675,689 4,536,901
2.148 544 2144763
2,148,544 2.144.765
7.824.233 6.681.666
104363 -
7.928.596 6.681.666
40,367 36,916
92,173 92,173
5,080 4,208
14,824 17,013
68,464 68,464
715,404 715,404
230,124 224,533
467.000 467.000
1.633.436 1.625.711
261,229 142,292
298,275 268,805
- 230.574
2.192.940 2,267.382
32,027 78,168
2.224.967 2.345.550
1,918,420 1,689,658
3.783.209 2,610,558

3 5703629 §

4.300.216



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Stormwater Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Years Ended June 39, 2019 and 2018

Operating Revenues
Charge for services

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies
Cost allocation
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (loss) before transfers

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest expense

Total Non-Operating Revenues
Income Before Transfers
Transfers in (out)

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, End of Year
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019 2018

2632113 % 1.836.942

2632,113 1.836.942
348,764 336,813
334,044 678,522

3,781 30,198
340,248 144,624
190,992 179.140

1,217,829 1,389,297

1,414,284 447,645
(10.871) (16.776)
{(10.871) (16776)

1,403,413 430,869

1,403,413 430,869

4,300,216 3,869,347

5,703.629 $ 4300216




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Stormwater Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for personal services
Cash payments for goods and services
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from noncapital Financing Activities
Increase in interfund receivable
Increase in Interfund payable
Total Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Non capital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and related financing Activities
Interest payments on capital leases
Principal payments on capital leases
Proceeds from assumption of capital leases
Payments for capital acquisitions
Total Cash Flows Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment earnings pension
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalences, End of Year

137

019 018

$ 2,538,585 § 1,845,628

(352,178) 324,445
(801,120) (1.182.925)
1.385.287 987.148
(10,871) (16,776)
(224,983) (219,078)
(230.671) (328.890)
(466.525) (564.744)

918,762 422,404
3.883.703 3,461,299

$ 4.802.465 $__ 3.883.703




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Stormwater Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Reconciliation of Operating income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments
Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in Assets

Accounts receivable and acerued revenue
Prepaid items

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued expenses
Compensated absences payable
Other post employment benefits
Net pension labilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
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2019 2018

$ 1,414,284 § 447,645
190,992 179,140

(93,528) 8,686
(126,498) (4,253)
3,451 (305,328)

872 715,508

(2,189) 966

29,470 268,805

(31.567) (324.021)

$ 1385287 § 987.148



CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Motor Transport Fund
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 018
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 853,186 § 1,071,333
Inventories 58,702 13,958
Non-current Assets
Capital assets:
Depreciable, net 489.423 -
Total Assets 1.401.311 1.085.291
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,003,560 691,736
Accrued expenses 137,380 133,185
Interfund payable 260.371 260.371
Total Current Liabilities 1,401,311 1.085.292
Net Position
Net Investment in capital assets 489,423 -
Unrestricted (Deficit) (489.423) -
Total Net Position $ - b -
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Motor Transport Fund
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position -
By Fund Type
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Operating Revenues
Charges for services 4.731.654 4.979.173
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 1,460,321 1,246,227
Purchased services 2,510,726 2,516,964
Supplies 712,061 706,677
Depreciation 48.546 298.415
Total Expenses 4.731.654 4.768.283
Operating Income - 210,890
Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses)
Interest and fiscal charges - {210,890)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) - (210,890}
Income (Loss) - -
Net Position, Beginning of Year - -
Net Position, End of Year 5 - i) -
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Motor Transport Fund
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

019 2018

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash received from Interfund services provided 4,731,654 § 4,979,173

Cash payments for personnel services (1,456,126) (1,217,713)

Cash payments for goods and services (2.955.706) (2.796.274)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 319,822 965,186
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in Interfund loan payable - -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Payments for Interest Payments - (210,890)

Acquisition of capital assets (537.969) -
Total Cash Flows Used in Capital and Related Financing

Activities (337.969) (210.890)
Net Increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (218,147) 754,296
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1.071.333 317.037
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 853.186 §$ 1.071.333
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) - 210,890
Adjustments

Depreciation 48.546 298,415
(Increase) decrease in Assets

Inventories (44,744) (1,526)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities

Accounts payables 311,825 429,033

Accrued expenses 4.195 28.374
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 319.822 965.186
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Pension Trust Fund
Statements of Plan Net Position

December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,995,665 § 2,711,136
Receivables:
Amount due from brokers for securities sold - 316,639
Accrued interest and dividends receivable 212,942 215,111
Contributions receivable 404,215 385,987
Other receivable - 1.584
Total Receivables 617.157 919.321
Investments:
U.S. government obligations 3,123,204 5,378,251
Municipal government obligation - 60,021
Corporate bonds 16,237,442 16,950,566
Convertible corporate bonds - -
Common stock - domestic 30,240,097 40,387,635
Preferred stock - domestic 5,685,567 5,076,640
Common stock - Foreign stock 975,792 2,542,221
Core real estate property fund 14,010,369 10,136,194
Mutual funds 19.747.421 19.688.649
Total Investments 90.019.892 100.220.177
Prepaid insurance 2.998 9.277
Total Assets 101.635.712 103.859.911
Liabilities
Accounts payable 218,733 194,277
Amounts due to brokers for security purchased 157.907 115.384
Total Liabilities 376,640 309.661
Net Position Restricted for Pension Benefits $_ 101.259.072 §_ 103.550,250
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Pension Trust Fund

Comparative Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Additions
Contributions:

Employer
Employee
Total Contributions
Investment Earnings:
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investment

Interest and dividends
Less Investment Expenses

Net Investment Income

Other income

Total Additions

Deductions
Benefits paid, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses

Total Deductions

Net Increase (Decrease)

Net Position Restricted for Pension Benefits, Beginning of Year

End of Year

[43

018 2017
9,127,127 $ 8,628,709
1.265.307 1.189.472
10.392.434 9.818.181
(4,703,822) 12,117,392
2,897,855 2,367,741
(619.206) (785.136)
(2.425.173) 13.699.997
1.318 2314
7.968.579 23,520,492
10,000,922 . 9,616,270
258.835 275,568
10,259,757 9,891.838
(2.291.178) 13.628.654
103.550.250 89.921.596

101,259.072 §

103.550.250




CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Agency Fund
Comparative Statements of Assets and Liabilities
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,022,607 $ 1.260.685
Total Assets $ 1.022.607 § 1,260,685
Liabilities
Deposits $ 1.022.607 §$ 1,260,685
Total Liabilities $ 1,022,607 $ 1,260,685
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA
Agency Fund
Comparative Statements of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Balance Balance
June 30,2018 Additions Deductions June 30, 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.260.685 § 819.312 1.057.390 1.022 667
Total Assets 1,260,685 § 219312 1.057.390 1.022.607
Liabilities
Deposits 1.260.685 § 819,312 1,057,390 1,022 607
Total Liabilities 1.260.685 § 819312 1,057,390 1,022,607
Balance Balance
June 30, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30.2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1465093 § 703,389 8907.797 1,260.685
Total Assets [.465.093 § 703,389 907.797 1,260,685
Liabilities
Deposits 1,465,093 § 703.389 907.797 1.260.685
Total Liabilities 1465093 % 703,389 907,797 1,260,685
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CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Introduction to Statistical Section

This part of City of East Point's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding this year's financial statements, note disclosures, and supplementary financial information. This
information is unaudited.

Contents Exhibits

Financial Trends
These tables contain trend information that may assist the reader in assessing
the City's current financial performance by placing it in historical perspective. [-XI-A

Revenue Capacity
These tables contain information that may assist the reader in assessing the
viability of the City's most significant "own-source" revenue sources,
property taxes. XII-XXII1

Debt Capacity
These tables contain information that may assist the reader in analyzing the
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's
ability to issue debt in the future. XXIV-XXVI

Demegraphic and Economic Information
These tables present demographic and economic information intended (1)
to assist users in understanding the socioeconomic environment within
which the City operates and (2) to provide information that facititates

comparisons of financial statements information over time and among
cities. XX VI-XXVII

Operating Information
These tables contain service and infrastructure indicators that can inform
one's understanding how the information in the City's financial statements
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. KXIX-XXXI

Data Source:
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual financial report for
the applicable vear. The City implemented GASB Statement No. 34 in fiscal year 2003.
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Exhibit XIA
CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

(modified acerual basis of accounting)

General Fund 2019 018
Nonspendable 2,373,362 1,270,738
Unassigned b 23.284.129 §_ 17.753.712

Total General Fund g 25657491 §_ 19024 450

General Fund Percentage Change 34.9 % 12.9 %

All Other Governmental Funds
Resiricted

Special Revenue funds 2,587,000 5,673,000
Debt Service Fund 7,776,000 7,982,000
Capital Projects Funds 15,033,000 21,607.000

Subtetal all Other Governmental Funds 25.396.000 35,262.000

All Other Governmental Funds
Percentage Change (28.00% 121.8 %

Total Governmental Funds
Nonspendable 2,373,362 1,270,738
Restricted 25,396,000 35,262,000
Unassigned 23.284.129 17.753.712

Total Governmental Funds 3 51.053491 $ 54,286,450

All Governmental Funds Percentage Change (6.0)% 109.4 %

Data Source:
June 30, 2019 comprehensive annval financial report
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Year

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Notes:

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $1,000 of assessed taxabie valuc)

Exhibit XI1I

Direct Overlapping!
General Total

Obligation Other Direct State of Fuiton

Basic Rate Debt Service Specify Rate Georgia County
10.68 4.07 - 14.750 0.250 10,281
10.68 407 - 14.750 0.250 10.281
13.75 - - 13.750 0.200 10.281
15.00 - - 13.750 0.150 10.211
15.00 - - 15.000 0.100 11.781
15.00 - - 15.000 0.050 10.500
15.00 - - 15.000 0.050 10.500
15.00 - - 15.000 0.050 10.500
15.00 - - 15.000 10.380
13.8¢ - - 13.890 10.200

! Overlapping rates are those of governments that overlap the City's geographic boundaries.
2The State of Georgia levies one quarter of one mill on eh County taxable property to help finance their certification of each Georgia County's

tax digest.

Data Sources:

Georgia Depariment of Revenue Property Tax Division, http:/fwww.etax.dor.ga.gov/PTD/cds/csjcets/milirate.aspx
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Fulton
County
School
Board

17.5G2
18.502
18.502
18.502
18,502
18.502
18.502
18.502
18.546
18.546



VIIIX Hquyxy

891

Apag (DasL]
610 ST0T r1oz 1102 0102
. 2 = e - - 000°0
g B 2 5 5 5
o o =] =] 3 g 000°Z
000’y
0009
0008
000°0T
000°ZT
S 000°tT
5 000'9T
/w 000°8T
00002
sjooyas Ajuno) uoyn4 - Suiddepang Ajuno) uoyiny - Suiddepang » ei81039 Jo a1eys - Juiddepiang 104 1583 jo Ay - pPasg |
(anpa apgvxoy passasso fo gpg*[s 4ad 1)
SD3] JDISLY UL ISOT
sy xnj Auadoayg Swddvpiaag) puv panq
eid10an) Yutog yseq jo A




% v6'€ 801°696
% 16°L $68°696
% 98°TI ¥10'9£5)
% £6°01 1€ LLT ]
% 79b1 965 L09
% 709 15+°8LS
% LL1 S1Z°181
% Sk SPEObY
% 0€°0F 658114 T
% S8'¥I LOBL6S'T
AR JO Jhomy
aSeyudarayg

AIX Nanxy

TTSONE], PIIIAT0U[]
[LoLA R

90°96 CLOPLLE]
60°76 LOTHPT 1
PILS 106°11#°0%
LO68 TETEIT 0N
8€C8 930°38¢€°6
86'€6 £S6'FE06
£T'86 v ot0 0L
$9°56 S01'SLI0L
0L'ES L6TL3ETE
S1°68 6667681
>>uw~ ._c Jungiuy

adeyuwdatag

3YB(] 03 SO01J90110) [EI0 L

691

201440 xeL AnD
123108 BeQg

"SUCII09[}00 X} Apadoad 1amof up Buninsor ‘paisaiold sem 1sa3ip xe) uoymy4 oyy jo uonuod a3 v
"I UOHDDJE0D 84,00 | © uetf) 210w podar sresk swios
“y[nsar e sy d|qeanoeid jou seam opgel sup Junesas souls ‘wonasjjon of sond qeak sy o) pandde usag aavy 2ok
Joud oy Uy SUOHB|I02 A} ‘p ON WIWALIS SV JO SIUDIDIMbAL O[3 199308 0] NGNS SIY1 UNLISAU UdYM £

Aa] XE} 1283 0] SIXE) PHIID[[OIUN 31} 218 UWINOD SIKE) PAIIV|[OOUN B]11 A1) Wi paptodad spunoure At ,

L63'ETl'y % TT' 8%
£6L° 165 % ST'LY
911°9¢1 % v8'C8
§56'598 % LY 18
Ss0'6y % ¥6'P8
FOPH09 % 0L'LS
856'TLY % $O'16
SLLLGE % 01°Z6
4 AL iral| % 95°GL
6T0°6L6'C % T1°89
munu\f ?_—u_‘u Jo
juanbasqng ug prjatichRcN |
LT ibh ] [V
(800°1$ un)

AD'] 91} JO IGT X [BISI]
ALY UNPIAL PIFII[0])

SAva X [EISL] WD, ISt

SHOIV[0] PUE sAT XE] A31adoay

9LL'DSY'TE
PLB'TEO 0L
$8LCST'OL
LEL' LS
1€0'6£°6
6PS'0EY'S
88E°CLL6
RTLLLLS
CLS'I8IT1
696°€16°11

junowny’

VIOUOHED ‘INIOd LSVA A0 ALID

18L°6€E°P1
91°01TT1
SIGLYGT]
11906911
81° 56601
YOV'E19%6

$95°LTT01
ISH°519°01
96 1°66L b1
SO8°06F L1

Tea {_depuaje)
Ay 10j
PAIAYT SIXE,

1S010N

610¢
810T
L10T
9102
[5]174
10T
£102
cloe
1174
¢ 010T

Ny
183511



0Ly

21350 Xe[ AN
1DUNOG BIL(

1oL

% 001 080 P01 911 % [eIoL % GOl 8PS E0E 161
% 001 080 P91°01 1 sAedxe ], [ediound @101 % 001 8PS E0E 161 saadedxe ) jedpung oy
% 509 01 080FC0 L 207171 dy spueySiy 98e1A % GV O o1 OFcTIv el diysiateg popwry £jzoy axng
% 63°8 6 000°68Z°01 D11 ‘semuedord 220 L OHI LdH % L9°9 6 091°69L°C1 QL1 sioupeg Aouasay fuojo)
% 19'L H] 088°5p3's OTTALOSPIY PIOXC % 1871 8 080°£6 1 OTT19seyd DD yewpuey
% 8¢t L TLECILS DU ‘UOYI YOG BUAL % 8L°§ L 99€'SHL YT uoyay jo Ajuoyiny juswdopasq
% L&L 9 08Z'€97°6 Aesy syoem ona % 170t 9 000°628°6 1 277 “dnoe1n Jusunsaall aumpay
% 006 S $96°9¢¥01 QU RIUR[IY JO BUI[DA20Y [PASN % SEOI S 080°PL1'0Z 2711 siwowpedy 504
% 81°11 ¥ 800°686'T1 Iaureuod sseyn Aeay0g sUsmO 95 1401 ¥ 0ZE P8P 0T 277 ‘pur Apesy ang
% v vl £ 08F' 600" LI panunT Apesy oy 9% 09711 3 Or9'T81°TT diysioupeq payun Ljey axng
% £8°%1 z 965 TCTLI SUCNEOIUNWUIOINS L \PNOS[PE % Z9'Z] T 00t LE1¥T Apadoag yeary dwe) X119 D
% $TS1 | 09S°TELLT § 11 aorpdiyie o3 dwie) JYN % 8SHI | T9Tp88LT § ou] “spoog) Surpods syag
INjEA juey SNEA TARATe] [edpurtlg SMEA Rury IN[EA TAREdxe] 2fddunlyg

PISSISSY POsSSISSY PIsSsasSyY PISSISSY

alqexu ], XL a[gexey,

eeq. jo 10y, jo

asejuaning AU
2007 6107

AX nqupxyg

8007 PUE GE (7 ‘B UNQ POPUT SIEIZ [2IsI]
Jededxe ], Ladoay edpuiyg

VIDUOIO INIOd LSVA A0 ALID



[t

Ipd-g0 soer [eanoisiy T HeyDy ey JdyT 6007 SOT/SoTRINE)SA[RS/XRIA[BS/A08 BB S0P xe i sdny
‘UOISIAKC] XU, 95] puB SoRS ‘nudAdy Jo juaukpedacy v1dioary
1324005 VIEQ

“S21UNCo
gIE3R( PUR U0)ing APUALIRD “y LY VIN Ua J3RIJUGS 2DIAI0S B SABL YOIM 15MSIP (Y IYVIN)
Awoqiny ysuel], prdey muepy ueiodona 21} Ur SaNUNOD Ul PIIAR| SIJR1 XB) SRS SI]

“s3uIpng [oou2s Sunsixa ajeacuas pue sfuipyng jooyas

M3 JONOSU0S 0y pasn Juiaq StxeL 7R AL "Z10Z ‘0F sung pantdxa pue 1007 ‘1 Anf aan0a)2
paacidde sem xey saqes uondo [eoof asodind [eroads uoreINpa WALING MY, *LOGT “0F 2ung pondxo
pue ZoOT ' [ AWy 2a110a9 paacadde se xm safes uondo [eao| ssodind [ersads uonesnpd v

ek 1oud 2y ur pa)aa]|od SN OSI) JO JUNOWE ) AQ Jrak

JUALIRD Y1 Ul S1es oFe|[nu xey Apadord My aonpal 01 pasmbal 81 A1 2y L “A[9IIULAPUL SATIOILID
STpue L1 | Armuer 2A190]0 winpudiajat £q panoadde sem (1.S0T) xe) s21es uondo [eoof oy,

130N
% 008 % 0071 Y 00°1 % 00'F % 00°F % 00'F 6102
% 00'8 % 00°1 % 0071 % 00% % 00°1 % 00'1 810¢
% 00'8 % 00'1 % 00°1 % 00y % 00} % 00°F L10T
% 00°8 % 00°1 % 00°1 % 00t S0 00°I % 00'F 910Z
% 00’8 % 0071 % 00'1 % 00F % 001 % 00°1 S10g
% 00'8 % 0071 % 00°1 % 00'F % 00°1 % 00°) #10T
% 008 % 00°1 % 00°1 % 00 % 00°F % 00°t £10T
% 008 % 0071 % 00°1 % 00'% % 00°1 % 00°t Al
% 00'8 % 00°1 % G0'1 % 00°F % 00 % 00't 1102
% 008 % 00°1 % 00'1 % 00'F % 00°E % 00t 010Z
s3yey oulddesi0 ¢ V.LUVIA z SI00TI§ EEAED) Aumoy t 1SOT TEX
pue g Ljunoy vojnyg Jo g uoelny 1D AEpuIR))
18101, aquidde sy JEEXITY]

SIEIX [EISI] 3] Ise]
sajey xu ], asp sojeg Sunddegaaag pue 1ang
VIDHOTD ‘INIOd LSVH 40 ALID
TAX 3qIyxy



TIAX NqIUNy

L

LOISIAI(] S2OIAKDS JUIMILIDADL) [BDO]
onuaASY Jo uswiueda( viS1090
3anog vjeq

{SDIVN) Wa1SAS UoNEANISSR ANSNPU] UBILALY YHON ,
Auno)) uolnyy [R103 51 10 2[qE]IeAR AJUG UCHEULIO] £

AGe|IRAR 51 BIED JO SIPAA DAL 15
SDJON

% - % L9 % - % 06 % - % T % - % ¥t % - % - a3uey adejuadiag (210
% 001 €36 1erL8CS % 001 9OLPEE6ITS % 001  L09LcS 958 % 00t 18CTEN95CS % 001 985" TOLTISTS SO[LS I[qeXE ], [810),
% LT] I8+ 1#9°C % 8I°1 996'081°¢ % 11 0£5°THE'T % 80°1 GIPFLLT % 10°1 688'LPST UCLONISHO))
% SL'G TEL6E5'91 % ¥L'S 9STOLY'SH % LSS LYTO6TH] % 89°C 1L9°LES % 9%°¢ £10'cEL'el SUONEPOUWIMIOODY
% 8% £90°TE0'H1 % 6T 12E£°TSS°T1 % IL'T 106°956°0 % 85T 6¥1'v09°9 % ¥0°T 1L0°LET°S $0[AJDS IBLI()
% B1°FI LLL'TOLOF % 86°¢1 SOF9LE9E % 6FET PITG6S'YE % SUTH THL'Y6ETE % §9°T1 Y6 1P 1€ SIQPAIDS SROFUR)DISIY
% £8°L 888°06¥'7T % S8 £60°08FTT % 058 TEIT0R'IZ % OL'8 CIL'TLTTT % 158 168° L1+ 1T STUNSIIN JWOH
% 98°1 LIBPPE'S % S0°T I¥LpTs'S % T S8F'8LID % €T 086'CP6'S % 12T DE6'H95°S AANOWOINY
% 8P'8 9L1°C3E VT v 8€°§ LOS'188'TZ % ZP'B TS6'S09°1T % 0S8 TLEILL'IT % 56 8TL'696°ET a[esa[otm
% T9°CE £5E°85T°9¢ % €T°TH ESITP6'TE % ELTLI LOO'660'0E % 00'TH 26F'8EL0E % 9611 ZE8v110E [iB1R1 IO
% 157 PL6 TS % 8€°¢ 051°58t' vl % ¥6°S SEE'RTTCL % £T9 80P°LS6'SH % 8T°9 96L 0SS sanynn
% SE°C 268°€8€'C1 % 8F'S 9589511 % TT'S IP006EEl % 15§ PILCOIFE % $€°9 $99°CL6°C1 SupmsenuEiA
% SU1g 6LTE08°09 % 86°1T £59°80T6S % S6'TT 86TL9%'8S % OFIT 8Y0'T9E'LS % 09°1T 055°T9E°FS sleq/poo,
% 111§ CTE'TEG' 1T % LET1 SSO'619°0E § % S6°11 IZE€99°0E § % 9€T1 0L9°ZSO°IE § % 1¥TI LILYETIE § DSIPURLIIAUI [RIDUDD)

£ "S3P0D §DIVN
dhEliiaateg  JWEIdIdg  dOeudaavg junonry ELEERNEN | junoury NI IR ITETUIIAD] onemy o5 &g

610z 810C LI0Z o710z S 114

1 6L0Z-SL0T sI¥2 X Jupuae])
dnoas £q so[es d[QBXE ],

VIDNOED ‘LNIOd ISVA 40 ALID



€Ll

wswnedag] 9MAIRS Jawasnyy A1
102EN0S BJE(Q

% ¥'1 POL'LE % 071 67801 % Tl §L8'91 610T
% TT PECLE % 9T 199°01 % 0T £L9°91 8102
% L0 8¢L'9¢ % £l 68E°01 % €0 6¥E91 L1I0T
% Q1 P59 %11 15701 Y% 01 £6T°91 910z
% L'T $LT9T % - £p1°01 % bt 1£1°91 ST
% T9 ¥65°5T % 121 1+1°01 % L'T £64°C1 P10T
% - L60'YT % - Fr0'6 % - £S0°S1 €102
%P L60VT 2%{L°6E) 06 % 0L £50°C1 rAlir4
%(5°6) T8t %{(5'6) 990°%1 %(5'6) 990'F 1 1102
% €0 980°1¢€ % €0 £ps'sl % £0 £¥SCI 0102
o.w—.N—_U HX. Joguunp QH:S_U a\e EETS TN uu—:u:hv a\e ._OQE-_Z .—uo?
fejo]. heuﬁ}/ u_.zuuﬂm jeasiy

SIBDA [EISI] U] I5u]
AL A9
PUa-1¥3 X 1B SJUN0IIY LieIsn) QI Jo nquiny

VIDIOIAD ‘LNIOd LSVH A0 ALID

IIIAX HqQuixz



Residential
Winter Rates

Base Charge
First 1000 kwWh
QOwver 1000 kWh

Summer Rates:

Base Charge
First 500 kWh
Next 500 kWh
Over 1000 kWh

Winter Rates:

Base Charge

First 500 kWh

Next 500 kWh

QOver 1000 kWh
Summer Rates:

Base Charge
First 2000 kWh
Next 500 kWh
Qver 1000 kWh

Commercial:

Base charge

First 200 XLW:

First 3000 kWh
Next 7000 kWh
Next 190000 kWh
Qver 200000 kWh
Next 200 X KW
Next 200 xKW
Qver 600 X KW

General Service

Winter Rates:
Base Charge
All kWh

Sumuner Rate

Base Charge
All kWh

Small Power

Base Chare
Pemand Charge

First 200 X KW
Next 200 X KW
Next 200 X KW
Qver 600 X KW

Medium Power

Base Charge
Demand Charge
First 200 X KW
First 6000 kWh
Qver 6000 kWh
Next 200 X KW
Next 260 X KW
Over 600 X KW

Large Power
Base Charge
Demand Charge
First 200 X KW

First 100000 kWh

Over 100000 kWh
Next 200 X KW
Next 200 X KW
Over 600 X KW

1 o

LT R R S 2 R )

(= I [ R R I L U I )

LR R Y 2 o ]

10.000
0.082
0.076
0.070

10.000
0.082
0.162
0.116

15.000
0.110

15.000
0.135

25.000
2.250
0.110
0.045
0.040
0.040

50.000
2.500

0.100
0.090
0.045
0.040
0.040

75.000
3.000

0.090
0.080
0.043
0.040
0.035

& o0 B Ua

& & e N

[P R c B B = R o W T i 5 I )

o &

[T R )

L]
—_

1

12.000
0.098
0.091
0.084

12.000
0.098
0.122
0.139

16.500
0.120

16.500
0.148

28.000
2,500
0,123
0.030
0.045
0.045

60.000
2.960

0.115
0.103
0.052
0.046
0.046

90.000
3.500

0.106
0.094
0.053
0.047
0.041

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Electric Service Rates
Last Ten Fiscai Years

2012

12.0G0
0.092
0.085
0.078

16.500
0.120

16.500
0.148

28.000
2,500
G.123
0.050
0.045
0.045

60.000
3.000

0.115
0.103
0.052
0.046
0.046

90.000
3.500

0.106
(.094
0.053
0.041
0.041

013

12.000
0.098
0.120
0.140

L2 B I o )

12.000
0.098
0.120
0.140

@ 0 1 A

18.000
0.150

o o0

18.000
[5.150

w1 N

40.000
0.260
0.140
0.500
0.500
0.440

@ O BN oY O &

85.000
3.000

0.130
0.120
0.460
0.420
0.420

Lo AR IR T =y = I = s R I )

$ 100.000
3.750

]

0.110
0.940
0.530
0.470
0.410

LI L I ]

174

2014

12.600
0.093
0.093

L ]

12.000
0.098
0.122
0.139

& U B B

12.000
0.098
0.093

) & A

12.060
0.098
0.122
0.139

w0 o

3 18.000
$ 0152

5 18.0060
0.152

15]

40.000
2550
0.135
0.500
0.044
0.044

L2 g A R ]

85.000
3.000

o

0.133
0.121
0.046
0.042
0.042

Lo I R s R I

$100.000
§ 3.950

0.108
0.094
0.053
0.047
0.041

& e e

2015

12.000
0.098
0.093

L2 ]

12.000
0.098
0.122
0.139

o ) & b

12.000
0.098
0.093

Lo IR ]

12.000
0.098
0.122
0.139

o1 &1 U A

18.000
15.150

o R

18.060
15.150

[ ]

40.000
2,550
0.1335
0.500
0.044
0.044

Lo = IR = B I = = )

85.000
3.000

1

0.133
0.121
0.046
0.042
0.042

& 6% o) B oY

$100.000
5 3750

0.106
0.094
0.053
0.047
0.041

LU RS 2 N )

201

[2.000
0.098
0.093

&

12.060
0.098
0.122
0.139

& e o0

12.000
0.098
0.693

LI I -]

12.000
0.098
0122
0.139

o BN B BN

§ 18.000
$ 15.150

5 18.000
15.150

125]

40.000
2,550
0.135
0.500
0.044
0,044

@ e BT B O

85.000
3.000

o &

133
121
0.046
0.042
0.042

W O B O

$100.000
5 3950

0.106
0.094
0,053
0.047
0.041

AP N L N ]

2017
5 12.000
§ 0098
$ 0093

12.000
0.098
0.122
0.139

L ]

12.000
0.098
0.093

o & o

12.000
0.098
0.122
0,139

[ R

18.000
15,150

o o0

§ 18.000
15.150

o2

40.000
2.550
0,135
0.500
0.044
0.044

85.000
3.000

o %

0.133
0.121
0.046
0.042
0.042

Lo B I R ]

$ 100.000
§ 37930

0.106
0.094
0,053
0.047
0.041

o T U

2018

£2.000
0.098
0.093

L2 O ]

12.000
0.098
0.122
0.139

@ ) 1 B

12.000
0.098
0.093

@ A A

12.000
0.098
0.122
0.139

[ IR I = ]

3 18.000
$ 15150

5 18.000
15,150

[=5]

40.000
2,550
0,135
0.500
0.044
.044

L IR T R S

85.000
3.000

&

0.133
0.121
0.646
0.042
0.042

& G e9 Y o

$100.000
5 3750

0.106
0.094
0.033
0.047
0.041

LR S S I )

201

12.000
0.098
0.093

o o D

12.000
0.098
0.122
0.139

“ A A B

v

12.000
0.098
0.093

[0 5]

12.000
0.098
0122
0.139

[ AR I e I ]

5 18.000
$ 15150

5 18.000
$ 15150

40.000
2.550
0.135
0.500
0.044
0.044

L0 T A L O

85.000
3.000

o B

0.133
0128
0.046
0.042
0.042

1 O 9 Y o

$100.000
5 3750

0.106
0.094
0.053
0.047
0.041

“9 W BN U A
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Function/Program

Police
Stations
Zone offices
Patrol units

Fire Stations

Refuse Cellections
Collection Tricks

Other Public Works
Streets miles
Street ligits
Traffic Signals

Parks and Recreation
Acreage
Community Centers

Water
Miles of water mains
Number of Wells
Number of Treatment Plants
Number of elevated tanks
Number of reservoirs

Sewer Service:

Miles of sanitary sewers

Pata Source
Vartous City Departments

CITY OF EAST POINT, GEORGIA

Capital Asset Stafistics by Function/Pregram
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exhibit XXXII

2010 11 201 2013 2014 2015 016 2017 2018 2019
1 1 1 i i 1 I 1 1 1
2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
78 80 83 80 80 80 79 79 75 80
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3
11 i 1 1 1 1 17 17 25 27
150 150 150 151 151 151 151 151 166 166
8,342 8,170 8,230 8,230 £,250 £,250 £,250 8,250 7,500 7,500
62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 60 60
179 179 179 179 179 179 179 179 179 179
I 1 1 1 1 1 1 | 1 1
164 164 164 164 164 164 164 164 164 164
1 1 i 1 1 i 1 1 1 1
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
154 154 154 154 154 154 154 154 154 154
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